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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Al amonnts are in indian rupees (T} lakhs except share dicta and sthenvise stated}

Note As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ASSETS
Non-corrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 154 20506 34,504 85
Capital work-in-progress 15B 1,166 .47 1.573.24
Goodwill 164 58,699 81 4590343
QOther intangible assets 16A 26,485 39 22.882.05
Right-of-use assets 165 96,248.98 9542750
Equity sccounted investees 17 10,002.42 10.050.32
Financial assets

Investments 19 2000 20.00

Trade receivable 24 60415 63246

Other bank balances 26 5.20 79345

Deposits and other receivables 20 622319 4,743.88

Qther financial assets 21 - 1.525.42
Deferred tax agsets (net) 14 13,559.51 1241270
Non-current tax assets (net) 8.326.91 7416.76
Other noa-current assets 22 3175 250.28
Total non-corrent assefs 2,54,358.54 2,38,138.66
Carrent Assets
Inventories 23 29 167 96 22,765,535
Financial assets

Investments 19 - 1.355.62

Trade receivables 24 1,30,732.32 1,16.033.04

Cash and cash equivalents 25 99,382.64 53,696.24

Other bank balances 26 [.102.08 292252

Deposits and other receivables 20 3.571.16 6,673.36

Cther financial assets 21 16844 306.46
Current tax assets (net) 1.710.i8 4,187.13
Cither current sssets 28 53.549.27 47,095.54
Total current assets 3,24,614.05 2,55,236.44
Assets classified as held for disposal 45 - 587196
Sub-total 3,24,614.05 2,61,108.40

Tatal assets 5,78,972.89 4,99,247.06




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Congolidated Batance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(AN amounts are in Indian rupees () lakhs except share data and othervise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2022 3 March 2021

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 294 3.629.57 3.176.21
Other equity 298 67.770.40 44.147.41
Reserves of a disposal group held for sale 29B - 1,.505.36
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company 71,399.97 49,228.98
Non-controlling interests 18 3,991.4% 3.996.89
Taotal equity 75.391.46 53,225.87
Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 30 73.54793 94083 87

Lease liability 16B 84 648 44 8845510

Other financial lighilities 32 10, 14345 2873432
Provisions 33 429301 3,599.02
Deferred tax labilities (net) 14 15,794.28 12,254.28
Other non current liabilities 34 2447 -
Total non-current liabilities 1,88,451.58 2,01,270.75
Current liabilities
Financial liahilities

Borrowings 30 1,02,830.32 60,708.29

Lease hability 16B 3437920 30,163.96

Trads payables 31

-Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 2,670.26 1,821.56
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14264379 1.13,580.00

Qther financial habilities 32 1439289 14.211.24
Provisions 33 342572 3.251.05
Current tax liabilities (net) 1.219.14 207.63
Other current liabilities 33 17,568.53 15,775.78
Total current liabilities 3,15,129.85 2,39,719.51
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held tor sale 45 B 503093
Sub-total 3,15.129.83 2,44,750.44
Totol liabilities 5,03,581.43 4,46,021.19
Total cquity amd liabilities 5,78.972.8% 4,9%,247.06

The notes from | to 38 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
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TYSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in fndian rupees (%) lakhs except share data and vthervise stafed)

Note Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Caontinuing operations

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of matetials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade
Employee benetits expense

Finance cosis

Degpreciation and amortisation expense
Cther expenses

Total expenses

Profit / (Joss} before exceptional items, share of profit / (loss)
of equity accounted investees and income fax from continuing
operations

Exteptional items

Share of profit{loss) of equily accounted investees {net of income
tax)

Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax {expense/ {credit))

Total tax expenses

Profit / {loss) for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Protit / (loss) from discontinued operations before tax expenses
Tax expense of discontinved operations

Current tax
Profit / {loss) alter tax from discontinued operations

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss
Re-measurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plans
[acome tax relating to above

Net ether comprehensive income not to be reclassified

Ttems that will be reclussified subseqiently to profit or loss
Exchange gain / {loss) in translating financial statements of foreign operations
Income tax relating to above

Effective portion of cash flow hedge
Income tax relating to above

Ttems reclussified subsequently to profit or loss
Effective portion of cash tlow hedge
Income tax relating to above

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Toi:_agfizmprg_l_:gllsive income for the year

5 $,24,978.59 6.93,359.69
6 5.015.04 6,609.39
9,29,993.63 6,99,969.08
7 1,175.44 245937
8 1.22.364.71 95.226.01
9 (6,448.04) (4,363.54)
10 1.88.913.19 1.80.503.17
1 15.494.93 17,559.81
12 46,104.89 44,328.21
13 5,57,716.93 3.80.855.64
4,23,322.05 7,16,578.67
4,671.58 (16,609.59)
48 (3.509.63) 5.214.48
17 (47.90) (6.66)
1,114.05 (11,401.77)
307270 {1.687.62)
638938 (2.484.28)
14 5,762.08 4.171.90)
(4.648.03) {7,220.87)
(92.10) (243.97)
(92.10) (243.97)
(4,740.13) (7473.84)
(123.45) 148.37
2623 {4354
(97.22) 105.43
(1,842.58) 87247
(1,842.58) 872.47
(207.92) (776.34)
(207.52) (776.34)
(2,050,50) 96.13
(2,147.72) 20156
(6.387.35) (7.272.28)




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(4N amonnis are in Indian rupees (T) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Note Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Profit / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controiling interests
Profit/{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income attributable to :
Cromers of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable ta :
Chners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Tuotal comprehensive income for the year

Enrnings / {(loss) per share (T) for continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings / (loss) per share {(T) for discontinued operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings / {loss} per share (3} for continuing and discontinued eperations
Basic
Diluted

The notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of the consolidated finangial stafements.

As per our teport of even date attached

JSor S.R. Batlibot & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number @ 101049W [ E300004
Chartered Accountants

"

(507027 (1.273.58)
18 330.14 {200.26)
{4.740.13) {7,473.34)
§2,103.73) {70.24)
18 (43.99) 271.80
(2,147.72) 201.56
(7.174.00) (7.343.82)
18 286.15 71.54
(6,887.85) {7,272.28)
29E (146} 2.13)
{1.46) {2.13)
29E {0.03) (0,07
(0.03) 0.07)
29E {(149) (2.213
(1.49) (2.2
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated statement of cashilows for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
(AN amounts are in Indian rupees (T} lakhs except share dma and otherwise stated)

Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations
Profit / {foss) before tax from discontinued operations
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Provision no longer required written back

Income from mutual funds and net gain on sale of investments
Exceptional item

Finance costs

Depreciatien and amortisation

Gain on termination of fease contract

Foreign exchange differences (gainyloss

Bad debts written off

Irmpairment losses on financial instrument and litigations
Provision for impairment on investments

Share of (profit)/loss of equity accounted investees

Share based payinent expenses

(Profii)/loss on sale of property plant and equipment, net
Operating profit / {loss) before changes in operating assets
Change in operating assets and liabilities

{Increase} / decrease in inventories

{Increase} / decrease in trade reccivables

{Increase) / decrease in other current and non-current, financial and non-financial assets
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Increase / (decrease) in other current and non-current financial and non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net of refunds
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from / {(nsed in) investing activities

Redemption of / (Investment in) bank deposits having an original maturity of more than three months
Pavments for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments

Investment in body corporate

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents

Payment of consideration payable and deterred consideration

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

[nterest income received

Net cash from / {used in} investing activities

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 Mareh 2021

1,114.05 (11,401.77)
(92.10) (243.97)
(1.490.86) (1,162.60)
{709.66) (1.042.40)
- {0.50)
2.216.74 (5.214.48)
15.495.08 17,560.10
46,106.97 4432821
(573.39) (340.11)
1,803.60 786.00
497,38 951.30
3.692.43 2.698.50
s 161.80
4790 6.66
2,795.13 2,333.90
{144.74) 56,30
70,753.13 49,276.94
(6,573.99) {4,366.10)
(19,914.59) 17,376.90
{10,257.23) (9.455.90)
30,368.30 9,303.50
247.89 323.90
(2.923.72) 9,031.00
61,699.79 71,490.24
{1,571.23) (277.40)
60,128.56 71212.84
2,696.81 23,135.20
(11,649.38) (11,651.90)
1,504.85 540.80
100.00 -
- (20.00)
(13,820,10) -
(816.44) (5.009.40)
(17,200.76) (1,475.90)
1,040.56 818.90
(38,054.46) 6,337.70




TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated statement of cashflows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (8 lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Pavment of principal and interest payments of lease liability (39.477.36) {36,382.72)
Proceeds from issue of equity share capisal 43,686.64 -
Dividends paid to non=-controlling interests by subsidiaries (24.00) {12.00)
{Repayment of) / proceeds from short term borrowings, net 24,111.25 {64.382.100
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2.578.20 43,30
Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings - {653.10
Repayment of long term borrowings {5.056.23) (6.101.10)
Interest paid (4.109.65) (5.037.60)
Net cash from / {used in) financing activities 23,708.65 (1,16,725.32)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 45,782.75 (39,174.78)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 53,840.82 88.968.30
Eftects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (240.93) 404730
Cash aod cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note 25) 99,382.64 53,840.82
Less: Cash and cash eguivalents of discontinued operations - 144.58
99.382.64 53,696.24

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year from continuing operations

The notes from | to 38 form an integral part of the conselidated tinancial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Jor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(48 amounts are In Indian rupees (T) lakhy except share data and otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (“the Company") is a Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 16 November 2004, These
consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to collectively as “the Group”) and the Group's interest in
associates and joint ventures. Refer note 46 for the list of subsidiaries and note 17 for the list of associates and joint ventures. The Group is primarily
invelved in providing the entire basket of supply chain management services including infegrated supply chain solutions and network solutions. On
February 12, 2022, the Company filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus in connection with Initial Public Offer with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India,

2 Basis of preparation
A Statement of compliance and going concern assessment

These conselidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to comply with the requitements
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 as amended
from time to time and presentation requirements of Division 1l of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1), as
applicable to the CFS.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 16th May 2022
Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B Functional and presentation currency

These conselidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded-off to the nearest 1akhs, unless otherwise stated.

C  Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurentent basis

Certain financtal assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments) Fair value

Net defined benefit asset Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligations

*

\ <32 /"I
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TVS SIIPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees () lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

2

Basis of preparation (continued)

D Use of estimafes and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements. management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that atfect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the mwst significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected wseful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values
of the Group's assets are determined by the Management at the time the asset (s acquired and reviewed periodically, including at the end of each
reporting period. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customers that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, customer tvpe, rating etc.)

The Group determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical lass experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic
conditions. The Group considered current and anticipated future econamic conditions relating to industries the Group deals with and the countries
where it operates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered external credit information for its cusiomers to estimate the
probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19, where ever necessary.

Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits

The cest of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valoation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the tuture. These include
the determination of the discount rate: fumre salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive te changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The estimated cash flows are developed based on internal
forecasts and de not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet commitied to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for exirapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to Property, Plant and Equipment , Goodwill and
Other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different
CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed in Naie 16A.

Lease classification, termication and renewal option of leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-canceltable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the
lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease termy on a Lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will continue the lease beyond non-cancellable period and whether any options to extend or
terminate the contract will be exercised. 1n evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant feasehold improvements
undertaken over the tease tern1. costs relating to the terminating the tease and the importance of the underlying asset to Group's operations taking in to
account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease teom in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the
lease term reflects the current economic circwnstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Group has concluded that no
material changes are required to leass period relating to the existing lease contracts.

Assumptions and estimation uncertaintivs
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March
2022 is included in the following notes:

- Note 14 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 16A - Impairment testing for goodwill;

- Note 36 (Note A-G) — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
= Note 43 — Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian rupees (T} lakhys except share data and otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
E Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for bath financial and non-financial assets and
liabilitics,

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Group regularly reviews significant
unebservable inputs and valeation adjustments. If third patty information is used te measure fair values, then the Group assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of ind AS. including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a hability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognises transfer
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 39A - Business combination during the year ¢nded 31 March 2022
- Note 43 — Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management.

F [Impact relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in signiticant volatility in financial markets and a decrease in global and India’s economic activities in 2020
and early 2021. Consequent lockdowns and varying restrictions imposed by the Central and various State Governments had led to disruptions and
dislocations of individuals and busimesses. However, with the gradual lifting of the Jockdown restrictions during the vear, the operations of the
Company have returned to normal levels of activity and in the opinion of the Company. the impact of COVID 19 on its tinancial metrices are no
longer significantly uncertain. The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID-192 on the business and operations of the Company as at March
31, 2022 and is of the view that it does not have any material impact on the financial results of the Company on the basis of the facts and events
upto the date of approval of these financial statements.

However. in view of the dynamic nature of the pandemic. the Company will continue to moniter future events / developments that may result in an
adverse effect on the business and operations of the Company.

3 Significant accounting policies

A Basis of consolidation
i. Business combinations
Business combinations (other than common conrol business combinations)
In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Group accounts for these business cembinations using the acquisition method when control is transterred to
the Group. The consideration transterred for the business combination is generally measured at fair value as at the date the control is acquired
{acquisition date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill thai arises is tested annually for impaimment. Any gain on a bargain
purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlving reasons for classifying
the business combination as resslting it a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised ditectly in equity as capital reserve. Acquisition
refated costs are expensed as incurred.

The consideration transterred doees not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are
generally recognised in profit ot loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the
definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity. then it is not remeasured subsequenily and seftlement is accounted for within equity.
Other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3
A

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees {acquiree’s
awards). then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the
business combination. The determination of the amount to be included in consideration transferred is based on the market-based measure of the
replacement awards compared with the market-based measure of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to pre-
combination service.

It a business combinatien is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquirce is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or [oss is recognised in profit or loss or OCL, as appropriate,

Common confrol business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the Group are
accounied for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts.

ii, Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date en which contral commences until the date on which control ceases.

iil. Non-controlling interests (NCI)

An entity has a choice on a combination-by-combination basis to measure any NCI that represents present ownership interest in the acquiree at
either fair value or the propertionate shate of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. Ln respect of business combinations effected so far, the Group
has elected one of the twe approaches on a combination by combination basis.

Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

v, Losy af control

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control. is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control
over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost

- Derecognises the carrving amount of any non-confrolling interests

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

= Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

- Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

- Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings, iff
reguired by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or Labilities
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

A Basis of consolidation (continued)
v. Equity accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates and joint ventures.
When the Group has with other parties joint contrel of the arrangement and rights to the net assets of the joint amangement. it recognises its
inferest as joint ventures. Joint control exists when the decisions about the relevant activities require vnanimous consent of the parties sharing the
control. When the Group has significant influence over the other entity, it recognises such interests as associates. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not control or joint control over the entity.

The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using equity method of
accounting after making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in application of accounting policies, wherever applicable.

An investment in joint venture or associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafier to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and
ather comprehensive income of the joint venture or associate. Gain or loss in respect of changes in other equity of joint ventures or associates
resulting in divestment or dilution of stake in the joint ventures and associates is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On acquisition of
investment in a joint venture or associate, any excess of cost of investment over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the jeint venture and
assoctate, is recognised as goodwill and i3 included in the carrying value of the investment in the joint venture and associate. The excess of fair
value of assets and liabilities over the investment is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve. The unrealised profits/losses on transactions
with joint ventures and associates are eliminated by reducing the carrying amount of investmeni. The carrying amount of investment in joint
ventures and associates is reduced to recognise impairment, if any, when there is evidence of impairment.

When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture or an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture or associate (which includes
any long term interests that, in substance. form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture or associate). the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made paymenis on behalf of the joint venture or associate,

vi. Obtaining control over existing investment
The difference between the fair value of the initial interest as the date of obtaining control and its book value has been recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

vi, Trausactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any uarealised income and expenses arising from intra=group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising trom transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated againsi the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

B Foreign currency
i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Group companies at the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actoal rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair valve in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a toreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiens (subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
oh acquisition, are translated into [NR. the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the reperting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translaled into TNR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate
apptoximates the actual rate at the date of the {ransaction.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control. significant intluence or joint control is lost, the cwnulative
amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its inferest it a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-
allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of ils interest in an associate or a joint venture while retaining significant influence or
joint control. the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounnts are in Indiar rupees (T} lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

3 Significant acconnting policies (continued}
€ Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A finanrcial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification ard subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost:

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassitied subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL;

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specitied dates to cash tlows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not ¢lassified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition. the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meeis the requirements to be measured at
amottised cost as at FVTPL if deing so efiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FYTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses. including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
prefit or lass,

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amottised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading. or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methed. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition i3 also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the rights to
receive the coniractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the group neither fransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of
the financial asset.

If the Group enters inte transactions whereby it transters assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecogiised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash tlows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case. a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss,

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when. the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to seitle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

€ Financial instruments {continwed)
v, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group uwses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate/cress currency swaps etc to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair valwe. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value ot derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges. which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis
adjustinent if’ a hedged forecast transaction subsequently resuits in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial Liability (refer note
J0AGH) & 43(v))

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
{i} Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

{ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised fiom commitrent

{iii} Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Gronp formally degignates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the group’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship. the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
tisk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged itern’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly etfective in
achieving offsefting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to defermine that they actually have been highly
efiective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge sccounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedge

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs, The change in the fair value
of the hedged itern attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and i3 also recognizsed in the
statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the
remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amottisation may begin asz soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged
itern ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised. the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment
is designated as a hedged item. the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

(ii) Cash tlow hedge
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group also may separate forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designate as the hedging instrument only the change
in the value of the spot element of a forward contract.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial
income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liahility, the amounts recognised as OCI are transiterred to the initial carrving amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

When an ¢ntity separates the forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designates as the hedging instrument only the change
in the value of the spot element of the forward contract, such amount is recognised in OCl and accumulated as a separate component of equity
under cost of hedging reserve. These amounts are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss account as a reclassification adjustment in the same
period or periods during which the hedged cash tlows aftect profit or loss or when the hedged item is a non-financial asset or non-finsncial
liability, the amounts recognised in cost of hedging reserve are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

It the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss prev lously
recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met. :
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

€ Financial instruments (continned})
(iiiy Hedges of a net investment
Hedges of a net investmenti in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are
accourted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge ate
recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the
foreigh operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is reclassified o the statement of profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment).

D Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs. less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. if any.
Cost of an item of property, plant and ¢quipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, afler
deducting trade discounts and rebates. any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have ditferent useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
ii, Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Group.
ifi. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Management estimnate of useful

Asset .
life (in vears)

Buildings 30 to 60
Plant and Machinerv 02 to 30
Furniture and fixtures 0lto 10
Vehicles 03 to 10
Office equipment 030 10
Computer equipment 030 10

Leasehold improvements »

* Leaschald improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset or the lease period whichever is lower,

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
appreximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used and are different from those prescribed in Schedule IT of the Act.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis L.e. from (upte) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).
E Goodwill and other intangibles

i. Goodwill

For measurement of goodwill that arises on a business combination refer note 39A. Subsequent measurement is at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

In respect of business combinations that occurred prioe to 1 January 2011, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost. which represents
the amounts recorded under previous GAAP.

ii. Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Group in a business combination are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benetits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

iv. Amortisation
Goodwill is not amortised and is tested for tmpairment annvally.
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

E Goodwill and other intangibles
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated wseful lives using the
straight-line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated vseful lives of items of intangible assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Management estimate of useful

Asset life (in years)
Patents and trademarks 03 to0 10
Customer relationship and others 03to 10
Brands 05t0 10
Cormputer software 03 to 10

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.
F Inventories

Inventories consist of packing materials, stores, stock in trade and spare parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis.

G Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on

- financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amottised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit -
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated futere cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,

- a breach of contract such as a default;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise:
= it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances based on simplified approach. at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following,
which are measured as 12 month expecied credit losses:

= debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defanlt occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measuwred at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Litetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected lite of a financial
instrement. 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period
considered when estimating expected credit Josses is the maximum contractual peried ever which the Group is exposed to credit risk,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward - looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Measurenent of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate ot credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expecis to receive).

Preseniation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheel
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

G Impairment {continued)
Write-aff
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is weitten off {either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject te enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Group's precedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii, Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Geodwill is tested for impairment
annually.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash tlows, discounted to their present value wsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments ot the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU {or the asset).

The Group's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment Joss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the staterment of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or greup of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impainnent loss has been recognised in
prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

H Employee benefits
(i) Shori-term employes benefits

Short-term employee beneftt obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liabiligy is
tecognised for the amount expected to be paid .., under short-term bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a tesult of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is generally recognised as an employee benefit
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity. over the peried that the employees unconditionally become entiiled to the awards. The amount
recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimalely recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and
non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awatds with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for ditferences between expected and actual outcomes.

(iii} Defined contribution plans

A defined coniribution plan is a posi-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company and its subsidiaries in varions geographies make contributions. generally
determined as a specified percentage of emplovee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees in accordance with the local laws and regulations in
the respective countries which are defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued}
H Employee benefits {continued)
(iv) Defined benefi¢ plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds trom the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (*the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present
value of economic benefits. consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and lnsses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling {if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCL The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
profit or loss.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

{i)} The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

(iiy The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

{¥) Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of leng-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that
emplovees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the
fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they arise.

I Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost, Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

i. Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower
of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the
Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

J  Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for all:
- possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-cceurrence of one ot more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group (or}
- present ebligations arising from past events where it is net probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In respect of contingent assets for which inflow of economic benefits are probable. the Group discloses a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets at the end of the vear, and. where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect.
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)
K Revenue

t. Rendering of services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Company’s
performance of its contractual obligations and on satisfving all the following conditions:

(1) Parties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations;,

(2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transfer of goods or rendering of services
(hereinafter the ~Transfer™;

{3) Such coniract contains specific payment terms in relation to the Transfer:

{4) Such contract has a commercial nature, namely. it will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Company’s future cash flow;

{5) The Company is likely to recover the consideration it is entitled to tor the Transfer to customers.

Revenue is recognised when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised as revenue is
exclusive of all indirect taxes and net of returns and discounts.

Performance Obligations:

a) Supply chain management

The Company’s supply chain management segment generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other
transporiation services. warehousing, packaging. kitting, reverse logistics and inventory management contracts ranging from a few months to a few
vears. Certain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their transportation contracts, such as wnloading and other incidental
services. The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company’s services. The contracts contain a single performance obligation, as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over
time and possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer and
contains fixed and variable consideration. In general, the fixed component of a contract represents amounts for facility and equipment costs
incurred to satisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the contract.

In the case of transportation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits a shipment note
for the transport of goeds from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move from
origin to destination and revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance
obligations are short-term. with transit days less than one week. Generally, customers are billed either upon shipment of the freight or on a monthly
basis. and remit paymeni according to approved payment terms. The Company recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Company does not
comirol the specific services.

b} Telecommunication:

Telecommunication contract revenue arises from construction/ erection of towers for some of the Company’s customers in the Telecommunications
segment. These towers are constructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with customers by outsourcing the activities to sub-contractors.
Transaction price includes the mitial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work. claims and incentive paymenis. to the
extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. Tf the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recegnised in profit or loss over the period in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is
assessed by reference to surveys of work performed (output method). Otherwise, contract revenue is recognised only te the extent of coniract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses as incurred wnless they create an asset related to future contract
activity. An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but not billed. Revenue 13 measured at fair value of
the ¢onsideration received or receivable. after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates, Revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversat will not occur.

¢) Integrated logistics:
Integrated logistics services comprise of transportation, warchousing and other value-added supply chain selutions. In respect of contracts where
the Company provides a significant service of integrating two or mere goods or services into a combined output {that is the specified good ar
service for which the customer contracted) and the inputs to the combined output is controlled by the Company. the Company controls that
specified good or service before it is transferred to the customer. Revenues from such contracts are recognized upon substantial fulfilment of
obligations under the contract,

d} Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of traded goods including telecommunication goods is recognised when the control of the same is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged
goods.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

K Revenue {(continued)
¢) Commission:
When the Company acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction in relation te the above, the revenue recognised is
the net amount of revenue earned by the Company.

Variable consideration:

Generally, the Company’s coniracts contain provisions for adjustments to pricing based on achieving agreed-upon performance metrics, changes in
volummes, services and market conditions. Revenue relating to these pricing adjustments is estimated and included in the consideration if it is
probable that a significant revenue reversal will not oceur in the future. The estimate of variable consideration is determined either by the expected
value o1 most [ikely amount method and factors in current, past and forecasted experience with the customer. Custoners are billed based on terms
specified in the revenue contract and remit payment according to approved payment terms.

Contract balances:

a} Contract assets:

A confract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customet. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

b} Contract ligbilities:

A contract liability is the obligation te transfer geods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due)} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration betore the Company transters goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier}). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract.

L Leases
Group as a Lessor:
Leases in which the Group does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as reatal income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Group as lessee

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identificd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies a single recognition and measarement appreach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the vnderlying assets.

(i} Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets arc measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjuested for any remessurement of
lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurrad, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

It ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease tern or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are subject to impairment {refer note 3 {G) (ii)).
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3 Significant accounting policies {confinued)

L. Leases (continued}
{ii} Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The [ease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed pavments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable [ease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that friggers the payment ocours.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (2.g., changes io future payments resulting from a change in an index ot
rate used to determine such lease payvments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
that are considered 1o be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a strajght-line
basis over the lease term.

(iv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under business combinations

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments as at the acquisition date as if the acquired lease were a
new lease as at that date. The Right-of-use asset is measured at the same amount as the lease liability plus or minus any asset or liability previously
recognised in the original business combination accounting for the favourable or unfavourable lease terms.

(v) Key matters involving significant judgement

(a) Determining the lease term of contracts with termination options — Group as lessee

As per Ind AS 116. termination options are to be considered in determining the non-cancellable period. The period covered by the termination
option is included if the lessee is not reasonably certain to exercise the option. Lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
any optional perieds that the lessee is reasonably certain io use, The non-cancellable period of a lease is any peried during which the lessee cannot
terminate the contract. Consequently, any non-cancellable period in effect sets a minimum lease term. This is usvally reterred as “lock-in” period
in the lease centract. Generally, the lease contracts are cancellable once the “lock-in™ period is over, and, in most cases, the termination option is
mutually available with minimum notice period requirements under the contract.

(b) Determining the lease term of contracis with remewal options — Group as lesses

As per Ind AS 1186, the period covered by extension option is included if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option.

As reasonable certainty is a high threshold, the group believes in most leases where the lease term is greater than 3 vears assuming reasonable
certainty on leass commencement date may not be appropriste and must be evaluated on a case to case basis, censidering factors such as
investment in the property, renewal lease rates, specific modifications to property to meet customer requirements, importance of the location and
impact on overall business disruption etc.

M Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method,

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:

= the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial hiability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

N Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relares to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current fax

Current fax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous vears. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are otfset only if there iz a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the Tiability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that afiects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
Tax treatment of an item is considered as uncertain when there is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax treatment
of that item or not.

It thete is uncertainty over tax treatment of an item.

1. An entity should determine an approach or method that predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. Based on the approach, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments.

2. It shall assess whether it is probable that the taxation authority will aceept the unceriain tax treatment, assuming that the authority has

full right te examine the treatment and has full knowledge of all related information,

3. If it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment. there will be no impact on the amount of taxable profits/losses, tax
bases, unused fax losses/credits and tax rates. In viceversa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment
on amount of related aforesaid items by using either the most likely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferved tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised’ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no longer probable respectively that the refated tax benefit will be realised.

Deferved tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is setiled. based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reperting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are otfset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to setile current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.

O Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange difterences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition
or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

P Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks including short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Other bank deposits which are not in the nalure of cash and cash equivalents with a
maturity period of more than three months are classified as other bank balances.
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Significant accounting policies (continued}

Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of mansactions of a non cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash tlows from regular revenue generating, tinancing and investing activities
of the Group are segregated.

Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complisd
with. When the grant relates to an expense itetn. it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs. for which it
is intended to compensate. are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset. it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Key
managerial personnel comprising the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director assess the financial perfermance and position of the
Group, and make strategic decisions and have been together identified as being the chief operating decision maker {CODM).

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per equity share and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Exceptional items
Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of such significance and nature that
separate disclosure enables the user of the financial statements to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner,

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i) Amendments te Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Coneessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply
the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021,

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Groug.

(i) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary relicfs which address the financial reporting eftects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an
alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:
- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes
to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

- Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued

- Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group. The Group intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if
they become applicable.
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued}
¥V Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
{iii) Conceptoal framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced
by the standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards. it has relevance to the
preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice
of accounting policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the
footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e.
definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilitics and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notitication dated June 18. 2021,
appticable for annual perieds beginning on or after April 1, 2021, Accordingly. the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group.

(iv) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to gqualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in
accotdance with Indian Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Theretore, the
acquirer does not recognise those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead. the acquirer recognises those costs in its posi-
combination financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group.

(v) Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28
The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use™
are replaced with “higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS

105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group.




TV¥S SUPPLY CHAIN SCLUTIONS LIMITED
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
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4 Segment information
A, Basis for segmentation

The Group 1s primarily invelved in providing 1he entire basket of supply chain managzement services. The information relating to this operating sesment is reviewed regularly
by the Gronp's Key managerial personnel ('KMP" {Chief Operating Decision Maker} to make decisions about resources to be allocated and 10 assess its performance. The
accounting principles used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expendiluce in the segment. and are as set
out in the significant accounling policies.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, Group has changed the structure of nternal reperting o the Chief Operating Decision Maker. which has resulted in a change in the
repertable segments for which operating results are regularly reviewed to make decisions and assess performance. Hence, the Group has restated the corresponding segment
information in the earlier periods based on the new reporiable segments.

Integrated supply chain solutions: Our capabilities under the Intezrated Supply Chain Solutions (“TSCS™} segment include including planning, organising, iplementing,
optimizing and managing cornprehensive thicd pacty logistic selutions.

Network Solutions: Our capabilities alse include Network Selutions ("NS"} such as global forwarding solutions {“GFS™), which involves managing end-to-end freight
forwarding selutiens across ocean, air and land, and fast mile sohations {“LMS") including courier, spare part logistics and technology services,

B. Information aboitt reportable seements
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Revenne and results directly attributabie to segments are reported under each reportable
segment. All other expenses which are not attributable er allocable to segments have been disclosed as unatlocated expenses,

Year ended 31 March 2022 Reportable segments

1SCS NS Unallocated  Total reportable Eliminations Total

segMEnts

Segment revenue
- External revenuoe 3.74.071.15 5.50.907 44 - 9.24.978.59 - 92497859
- liter-segment revenue 38587 2,606.06 - 2,991.93 {2,991.93) .
Total segment revenuwe 3,74.457.02 £,53.513.50 - 9,27,970.52 {2,591.93) 9,24.978.59
Segment result from continuing operations 29.30d,27 36,780.83 {6,078.78) £70,002.32 6,708,90 66,709.22
Add
Other income 501504
Share of profit from Joint Yenires (47.50)
Exceptional items (3,500.63)
Less
Depreciation and amortisation expense 46,104.89
Finance costs 15,494 93
Share based payments 279518
Loss on foreign currency iransactiens and translations 2.657.68
Profit/{less) before tax from continuing operations 1,114.05
Profit/(less) before tax from discontiuned (92.10)
aperations
Segment assets 3.11,259.84 1,58 656,88 3,18.246,54 8.88,163.23 {3.09,190.34) 5,78,972.89
Segment asseis inchde
Investments accomnted for using equity method . . 10,002 42 10,002 42 . 10,002 42
Capitat expenditure during the year 245570 274763 - 11.203.39 - 11,203.39

Segment liabilities 2.41,199.66 2,46,893.88 1.93.372,49 6.81.466.03 (1,77.884.60) 5.03.581.43
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4 Segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021 Reportable segments
ISCS NS Unallocated  Total reportabie Eliminations Tatal
segmenty
Segment revenue
- External revenne 32041159 3.72,948.10 - 6,93,359.09 - 5.93,359.60
- Inter-segment revenue 1,262.10 364,90 - ,827.00 (1,827.00) -
Total segment revenue 3,21673.69 3,73.513.00 - 6,95,186.69 {1,827.00) 6,93,359.6%
Segment result from continuing operations 21,955.80 27,591.90 (10,202,100 38,645.60 5,588.20 44,233.80
Al
Odher income 6600239
Share of profit from Joint Ventures (6.G6)
Exceptional items 5,2i4.48
Less
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 4432821
Finance costs 17,559 81
Share based payments 2,333.48
Loss on forgign currency transactiens and translatians
3.230.88
Profit/(loss) before tax from contineing operations (11,401.77)
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontiuned {243.97)
operations
Reportable sepments
Year ended 31 March 2021 ISCS NS Unallocated  Total reportable Eliminations Total
sezments
Segment assets 2,87,768.68 2,35,803.06 2,30,896.35 7.54,468.09 (2,55,221.03) 4,99.247.06
Segment assels include
Discentinued operations 5.871.96 - - 587196 - 5.871.95
Investments accounted for using equity method - - 10,050.32 10,050.32 - 10.050.32
Capital expendilure duting the year 6.555.50 256550 - 9.521.00 - 952100
Segment liabilities 2,19.912.93 2,26,873.15 1,48,884.61 £.95.670.69 {1.49,649.50} 4,46,021.19
Segmient ahilities prolude
Discontinued operations 3.030.94 - - 5,030,594 - 5,030.94
Year ended Year ended
Reconcilintion of profits 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Segment resulis &0,002.32 38,645.60
Other income 15,232.90 13.397.50
Finance Cost (8,531.000 (2,206,70)
COthers - 397.40
Segment results before taxation from continuing operations 66,709.22 44,233.80
Reconciliation of assets 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Segment operating assets 8.88,163.23 7.54,468.09
Goodwill & other imtangibles assets 26.046.91 829368
Investments {1.43 072 58) (10622291}
Loans (1.39.984 28) (1,05,879.46)
Deposits and other receivables (38.367.64) {36.670.52)
Trade receivables (13,791.93) {14,338.08)
Other current assets (20.80) (403.74)
Total asscts 5,78,972.8% 4,99,247.06
Reconciliation of lizbilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Segment operating liabilities 68146603 5.95670.69
Borrowings (1,60,190,26% (1,27.960.73)
Other financial liabilities {15,998.34) (23.355.04)
Trade payables {13,379.60) {7.270.42)
Deferrad tax liabilities (net) 12.024.61 8.936.69
Other current liabzlites - - (38.37 -
Current tax liabilities 2 U (302.64) :
Total liabilities /A /N TNEN £.03.581.43 4,46,021.19
¥
&
W2\
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4 Segment information {continued)
C. Geographical information
The geographical information analyses the Group's revenves and non-current assets by the Group's country of domicile (ie. India) and other countries. [n presenting the
geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic lecation of customers and segment assets have been based on the peographical location of the
assets.

Revenue from operati M March 2022 31 March 2621
India 2,43,683.72 1,67,31870
Rest of the world £ 81,294 87 5,26.040.99

9,24,978.59 5,93.359.6%

Revenus from operations from Rest of the world primarily comprises of revenues generated from Europe, Asia-Pacific, North America amounting fo ¥ 4,25 279 80 lakhs as at
March 31,2022 (March 31, 2021 - £ 3.32,927.80 lakhs} ¥ 2,158,396 86 lakhs (March 31, 2021 ¥ 1,45 736,20 lakhs) and 2 37,613 20 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : T 47 307 00 lakhs)
respechively.

Non-current assets 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
India 59.485,50 50.010.00
Rest of the world 1,39,263.97 1,51,348,28
Eliminationsfunallocated 16,866.99 {1.014.53)
2.15,617.46 2,00,543.67

Non-current assets from Rest of the world primarily comprises of non-current assets from Europe, Asia-Pacific, North America amounting to T 81.082.27 lakhs as at March
31.2022 March 2021: T 90.616.70 lakhs) T 47 427 75 lakhs (March 2021: 2 49 456.20 lakhs) and # 1{.753.94 lakhs {March 2021: 7 11.475.30 lakhs) respectively.

Non-curreint assets exclude financial instruments, deferred tax assets, tax assets and post-employment benefit assets.

D, Information about services rendered by the Groop
Revenues from external customers in respect of each catepory of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenue 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1SC5S 3740115 3.20411.55
NS 5,500,907 44 37294810

9,24,978.5% 6,93,3%5.69
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5 Revenue from operations {refer note 40) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products 1,39,287.15 1,01,865.11
Sale of services
Income (rom supply chain manageinent services 1,72,610.84 5,82,176.42
Income from telecom services 12.890.27 8.840.26
7.85,561.11 5,91,016.68
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 64.13 361.35
Orhers 126.20 115.55
190.33 476.90
9,24,978.59 6,93.359.69
Other income Year ended Year ended

Interest income under the effective interest method on items carried at amortised cost:

31 March 2022

3 March 2021

Deposits with banks 543.26 156.23
Security deposits 44127 05,71
Investments in debentures carried at amortised cost - 16,11
Other items in finance income 1.75 1.87
Income from finance lease 209.46 193.85
Interest income on income tax refund 22224 32473
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipments, net 144,74 36.81
Gain on termination of lease contracts 573.39 540.11
Net gain on sale of investments - 047
Provision no longer required written back 705.66 940,18
Exchange difference gain net 854.08 2,519.73
Government grant 33051 1,245.39
Other non operating income 988.68 308.20
5.015.04 6,609.39

Cost of materials consumed Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Inventory of packing materials at the beginning of the year 183.01 281.46
Add ; Purchases 1,263.11 2,360.92

Less : Inventory of packing materials at the end of the year (270.68) (183.01)
1,175.44 2.489.37

Purchase of stock-in-trade Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchase of stock-in-trade 1,22,364.71 95,226.01
1.22.364.71 95.226.01
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9

10

11

12

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 36A)

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 36A)
Expenses related to compensated absences

Share based payments (refer note 36B)

Staff welfare expense

Finance costs

Interest on debt and borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities

Amortisation of transaction cost on borrowing
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use asset
Amortisation of intangible assets

e,

47; — "‘42\_\‘
/ / r./’/ﬁ“\\\\\\f‘
:I'I I.l ( A h’
l"\ /]
A\ ,.-f’/

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

22.368.72 16,531.47
(28.607.24) (22.368.72)
{209.52) 1,473.71
(6,448.04) (4,363.54)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1.56,220.11 1,48,820.57
18,908.28 17,942.85
438.42 562.05
487.22 320.89
279518 233588
10.063.98 10,522.33
1,88.913.19 ~ 1,80,503.17
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
561526 7.369.8%
8.039.78 7.844.00
137314 1,181.72
466.75 1.164.20
15,494.93 17,559.81
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9.387.17 0.418.06
31,916.77 30,194.24
4.800.95 4,715.91
46,104.3% 44,328.21
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13 Other expenses Year eaded Year ended
31 March 2022 31 Marel 2021

Freight, clearing, forwarding and handling charges 3,47.942.70 2,08,707.82
Sub-contracting costs™ 1,06,364.65 80,192.43
Material handling charges 2,293.02 1,373.94
Casual labour charges 30,174.01 24,121.33
Consumption of stores and spares 5.332.04 3.146.65
Staft transportation charges 1,88%.95 1,503.72
Power and fuel 7.535.94 6,104.81
Rent. leasing and biring charges {refer note 16B) 9,375.04 6.774.54
Rates and taxes 5.831.48 3.545.34
Insurance 2.73602 2.392.04
Repairs and maintenance 9.356.71 9,738.29
Advertisement and business prometien 1.044.32 74237
Travelling and conveyance 2,312.20 1,538.09
Comimunication costs 3,513.81 2,766 97
Printing & stationery 1.795.13 1,267.60
Bank charges 475.55 682.89
Factoring charges 885.93 506.62
Payment to auditots # 170.57 204.20
Legal and professional fees 7.499.37 11,026.09
Security expenses 3,731.39 3,377.58
Premium on derivative instruments designated for hedge 38591 111.25
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations 2,657.68 3,230.88
Bad debts written off 49788 95125
Provision for doubtful financial assets 3.692.48 2,368.76
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments, net - 8313
Loss on financial imstruments measured at fair value through Profit & Loss « Realised - 691.79
Provision for impainment on investments (refer note 17} - 161.78
Miscellaneous expenses 2,017,535 3.543.46

5,57,716.93 3,80,365.64

* Includes cost of sub-confracting in respect of services relating to installation and commissioning of telecom towers.

# Details of payment to auditors Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

As auditer

Audit of standalone & subsidiaries' financial statements 51.00 3895
Audit of consolidated financial statements 66.40 47.90
Audit of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes* 184.54 69.00
Audit of subsidiaries for financial statement purposes 235.25 14.75
Tax sudit of the company and other subsidiaries N 4.60
Certification fees 7.50 14.00

Services in connection with proposed initial public offer 248.00 -
Other matters - 15.00
586.10 204.20

Reclassified to prepaid expenses (refer note below) 41553 -
Net total 170.57 204.20

* Audit fee of subsidiaries tor consolidation purposes includes T 2.5 lakhs relating te carlier years
Note: Excludes remuneration for services in connection with proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the Company. which is included in other
current assets under the head prepaid expenses.
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14 Income X £XpEnse

A, Amounts recemised in profit or bogs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current tax (a}

Current tax on profits for the year from continuing operations 507230 11.687.62)

Deferred tax (b)

507270

{1.A87.62)

Attributable to origination and reversal of remporary ditferences 680,38 {3.:454.28}
689,38 (2.484.28)

Tax expense (a+b) 5.762.08 |-lél‘?l.9l)r

Note:

Cuerent tax on profits from discontinued operations - -

B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Tax expense [ Tax expense f
i Befonte‘ tax (benefit) Net of lax Before tax  (benefit) Net of fax
Remeasirement of defined benefit hability / (asset) {123.45) 2623 {97.22) 149,37 {43.94) 105.43
(123.45) 16.23 (97.22) 149.37 I'EENI 105.43

C. Recencilistion of effective tax rate

Year ended Year ended

3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Invome tax expense at tax sates applicable o mdividual entin L.264.28 {4.676.80)

Effect of

Inipact of change in tax rates - 101.78

Pemmanem disallowances 120.68 119.80

Income not subject to tax/ 1axable al different rates 76137 {0.83%

Change in previously unrecognised tax losses ! temporary differences {432.18) (1.977.7%

{tems f current year losses for whuch no deferred tax aszet was recopnised 4006 153233

Expenses not dedoctible for tax purposes 23781 169.04

Deferred tax on ymdistributed reserves 1,709.94 720.9]

Tax refund ¢lsmed on fiscal year FY 2020 - {1.715.53)

Profil anised on d ] di 1 of iy in joint {30.3%) 1.349.92

Otlvers 38430 196.27

T tax exy N5 Pt Stal t of profit and Joss 5,762.08 {4,171.50)

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

a. Deferred tax asgets and liabilities are attribotable to the following :

Deferred iax liabilities (net) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Peovision for employee benefils 135.69 124.59
Provision for doubtful wade receivables / advances 6225 5203
Provision - athers 546.88 346.38
Intangible asset - -
Defeired revenue 5.55 555
Dieferred rent 8078 84,39
Other timing differences 14914 321.96
Deferred tax ussets 980.29 1.140.30
Property, plant and equipient 302.06 366,073
Prepaid expenses 0.51) t0.93)
Intangibles 565443 362335
Undistribmied profits of subsidiaries and joint 9.349.62 803651
Dieemed disposal of in in joint 1.262.37 134592
Deferred tax liabilities 16.774.57 13.394.68
Net Deferred tax liabilities 15,794.28 12,254.28

Deferred tax asseis (net) 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Property, plant and ¢quipoent 1,860.53 113637
Provision for employes benefits 1,952.28 244949
Provision against financial assets 347363 243556
Camied forward rax losses £26.99 175478
Tax wncenbives 2043 26.03
Deferred revenus 220,00 218.27
Right of use asset and liability 4,451.70 347743
Others 1.527.97 1.697.13
Deferred tax agdels 14,333.60 13,215,06
Property, plant and equipment 78541 802,36
Prepaid expenses (L1.32) -
Deferred tax liabilities — 774.09 80236

- 4 . P o
Net Deferred (ax assets NN ZERT 0N 13,589.51 12,412.70
P i
ff A\
I 1]
' |
11 i
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14 Income tax expense {continued)
E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised i vespect of the Following tems, because it s not probable that fiture taxable profit will be available against which the Group can ose the tenefits

therefeom:
31 March 2122

31 March 2021

Unrecognised tax

Gross amount

Unrecognised tax

Particulars Gross amonnt effect effect

Deductible temporary differences 305747 51947 8.108.19 2,040,867
Tax losses 51.030.89 12,435.72 34.558.99 TI50T
Unabsorbed depreciadon 842 67 20446 135.29 1588
60,931.03 13,247.65 42,778.47 024431

F. Tax tosses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was enised expire as foll
31 March 2022 3] March 2021
Expiry within 5 years 4,576.34 334425
Expiry within 5-10 vears 14,236.97 464033
Mever expire 39,060.25 20,685,690
57.873.56 34,670.27

d"
(10-, Chennai 5
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TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the conselidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(Al ainorents are in Indian rupees (T} lakhs except share data and othetwise stated)

15B Capital work-in-progress
a Ageing of capital work-in-progress

As at 31 March 2022 <1 year I ¢o 2 years X ta 3 years >3 years Total
Projects in progress 794 43 572,04 - - 1,166.47
794.43 372.04 - - 1.166.47

As at 31 March 2021 <1 year 1 te 2 years 2 to 3 years > 3 years Total
Projects in progress 1.403.62 {70.32 - - 1.573.54
1,403.62 170.32 - - 1.573.94

b Expected completion schedule for capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overduve ot has exceeded ifs cost compared to its original plan

There are no overdue projects as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nates to the lidated Financial stat is for the vear ended 31 March 2022
CAT cnigenicnzrs cove i Fandior pipees (T8 fabiles excep sfeee et und offereise stared)

164 [ntangible assets

a Beconcliation of carrying amount

Goodwill ¥ Patents and Customer Braml Compuler Todul
trademarks relationship & software {excluding
Oikers zoodwill)
Gross carryimg amount
Balance at 1 April 2020 45442 30 5.0 24101558 450577 5258740 35,813.80
Other additions - - 105,59 - 13nze 2496 8%
Exchange ditfzrences on translation of foreign operstions 1,725.60 105 1,194 25 3231907 178 40 La9lal?
Bal at 31 March 2021 47, 168.00 6.10 2531542 4,829.74 10,857.09 41,008.35
Balance at 1 April 2021 47, 165.00 Gt 2531542 452974 185709 4160835
Ohher additions - - - - 2.497.06 249706
Additions on acquisitions {refer note 19) 12,447.6] - 580000 - 1577 5.824.77
Dispozals - - 63,19 53,94 12.099.4%} 11,977 .36)
Exchange differences on lation of foreign operalions 4TI5 10.08) (58.72) 265.77 T79.36 25053
Balance at 31 March 2022 54.963.36 6,02 31.133.8% 5.153.45 11,349.79 J7.643.15
Accumulated amortisation & impairment
Balance at 00 Apeil 2020 - - 8201 85343 1,066,464 1293218
Impairment for the year ¢ 1,275.52 - - - - -
Amortisation for the year - - 3327 86 204,67 2,183,358 4.713.91
Escliange diff: an translation of foreiun operati (11.97) - 347,00 26,01 194,51 47761
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,263.55 - 10.687.06 1,084.11 6,354.53 18,125.70
Balance at 1 April 2021 1,263.55 - 10,637.06 1.084.11 ©.354.53 1812570
Amortisation for the year - - 2.680.13 12483 1,995 9% 4,800,935
Disposals - - - - [1.977.44} 11,577.44)
Exchange difterences on translation of foreian operations - - 156.25 (8,39 40.6% 208.55
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,163.55 - 13,523.44 1,200.55 6,433.77 21,157.76
Carrying amcanis {net)
Ralance at 31 March 2022 £8.699.81 6.02 17.610.45 395290 4,916.02 26,485.39
Balamce at 31 March 2021 45,904.45 6.0 14.628.36 3,745.63 4,502.56 23,882.65

* During the year ended March 31,2021, the Group disposed off the invenlory and all operations relating to Mesco business in North Amenca. Consequently, goodwill related to this business amounting to ¥
1,273.52 lakhsg has been fully written off which 1s diselosed as exceptional item m the atatement of profit and loss.

# The Group has performed impairment tests of gaodwill al the end of the vear March 2022 and March 2021. For the purpese of impairnieat testing, goodwill is allovated 1o the cash penerating units which are
expacled to benefil from the symermes of the ponding busi binations. The goodwill impairement test is performed at the level of vash generating unil or a group of cash generating umts
repl by a busi Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapalated by wsing the estimated long 1arm prowth rates, The growalt rates do not exceed the long rerm aversge
growih rate For the logistics’supply chain industry i which the cash generating wnit operates Furure cash flows are discounted based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC), taking into acvount the
rishs that are specific fo (e cash generating units.

Key ptinns used for calenlating the value in use:
Cash generating anit TYSCFs RICO Group  8C5 DK Group SCS North SCS India
America Croup
Carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2032 20,944 9973 1178 5,467 21,137
Cartying amount of goodvall as at 31 March 2021 20,606 10113 L% 5,301 3,690
Basiz of recoverable ameunt Value in use Value inuse Value in nse Value in use Value in use
Pre-tax discounl rate 31 Morch 2022 75084 [ 6.00% 380% 2.70%%
Pre-tax discounl rate 31 March 2021 7.50% B.00%, B0 3,908 9.20%
Projection penod 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years 5 Vears
Terminal growth rate 31 March 2022 3.A0% 0.50%% 05085 1.00% 3. 00%%
Termunal growth rale 31 March 2021 3.40%% 1.00% 1,005 1,00% 3.00%%

Key assumptions have not changed significantly compared to the previous yes with the exception of discount rates used. For March 2022 and Mavch 2021, the recoverable amounts exveeded (heir carrving
amounts and conseguently no ympairement of goodwill was recognised for the years March 2022 and March 2021

Management believes that it is not likely for the assumptions used to change so sighificantly, as ra eliminars the excess of recoverable amounts.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial siat: {or the vear ended 31 March 2022
FAS wormivnnts e I Sdian rupees (3 bakhs exvept shure deifa sid orliervlse sattedr

168  Right of uss assets

a  The leases primarily conzists leasing of h , office premises & material handiing equiy with Jhe lease reom of more thon 12 months.
b Set ant below are the careying amounts of right of wse assets recognised and the movements during the year
Building Plant and Furniture and OTite equipment Vebicles Total
+qoipment fixtires
Neaf carrying amownt
Balance at 1 April 2024 0,502 80 572072 26.84 309.35 1,028 52 97,589.11
Addilions 2647450 3534932 - &N 143 92 20, 9%, 34
Reversals (less) (4,193.27) 11,518.76) (6.38) - {33 48) 1595189
Depreciation {less) (27.306.45) [2.252.85) {10.18) {13330 (43946} (30,194 .24)
Exchange differences on wanslatien of foreien operations 3.474,52 303,97 - 10.03 (4.34) 3.738.1%
Balance at 31 March 2021 §8,958.99 £,602.40 10.28 193.27 G556 98,427.50
Additians * 3734450 IR 11.80 - 181635 3851168
Reversals {less) {3,337.84) (34403} - 6531 3z 1558544}
Drepreciation {less} (29.644.59) (1.684.06} (5.38) 113105} {431 .69) 3191677
Exchange differances on | of foreivn af 1 { T 90 (49 44) - 1,53 .82 {187.99)
Balance at 31 March 2022 a1, 168,16 4,298.60 16.70 129.06 636.46 46,248.98
* Includes assets relating to leases acquired throuh bui eombi
¢ Set ond below are the carrying amoanis of lense liabilities and ibe movement during the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance al {he beginning of the year 1.18,619.06 1,20,803 44
Additions * 38357318 27,439 38
Actyetion of interest 8,039,738 13H 00
Payments {39.475.44) 136,582.72}
Reversals (6,158.83) 16,292 00}
Exchange ditferences on translation of foreign aperations (370,09 5,406, 76
Balance at the end of the year 1,194,027 .64 1,18,619,06
Current 34,370 20 30,163.96
Mon-current B4 645 44 2R 45570
Cash outftows for leases 1947546 16,582,72
* Includes liabilities relating to leases acquired through buisness combination
d  The lfliwing are recongnised in the st t of profit and less 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation expenses of right of use assets 31,916,77 30,194.24
Interest expenses on lease liabilities £.039.78 784400
Gain on tennination of lease 57339 34011
Expenses relating to shoit term leases and leases of low value asses 9.575.64 6, 77454
50,105.58 45.352.8%

Total amoant recognised in profit or loss




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amososes are in fndian rupees (2) fakhs except share dota and otherwise stated)

17 Equity accounted investees
The Group's interest in equity accounted investees comprises of the follewing Note

Interest in joint ventures (refer note i and ii below) A
Interest in assaciate (refer note iii below}

The Group's share of profit / (loss) in equity accounted investees are a3 follows Note
Share of prefit / (loss) in joint ventures/fassociate* A
Maotes:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

10,032 42 14,0350,32
10,002,42 10,650,32
Year ended Year ¢nded

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(47.50) {6.66)

(47.90) (6.66)

i) During the vear ended March 31,2021, the Group's share of net assets in TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt, Limited (TVSTLP) (joint venturey was diluted from 50%
to 31.2% as consequence of primary investment by CDC Greup PLC in TVSILP. This deemed disposal has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 28 and the
consequent gain of ¥ 6,490 lakhs has been disclosed in the tinancial statements as an exceptional item. The Group continues to treat its investment in TVSILP as a joint
venture on the basis of its rights and power under the new shareholders agreement with the ether investors.

ii) Since the investment in Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Limited, Australia is not material, the disclosures with respect to summarised financial information has not been
disclosed in the financial statements.

iii) The investment in Montara Verpacken mit System GmbH has been fully impaired as at 31 March, 2621 and an amount of ¥ 161,78 lakhs has been taken to the
statement of profit and loss during the vear ended 31 March 2021, Also, since the investment in Montara Verpacken mit System GmbH is not material, the disclosures
with respect to summarised financial information has not been disclosed in the financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2021, During the year, this investment
15 assessed not to be an associate in the absence of significant influence in accordance with Ind AS 28 and accordmgly presented as non-current investments (refer note
154),

A. Joint ventures
The financial information of the joint ventures and the carrying amount of the Group's interest in joint ventures is as follows :
31 March 2022 TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pet. Total

Limited

29.7% *

Non-current assets 1,00,879.71 1,00.879.71
Current assets 20,297 .99 20.297.99
Non-current liabilities (79.627.77) (79.627.71
Current liabilities {8,908.01) {8,908.41)
Met agsets 32,641.92 32,641 52
Group's share of net assets 9,699.37 9.699.37
Add : Assumed goodwill 84,90 $4.90
Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures as at 31 March 2022(refer noie below) 9,784.27 9,784.27
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Revenne 10,555.35 10,535.35
Profit 649,81 649 81
Other comprehensive income . -
Total comprehensive income 649,81 649.81
Group's share of Prefit {47 90} {47 .90}
Group's share of OCI - -
Group's share of total comprehensive income {47.90) (47.90)

* Share of net assets/profit computed based on diluted basis

Note - Certain adjustments in the reserves of the joint venture have not been considered in the consolidated financial statements of the Group in ling with Ind AS 28

b Ao




T¥S SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 24022
(A8 amowms are in Indian rupees (2 fakhs except share dota and otherwise stated)

17 Equity accounted investees (continued)

31 March 2021 TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt, Total
Limited)
31.2%
Non-current assets 81,183.15 81.183.15
Current asseis 2240751 2240751
Non-current liabilities (56,385.39) {50,385.359})
Current liabilities (15.673.98) (15.673.98}
Net assets 31.531.29 31.531.29
Group's share of net assets 9.837.76 9.837.76
Add : Assumed goodwill 84.90 54.90
Carrying amount of inferest in joint venture as at 31 March 2021 9,922.66 9.922.66
A. Joint ventures (continued} TVS Indusirial & Logistics Park Pri. Total
Limited
For the vear ended 31 March 2021
Revenue 5,850.04 5,850.04
Profit {21.33) 21.33)
Total comprehensive income {21.33) {21.33)
Group's share of Profit (6.66) {6.66)
Giroup's share of OCI - -
Group'’s share of total comprehensive income (6.66) {6.66)
Note:

(1) Certain adjustiments in the reserves of the jeint venture bave not been considered in the censalidated financial statements of the Group in line with Ind AS 28

(2) The principal activities of TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvi. Limited (TVSILP} consist of creating, developing, operating warehouses and Industrial infrastructure

facilities by executing turnkey projects, taking care of setting up or relocation of infrastructure,

Yy B — "—T:}\\\\\\




T¥5 SUPPLY CHATN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial stat fur the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amonnts are i fndian pagrecs (5 lokfs excopt shve doter omed ofvernlse st

13 A, Nen-controlling interasts
3t Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

TS SCS Global Freight Solutions Ld, (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 439,37 35504
FLEXOL Packaging {India) Linted - 3084
Whire Data Systems India Pvt. Ltd. 1u79.90 202462
TVS Taoyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Lid. 1,154.52 92,92
TVS Supply Chain Solutiens Ple. Lid, {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solubons Limited) - {1.435.24)
Rivo Lowistics Limited - 62074
Other NCI in subsidiaries of TVE Lagistics Investment UK Limited 761 L 23837
3.901.4% 3.934.89
B. Profit attribwtalde o won-controlling inferesis Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
TVE 5C8 Global Freight Solurions Lid, (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 40833 144,48
FLEXOL Packaying (India} Limited - 25.87
White Data Systems India Pvi. Lid. (4228 {154,740
T¥S Tovota Tsusho Sepply Chain Solutions Lid. 157,81 138,45
TVS Supply Chain Selutions Ple, Lid, (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain $olutiors Limited} 114,55} 1259650
Rico Lagistics Limited (17.02} {14.61)
Fir 3PL Warehousing Pvt Lid 4427 -
Other subsidiaries of T¥S Logistics Investment UK Limited (86.92) 1148
33014 (204E.26)
. Other comprehensive income atiributable lo pen-controlliog interests
T¥5 5CS Glebal Freight Selutions Lid. (Formerly knewn as TS Dyname Global Freight Services Linuted) G50 1.71
FLEXOL Packaying {India) Limited - 070
White Data Systems India Pvi. Lid. (2 343 1266
TVE Supply Cham Selutions Pre. Ltd (Formerdy known as TVS-Agianics Supply Thain Solutions Limited) {2624} (57.78)
Rico Logistics Limited 054 3156
SPC [nternational Limited - 13651
TS Tovata Tsusho Supply Chain Solulions Lid, 4.79 (4.40)
Fit 3PL Warchousing Pyt Lid (0.34) -
Other subsidiaries of TVS Logistics [nvesiment UK Limited (20663 15(.84
(43.99} 171.80
“The followany table ises the inti ion relating to each of the Group ‘s subsidiaries that has material NCI, before any intra-uroup eliminations:
31 March 2022 TVS SCS Glabal White Data TYS Tovetn
Freight Sototions Systems India  Tsusho Sopply
Lid. (Formerky Pvi. Lid. Chain Solutions
known as TVS Lid.

Dynamic Global
Freight Services

Limited}
MWCT %% 4. 19%% 45 00F% 40008
Mon-current assets 54141 3,080,235 409835
Currenl asseis 1452036 195192 121700
Men=cutrent labililies (63961 (41.88) (2.628.594)
Currens liabilities {5.231.901 {S40.49) (1800 12%
Nel assets 9.500.26 4.040.80 2.586.1%
Net nssets attributable 1o NCI 459.37 1.979.9% 1,154.52
Revenue 8524177 461,93 5,726.52
Profit 426866 {R0.23) 419.52
Othar comprehensive icome 525 47N 11.98
Total comprehensive intame 427391 191,03} 43150
Profit allacated to NCT J08.33 {42.28) 16781
G allacated 1o NCI 050 (2.34) 4,79
Exchange difterences on iranslation of foreign operati - . -
Total comprehensive income allocated 10 NCI 408.83 (44.62) 172.60
31 March 2021 TVS Supply Chain Rico Logistics FLEXOL TVE SC8 Global White Data TVS Toyota
Solutions Pte. Lid, Limnited Packaging Freight Solulions Svstemss India  Tsusho Supply
(Formerly known as {India) Limited Ltd. {(Formerly Pvt. Ltd.  Chain Solulions
TVE-Asianics Supphy known ag TVS Ltd.
Chain Solafinns Dynamic Global
Limited) Freight Services
Limited)
NC1% 6.51% 2 50% 11.94% 10.00% 49.00% 40.00%
MNonecurrent assets 353,716 40 4271 88 33517 239,54 2468 29 471061
Current asses 53,2953 57,934 G51.20 49,1%90,98 309212 2,375.09
Non-current liabilities (16,560 72) (26 138.21) {3813} [126.00% {41.83) 13,081.93)
Current Jialalities 134,793.37} (6]1.238.83) (3791} (A,767.18}) (1.336.70) 11608 58)
MNed assets {22.344.30) 24.319.58 148.33 5,550.35 4,131.88 2A454.7%
Ned assets attributable to NCI (LAS5.24) 274 30.84 S£5.64 2,024.62 981,92
Revenue L31,153%.40 1,59,874.55 222938 3432629 501.95 6,153.49
Prafr (L,E14.92) (584300 15149 1,286.07 {397.43) 34614
Cher comprehensive income 477 15) - 584 17.14 2256 (10.9%)
Total comprehensive incone (2.292.67) (584,30} {145.65) 1,303.21 {375.07) 335158
Profit allocated to NC1 (258.65) (1461} (25.87) 144,63 {194,749 13543
QCT allocated ro NCI (XL11) - a0 1.71 12,64 4 4
Exchange differences on lation of [oreign op 126.66) 31.56 - - - -
{317.42) 16.95 (25.171 146.39 (152.08) 134.08

Latal capiprehensive income allocated to NCI
—_— ~—




TVE SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the lidated financial stat ts For the year ended 31 March 3022
(A amtesings are i Fidian vigees () Tkl excepe share dasa amd otberwise stared)

19 Investments

A. Non-current investnients 3t March 2022 31 March 2021
Unquoted invesiment in body corporate at [air valwe
TH Apex Skill Development Cenive For Logistics 20.00 20.00
200,000 {31 March 2021 : 200.004G) equity shares of T 10 each
Montara ¥erpacken mit System GimbH )
21,004 {31 March 2021 - 21,004) equity shares of ewra | each 161.18 -
Pravision for Impairment in value of Investmenss
Montara Veapacken mit System GmbH (161.18) -
Z0.00 2400
Unquoted iny t in preference shares carried »l amortised cost
Cargowings Logistics Limbied 2,300.00 2.500.00
25,000,000 {31 March 2021 : 25,000,000) redeemable preference shares ("RPS") of T 10 each fuliy
pard up
2,500,900 2.5040.00
Provigion for Impairment in valve of Investments
Unquoted investments in preference shares
Cargowings Logistics Limited 12.500.00) (2.500.00)
(2.5040,00) (2,500.00)
Total non-corrent investments .60 20.00
Aggrepate amount of unquoted nvestments 252000 2,520,00
Aauregate amount of impairment in the value of investiments 2,300 00 2 50000
B. Carrent investments 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unquoted investment in debentares carried at amovtised cost
Prasanna Purple Mobility Salutions Private Limived (refer note i and 1 (a) below) - 25597
Wil {31 March 20211 25,400) Series [ NCD, 0. 1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of ¥ 1600
each
Prasanna Purple Mobility Soluhons Private Limited irefer note i and i {a} below) 301.65
Nil (31 March 2021, 30,6901 Senes [T WCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of T 1000
euch
Prasaimna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited (refer nate i and i {b) balow) 800,00
M {3 March 2021: 30,000} Optivnally Convertible Debentures of 2 1600 each
- 1,355.62
Tutol carrent investments - 1.355.62
- 1.355.62

Aggregate value of ungueted investmenis
Note :

Druring the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group bas seld the entite debenture insiraments w Drive s Enterprize Sclutions Limited for a consideration of T 1,822 10 lakhs ond derecognised the
investment in debentures along with b imerest accrued {refier note 21}, The Grouwp incwred a net loss of T 138.94 takhs for the year ended 31 March 2022,
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T¥S SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTEONS LIMITED

WNates tn the ¢ lidated i ial stat ts for the year ended 31 Rlarch 2022
FAR somrstins are B Ddion iwprecs (30 fakhs except share dave snd otherrve staied)

2t Deposits and olher receivables

Security deposils

Unsecured. considered good

Unsecured, credit impairad

Provision for credit impaired secwity deposits

Secority deposit to related parties
Unsecured, vonsidered pood

Other receivables
Loans and advances to employees

Finance lease receivables (refor note 15A and 38}

Receivable from others
Unisecured, considered u¢od
Unsecured, credit impaired
Provision for ereclic impaired receivaliles

X1 (hher financial azsets

Advantes recoverable in cash or kind
1insecured considered pood

Detivative asset (refer note 43(v))

Intérest accred om investmenis {refer note 19 B)

Crhers

22 Other non curvent assets

Prepaid expenses
Advance Tor supply of goods and servives
Unsecured, considered yood

Capital advances

Unsecured, conadered good
Unsecurad, considered doubeful
Provision for doubtful recenabiss

13 Imventories
{valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

Packing materials
Slock-in-trade
Stores and spares

Of the above, goods in transit

Nun-current Cwivent
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1444 16 342008 627981 3,M8.57
- - 113.02 12192
- - (113 02) (121,92}
444418 3,420.08 4,2Te.81 3,948.37
53057 464,83 -
521.57 464.85 - -
- - B53.10 1.5396.69
1.257.45 B38.97 369,28 302,53
- = B68.97 82577
- 18074 180,74
- = {150:.74) (180.74)
128746 RER.97 2.191.358 272499
6,223.1% 4,743.88 35716 667336
Noo-current Curvent

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- - 257.55 300.97

- - 35755 30097
. T 833 - -
< 605 24 - -

1.65 140,89 205.49

- 1,525.42 3o8.da 5. 46

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

133 15,53

165,31 140,07

165.31 14007

135.11 94,68

a4 4.06

£0.14} (4.00)

139.11 94 .68

311.7% 250.28

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

27068 183.01
28,607.24 22,268.72
290,04 21380
29,167.26 12,765.53
T1Z08 7876




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LTMITED
Motes to the consolidated financial statemends lor the vear ended 31 March 2022
(AN amananes ave in Indtan vipees (T lakls excepr share dota and othenise siaied)
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Trade receivables
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gross trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered pood 1,31.336.47 1,16.665 530
Credit [mpaired 12,852.50 9.865.41
1,44,188.97 1,26,530.91
Loss allowance
Credit lnpaired (12,852.50) (9.865.41)
(12,852 50} 19,865.41)
Net trade receivables 1,31,33647 1,16.665.50
MNar-cwrent 604 15 63246
Current 13035232 L16,033.04
Ageing of trade receivable from ihe due daie of payment:
Mon-Carrent
31 March 2022 Notdue <& months 6 months to 1 1to X vears 1 to3years Dove than 3 yeprs Taotal
Unsecurad, considered good
Undisputed 604,13 - - - - - G415
604;15 = - - - - 604,13
31 March 2021 Notdue  <émeonths 6 months to 1 1ie 2 years 2o 3years  Morethan 3 years Tatal
Unsecwred. considered pood
Undisputed G32.46 - - - - - 63246
43246 = - - - = 632,46
Current
31 March 2022 Not due  <6menths & monthsto 1 1 to 2 years 2o 3 yeart  More than 3 years Total
yedr
Unsecwred, considersd pood
Undisputed T9536.82 42 005 0} 390995 731.03 T31.38 297625 13073232
7933682 42,996 M 390996 731.03 .36 29735 1,30,732.32
Trade Recsivables - eradil impaired
Urddesputed &00.35 231005 1,580.84 4,139,530 1973 9% 140 04 12,044.78
Disputed 119.20 16.57 31.45 2007 14.71 G05 73 30772
TI035 232662 1,912.29 415957 2.988, 70 74577 12,852.50
£0.056,37 45,523.52 5.821.25 4,341.60 3,720.06 371202 1.43,504.82
31 March 2021 Notdue < 6months & months to 1 1to 2 years 2103 years  More than 3 years Total
year
Unsecured, considered good
Undispited &9, 182,30 41,470 20 2,965 85 P20 16 [I182.71 20832 1,16,033.04
&9, 18230 41,410.20 2,963 85 1020016 118771 208,82 116,033 04
Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Undisputed 109,92 1,26%.68 1,220.03 387100 1568655 101537 9,262 57
Dispuled - - - - 1209 59075 B0 84
199.92 1,269.68 1,220.05 387100 1,658 64 1,606.12 986541
69,382,232 42.750.88 4.I8_3.‘)0 -@I‘IG 188635 1.814.94 1.25.898.45
Transiecved financiol assets that are derecognised in their entivety and with continwing involvement
The Company has transferred certain receivables under non-recourse an where substantial risk and rewards related o these receivables are transfemed to the buyer and e same 15 de-
recopnised from the Group's balance sheet,
Particulars 31 March 2632 31 March 2021
Carrying amount of transferred receivables 4661674 22,076.54
Carnane amount of exposures retained by the Company - -
Transferred financial assets that are not d gnised in thetr entirety
Durinig the year, the Company has entered into a recourse Factoring and the Company has not rransferred sul ially all risks and 5, hence these assets have not been de-recoguised i its entirety
Pariculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying amowst of transferred assets measured st amontised cost 2,909.98 -
Carrying amount of associaled liabilities | Part of borrowings) 2,999,985 -
Fair value of assets 2,000,093 -

Fair vatue of associated liabilities 2,999.98 .




TV5 SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
1AM aivomines are 1 fndiae rapees (3 fakdis exeepy share data aned offencise stahed

22 Cash and cash equivalents (refer note below) 31 March 2022 31 March
Cash on hand 3435 [
Cheques on hand 517.45 517
Balan¢e with banks

On current aoCoMNts 83,134.20 53.097.57
Deposits with onginal matuity of less than three months 15,675.64 $28.26
9881054 £3.625.83
99.382.64 53.606.24

Note:

As per the Facility agreement under the refinancing arrsngement {refer note 30A{1)}, the Group is required to maintain minimum <ash and cash equivalents balance of TFSD 20 miilion.

26 (ther bank balamces 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deposits with original maturity of mate than 3 menths 1,107,28 371597
1,107.28 3,715.97
Carrent 1,102.08 292252
Non-Current 520 793 45
27 Loans - Current 31 March 2022 31 March 202(
Loan to others
Unsecured, vonsidered doubtiu) 1,004.63 004,65
Provision for doubtful leans (1,004.63) (1.003.63)

Note: There are no Joans or advances in the nature of loans granted te Promosers. Dicectors, Key managenal person or olher related parties.

13 Other current assets 31 March 2422 31 March 2021
Advamce related to supply of goods and services to parties other than related parties
Unsecured, considered sood 3.728.63 416110
Unsecured. considered doubttul 157777 171060
Provision for doubifidl receivables _ (157297 (1,710.60%
372863 416110
Advance related to supply of gonds and services to velated parties
Unsecured, considered pood 531.84 156,46
531.84 136,46
Balances with statutory authorities
Unsecured, considered sood 3.521.64 3,631.13
3.521.64 3463113
Unbiilied revenue 34.976.37 2946172
Other curvent assets
Prepaid expenses 10,784.42 926278
Others 637 44328
53.549.27 47,096.54




TVS SUFPLY CHAIN 30LAUTIONS LIMITED
Roles to the Jidaced fi ial stat Is for the vear ended 31 Mavch 2022
A amomnis are in Indion rapees (T lakhis except shave duta and otherwise staied)

294 Share capital 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Awthorised share caplesl
538,000,000 equity shares of £ | erch (31 March 2021: 34,500,000 of T 10 cach} 5BE0.00 348040
1.200.600 (31 March 2021 1,200,000 prefercnce shares of 2 14 each # 120,00 1240
Nit {31 March 2021: 1,100,000) preferenve shares of B 100 each - 110600
Tssped
Eiyuity shares
138,304,010 equity shares ef 2 | each at por (31 March 2021: 13,810,401 of 2 10 each at par) [XtIN) 1,341.04
50,668,000 equity shares of 2 1 each at a premium of £ 18.57 (31 March 2021: 5.066,800 of 2 14 cach al a premium of $ 185,72 per sharc) 506,68 506.68
32,231,940 equity shores of T | ¢ach a1 o premium of T 18.50 <31 March 2021: 3,223,194 of ® 1) each ata premium of T 185,00 per share} m 312,32
2,758,000 ¢quiry shates of 2 | cach a1 a premium ef 2 6.50 (3] March 2421: 275,800 of € 10 each al a premium of € 65.00 per share) 2758 1758
34,568, 160 vquity shores ot 2 | cach at 3 premium of 242,49 (31 March 2021: 4,456,816 of T 10 each at 2 premium of T 424.92 per share)} 445.68 445 68
17,966,070 equity shares of 2 | each at a premivm of 2 63,50 (31 March 2021 1,798,607 of T 19 each a1 a premivin of T 685,00 per share) 174,56 174,86
3.635,150 equity shares of ¥ | each at a premium of 2 94.00 (31 March 2021 : 3,163,515 of 10 gach 31 2 premium o £ 940,00 per share) 316.35 316.35
250,000 equity shares of T 1 each at a premium of 9400 (31 March 2021 : 95,000 of T 10 each at a premium of T 93000 per share) G950 950
12,089,314 equity shares of T | each al a premimm of ¥ 143.75 (31 March 2021 ; Nil 120,59
143,680 equily shares of T | each a1 a preriumn of % 94,00 (31 Morch 2021 : Mil) { Refer note 298 ) 144 -
356,300 equiny shares of 2 1 ¢ach (31 March 2021 : Nil) { Refat nole 298 ) 3356 -
31,086,290 (31 March 2021 : Nil} equity shares of 21 gach #1 a premiom of 2 143,75 per shane * 11087 -
14,33.820 {31 March 2021 : Nil) equity shares of ¥) each at a premiom ol % 127.00 per share 14.24 -
26,004 {31 Miarch 202 : NH) equily shares of 21 cach a1 a premium of ¥ 94.04 per share £.26 -
Total issued capiial 1.642,37 3.189.0]
Called, Subseribed and Paid up
Eguity shares
362,637,230 equily shares of T 1 (31 March 2021; 31,730,133 of T 10 each) 362637 17300
Add: Amount paid up on 1,600,000 equity shares of € | sach forfeiled at 2 0.2 each (31 March 202): 166,000 of T 10 cach 32v 3.26
Forfeited a1 € 2 each)
3,629,587 3,176.21
# 15,351 (31 March 2021: 15,3513 0.000 1% Junive, red bl sertible, panicipating prefe shares have been classified as a financiat liability (see note 30%.
Note - The Board of Di of the Company in ils ing held on T ber 15, 202] and sharehiolders in the E dinary General Meeling held on January 31, 2022 approved the sub-division of
shares from T 10 per share 1o T | per shure, Shares inf i d in the Mancial slat s is adjusted for the share splil The number of shares used for the calcwlalion af amings per share, and
the camings per share in Note 29F (including that in The n.omparauv: periodsd, have been adjusted For p 10 Parsgraph 64 of Ind A5 33 - "Eamings Per Share”, prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013
a. Reconciliation of shares ding at the beginming and at end of the reporting year
31 March 2022 — 30 March 2021 .
Moz T im Iakhs Moz T im lakhs
Equity thares
Al the beginning of the vear 3.17,30,133 317301 3,17.30,133 3174
Additional shares pursuzm Lo share splil during the year 28,545,797 - - -
Shares issued during the year { refer note below) 4,53,35,900 45336 - .
Quistapding av the emd of the year 36.26.37.230 3.4626.37 31730033 317380

The Group has issued equity shares of 31,086,790 at a face value of T | cach 16 Exer Special Oppertunilies Master Fund for a premium of € 142,75 per share.

b. Terma/rights attached to equily shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having face value of T | per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share, The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian tupees,
The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircetors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting ("AGM™).

. Ter ights attached to pr shares

The preference shares shall he lative, Ted bl il I & shares {‘pred shares'). The pesfenace shares shall cooy o prefereotial right to dividends aver the
equity Sharzs. The preference shares shell carry a ﬁud rate of pnfmmal dividend at Ihe rate of 0.0001% per anmum. [ addition 16 1he lixed rate of dividend, the prefi harchalders shall, at their
dizeretion, be entilled 10 aditional preferential dividend and carry a preferential right to dividends over the equity shares . The preference shares shall be rodeemed From time 1o time a5 may be required

by the preference shareholders a1 fme value plus the redemiption prermium payable thereon na later than 20 years from the date of allommen or longer period as may be preseribed by law.

The: holder of preference shares have a right to vote only on resohutions placed before the company which directly affect the rights aitached o preference shares and, any resolution for the winding up of
the compary o for the repay or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and voting right on & poll shall be in proportion o the share in the puid-up preference share capital ef the company.
On winding vp ot repaymem of capital, the preference shareholders shall carry a prefe | right of repay
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Naotes io the lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amounrs are b Fudian rupees () Jakdis exeope shove deate and vihorise stated)

294 Share capilal (continued)
d. Details of shaveholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Number of shares % holding Number of shares * holding
Equity shares of T 1 each {March 2021: T10 each), fully paid vp
T ¥ Sundram Lyengar & Sons Private Limited * - - 1,07,27,343 35.81%
TV$S Mobility Private Limited * 10,72,73.450 29 58%
CDPQ Private Equity Asia Pte Ltd - - 1,21,56,862 38.23%
Mahogany Singapore Company Ple. Ltd 1,88,39310 5.20% - 0.00%
Omega Te Heldings Ple Lid, Singapore - - 1585847 3.00%
DERSR Logistics Savices Private Luited 3,7502, 140 10.34% 37.50.214 11.82%,
T 5 Rajam Rubbers Private Limited €,56,13 570 18.00%% = -
Exor Special Opportumities Master Fund 42569 160 11.74%

* The members of the TVS Family had enterad imo a Memovandum of Family srangemeant ("MFA™) daned 10 December 2026 in order 1o align and synchronize the swiership’ comirol over various

companies! buz with the t of the respective companies, as was being done by the respective branches’ sub-branches of 1he TVS Famuly. In the context of the above, a Composite
Scl ol Amal oo and Arcany ("Scheme™) under sections 230 te 232 of the Companies Act, 201 3 was filed with Hoa"ble National Company Law Tiibumal, Chennai Banch (“NCLT”) and
an order was pronounced on 6th D ber 2021 wniny the S<h by the NCLT.

Consequent to the same, and with effect from 4 Febrnuary 2022, the TSR Mobility and Supply Chain Solutions Business Undertaking of TV Sundram Ivengar and Sons Provste Limited {TVES")
wcluding 19,72,73 430 equity shares repregenting 29. 70% equity shares of TVE Supply Chain Solutions Limited was, as a result of the demerger from TV S5, wensferred 1o and vested upon TVS
Modblity Private Limited [ formerly known as T.S Rajam Dhstribution Services Private Limited). Consequent to the above, TV S Mobility has bacome the Promater of the Company.

0.0001 % Cwmulative, redeemahle, non-convertible, participating preference shares of T 10 each,

fully paid up

Tata Intematicnal Limited Tar 50.01% 1677 50.01%
Tala Industries Limited 1674 49 94, .67 19,99%,
0,0001% Nan- Iative, pariicipating pulsorily convertible preference shares of T 10D

earh, fully paid up (Series A}

Mahogany Singapore Company Pre. Lid - 0.00%% 10,23 350 [[LERCEY

VMLY% Noo- Cumwlative, Non-Pacticipating, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shaves of
19 gach, Tolly paid op

David Robbing 19,998 3355% 39,008 .05
M3 Krishnan - G.00% 9992 5.26%
Suehow Py Ltd - 000 12.004 6.32%
R Dinesh - (0P 2084 1.58%
Sanyrve Shanna 40,002 333533% 40,002 2.05%
Taun Khanma - LLELEY 45,006 23.69%
Andrew Jones A0, N5 3333 40,002 1.05%

e, Details of shareholding of promoters

31 March 20212 31 March 2621
Number of % holding % Change Duriwg  Number of shares % holding % Change Puring
shares the year the year
TV Sundram lyenuar & Sons Private Limnited - 0,008 =100 % 1,07.27.343 3381% 0.00%
TVE Mobility Private Limited 107275430 29.58% 1906 (0% - - -

o 3
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN 50LUTIONS LIMITED
Nirtes to the ¢ lidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 Barch 2022
CAN aaroamiy ave Bt Tadian nipees (8 fakhs cxeept share data amd othernse stated}
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Other equity
Securities premium

Securiies pramium is used to record e premiun recetved on issue of shares. It iz utilised in secordance with Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2015,

Capital reserve
During prior years, the Company had reissued the shares forfeited. The profit on reissue of such forfeired shares has been immsferred to capinl reserve.

Capital redemption reserve
The Comparty has redeemed preference shares issved to Tata Inlervational Limited and Tata Industries Limited, o of profits of the Company. A sum equivalent to i nommal amount of the shares
redecmed bas been iranaferred 1o capital redemption reserve in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013,

Share based payment reserve

The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employecs under Emplovee stock option plan.

Exchange differences on translating the finamcial stalem ents of a foreign operation
Exchange differeres arising on translation of the foreiyn aperations are 1 ised in other prehensive income as deseribied 1 aceounting policy and accurnulated it 2 separate reserve within cquity.
The cwitulative gmount is reclassified to profic or loss when the et investent is disposed-oiT.

Effective portion of cash flow hedges

The Group uses hedying instrumenls as part of ils management of toreign currency tisk and interest rate nsk associated an barowings For hedying foreign curmency and inferest rate risk, the Group uses
foreign currency forward contracls, cross currency swaps, forgign curency option contracts and interest rate swaps, To the extent these hedues are effective. the change in fair value of the hedging
thatument is recognised in the effective portion of cash flow hedges. Amounts recognised in the effective portion of cash flow hedges i3 reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the hedyed
item atfects protit or loss (e.g. interest payments},

Compulserily convertible preference shares

Chin une 8, 2018 and Avgust 220 2018, the Company has allotted 13,340 and 25,660 Mo Cumulalive, Moo-Participatng, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {“CCPE"} of ¥ 10 each
respectively, at 3 premium of € 940 gach 10 identified persons on a preferential basis for a consideration of T 126.73 Jakhs and T 243 77 lakhs respectively. CCPS carry o dividend of 0.001% per anmum
and the dividend nghts are non- cumulative. On November 20, 2018, the Company has issued honus shares of 151000 to the sharsholders of CCPS in the ratio of 1:3.87 and the securities premium
account was utilised to the extent of T 15,10 akhs for the issue of said bonus shares. The preference shares to be converted into equal number of equity shares ranking pari-passu with the existing equity
shares, after the end of four years from the date of issue or earlier a1 the option of the Board. In the event of hquidation of the Company before oo 100 of prefi shares, the holders of
preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the repayment of capital Durig the yvear ended 3151 March, 2022 the Company has converted 69,933 prefercnce shares into equty shares of
49,998 ranking pact-passu with the existing equity shares These shares have been sub-divided into T 1 each in the extraordinary general meeting held on January 31, 2022,

On February 7. 2020, the Company has sllotted 10,23.350 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Prefersnce Shares ("CCPS™) of T 100 each, at 2 premium of T 1610.07 each to Mahogany Sinpapore
Company Pte. Led ("CCPS Helder™) on a preferemial basis, for a considerstion of apprax. T 17,500 lakhs. Each CCPS eatries a minuiun prefercntial dividend rare of 0.0001% and in addition to and
after paymenl of such preferential dividend, the CCP3 Holder would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any dividends paid w te holders of shares of any ather class {including equity sharesy or
senes on & pro reta, As- lf-conwrtod basis. Each CCPS woutd be converted o fully paid-up equity shares ranking pari-passu with the exisling equity shares, in the ratio of 1.1 {subject to such

plated in the subscription agreement dated January 22, 2020 executed by and amongst inter aha the Company and the CCPS Holder (“S5A™). on the earlier of (i) expity of 2
period ol‘ IS {e.lr'htr.en} moniths from the clasing date (as defined under the 354) (February 7, 20200; and (ji) the date when a prospective sharehelder (as defined under the SSAY (including such
p holder’s atfiliates| acquires equity shares or equity securities convertible inte equity shares representing. in the sygresare. al teast 7% {Seven percent) of the then share capital of the
Compsny ton a fully diluled basis} fin one or more ransactions). Duting the year ended 315t March 2022, the Company has converted e entire 10,23,350 CCPS inte 12,0893 equity shargs of T 10
each at a premium of T 1,437 56 per share. These shaves bave been sub-divided into T 1 each in the extraordinary peneeal mecting held on Janpary 31, 2022,

Mher items of CCT

Remeavarements of defined benefit liability/{asset) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(hpening balance 7741 {23.02)
Remeasurements of detined benefit liability/{asset} {net of taxes) (9723 10543
Closing balance (19.81) T7.41

Remeusurements of defined hanefit Rabilityfasset)
Remeaswements of defned benefit liability/{agsel} comprises actearial gains and losses on present value of detined benefit obligation and return on plan assels (xeluding meerest income).

Capital management

The Group's policy is to maititain a sirong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and o sustain future develop of the ¢

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘debt’ 12 "equity’. For this pupose, debt is defined os total debt. comprising interest-beacing loans ancd bomowings and obligations under Lease liability. Equity
comprises all components of equty.

The Group's debt 1o equity ratie is as follows:

3 Maurch 2022 31 March 2021
Total current and non-current bomrowings D = 1,76,372.25 1,54,792, 16
Debt 1,76,378.25 1,54,792.16
Tatal equity 75,391.46 53,225.87

Delpt to equity ratie 234 2.91




TY¥S SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Motes 1o the lidated I fal stat for the year ended 31 March 2022
FAN comitintis ave By Dudions mepees 130 fakhs exeeps shave dara amd otheneize stored

IE Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calewations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of <quity shares ourstanding for purpeacs of basic and diluted camings per share caleulanon are as followa:

(i} Profit {loss) attributable to equity shareholders 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit {loss) for the vear, atiributable to the equity holders from continuing operations f4,078.17) {7.020.61)
Protit (loss) fon the year, amrilwalble vo the equiry bolders from discontinued operations (9210} {24397}
(i} Weighted average number of equity shares 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Weighted average nunber of squity shares outslanding during the year 33.94,29,140 3).73,00.330
Add - Womber of sheres relating to compulserily convertible preference shares 12.00,020 1.21.33.500
Woeighted average number of equity shares used m the caleulation of basic earmings per share 406,260,160 329434830
Adjustments for dilutive effect
- Number of shares relating to Management Incentive Flan 28,06,508 71,220,922
Weighted sverage number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted sarmings per share 34,3435 668 33,65.35.752
30 Borrowings
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a) Nok-current borrowings
Secured term Loans from banks 73,347.93 04,082,97
Secwred tenn loans from finsaeial mstiutions - 0.90
Total non—rorrent barrowings 73.547.93 94,003.87
(b} Currend borrowiogs
Cash credit from banks
Secured 175 182 88
Bills discounting
Unsecured 5,005 €9 854,47
Revolving credit Facility
Secured 43, 30814 29,175.95
nsecwsd - -
Loans repayable on demand
Secured 1,000.00 -
Unsecurad 8,200.00 3 .981,45
Redeemalile preference shares {unsecured) 891 .50 201,60
Other short tevin loans
Securad 63.03 121,16
Unsecured, related party 300.00 340,00
78,865.23 55,547.51
Current portion of fong term borrowings
Secured tenmn foans from banks 23,965.09 5. 160.7%
23.965.09 5,160.78
Tetak curvent borrowings 1,02.430.32 60.708.29
Information shaut Group's exposure to interest rate and liquidiey risks is included in note 43
A, Terms and cepayment scheduole
Terms and cendiions of owstanding borrowings are as follows:
Carrying a8 at
for faklis of INR Cuarrency Nominal Interest  Year of maturicy 31 Mavch 2022 31 March 2421
rate
Secured terim foan from banks
DBS Bank Limited, Axis Bank Limited & Standard UsD / GBPF 2.10% + | month 022 - 2005 4,614 .54 9892328
Chartered Bank Limvited (refer note {i} & (i) below) LIBOR
200% + CAS
¢.0326% + 1 Month
SONIA
HDFC Bank Limited INR 760 - 9.0% 2023 422.25 2047
IDFC Furst Bank Lunited GBP 3 40%, 2023 2447643 -
¥7,513.02 924375
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30 Borrowings {continued)

A. Terms and vepayn ent schedule {continaed)
Corrying anount as at
In lakhs of INR Currency Nontimal Interest  Year of maturity 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
rate

Secured ternt loan from finumciul instiniions

(her finaneia] nstibions INR - - - 0,90
- 0.5
Secured cush credit faciliviey from banks*
Yes Bank Limited [NR MCLR. + 2.25% p.a. - - 13288
HDFC Bank Limited MR B.75%% - 1.75 -
1.75 182.88
Unsecured bill discounting / Factoring *
IDFC First Bank Limited INR. 6.50% - 2,999.98 -
TREDS - Invaicemart MR 562% - 1,322.25 41412
DBS Limited (Paymg Agent) R 65084 - 773,46 440,53
509559 B54.47
Secared revelving credit facility
DBS Bank Limited, Axis Bank Linited & Standard GBP 205% +CAS - 43,308 16 2017595
Chartered Bank Limited (refer note (1} below) 0.0326%+1 Month
SONlA
43,308,16 29,7595
. } laans repayable on d i
DBS Bank Limited INR 6.40% - 1,000, 00 -
1,000.00 -
Curecured loans repayable on demand™
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd TR 7.11%5-8.20% - - 5,400.00
Axis Bank Limired IMR. 6.25% - 5.060.00 6,380 00
HDFC Bank Limited INR. 60054 - 16,994 00 10.550.00
DES Bank Limited INR. 6.4 - 4.500.00 -
IDFEC Frrst Bank Limited INR. £.75% - 1,550 00 1.550.00
Others NR - 145
28200,00 2398145
A, Termis and repavment schedule {continued)
Carrying amoumd as at
fni fukdes of INR Currency Nominal laterest  Wear of maturity 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
rate
Redeanable preference shitres
insecured TNR C.0001% - 89.60 £51.60
#91.60 $91.60
Ether short icrm loans®
Banc Sabadell - Secured EUR 2.75% - o8.03 121,16
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited {Unsecured) MR 7008 - 300,00 33000
358.03 del.l6
1.76.378.25 1,54,792, 16

* These are repavable on demand or payable within 4 period of 12 months.

Note:

i) On March 26, 2020, the Group has refinanced the existing bank term loan of USD 1,001.61 lakhs & GBF 204.60 lakhg {from a Cotsortium of Banks/finanical institutions) with a fresh tenn loan of
USD 300 lakhs and GBP 783.92 lakhs and revolving credit facility of GBP 495.11 lakhs, from DBS. SCB & Axis Baok The tenm loan is repavable between March 2022 and March 2025, Revolving
credin facility was onginally repayable by March 2022 and can be renewed for a further peried. During the vear, this facility has been rerwewed and the same is repayable by March 2023,

i} During the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022 the Group enteved into hedumy contracts to hedge the forein currency: risk on the principal losn amount of the 1erm loar that was
refinanced on March 26, 2020. The Group has adopted hedge accounting for these hedging contracts {refer note 43(v).

B. Secured leans

Secured term boun frem baoks

USD { GBP term loan from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limiwed & Standard Chanered Bark availed by T¥S Supply Chain Solutions Pre. Lud. (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions
Pre Limited}and its subsidiaries is ] by provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

USD / GEP termi loan from DBS Bank, Axis Bank Lintited & Standard Chartered Bark availed by TVS Logistics Tnvestments UK Limited and its subsidiaries iz sccuved by 2 charge on its shares, its
other agsets and is also secured by guarantee provided by TV Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

Teom Ipans from HDFC Bonk Limued ave secured by hypathecation of vehicles acquired out of the Toan.

Working capital loan from Yes bank wes secured against the current assels of Flexal Packaging {India) Privaie Limited This loan has been repaid in the current year.
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Borrowings {continued}

Cash credit fazitity from banks

Revolving credit facility

GBP revolving credit facility from DBS Bark, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte, Ltd, {Fonmerly known as TV S-Asianics Supply Chain
Soluticns Pte. Limited) and its subsidiaries is secowed by wuarantee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solations Linuted.

GBF revolving credil facility from DES Bank, Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Lowistics Investments UK Limited and its subsidiaries is seeured by a chacee on its
shares. its other assets and is also secured by guaraniee provided by TY S Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

Loans repavable on demaond from bunks

Loan from Bane Sabadell weie availed against the sceurity of cunent assets of TVS Logistics [benia 3.1,

. Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has cwnulative. redeemable. non-convertible, paoapaing preference shares. These preference shares have been classified as a liabiliry. For rights, preferences and restrichions atrached 1o
preference shares attached 1o these preference shares refer note 29A.

B. Changes in liabilities arisingz from financing activities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening borrowing 1.54,792.16 2,16,011.50
Cash Hows 21633.22 (70,439,909}
Unamortised transaction cost 1.375.07 528.61
Changes in fair values (1.307.98) 83341
Currency translalion adjusiment (112223 TE57.74
Clozing berrowing 1,76,378.2% 1.54,792.16

MNote: For changes in habilities arising from lease liabilities, refer note 16B(s)

E. Wilfwt Defautter
The Company is not declared as wilful defzultar by any bank of financial mstitubion or other lender.

F. Utilisation of borrowings

A) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial instirutions for llw specific purpose for which il was taken al the balance sheet date.

B} The quartery retams/statements of currenl assets filed by the Group with banks or financial insrinutions in relation to secured boriowings wherever applicable, are in agresment with the books of
acconnts.

31 Trade payables 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade payables lo related pariies 1457 61 231.22
Other trade pavables * 1.45,146.44 1,15,170.34

1,45,314.05 1.15.401.56
* Includes dues for payment Lo Micro and Small enterprizes Rs. 2.670.26 lakhs (31 Warch 2021 1,821 57 takhs}
Ageing of trade payables from the due date of pavment:
31 March 2022 Not due | year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Undispured dues - M3ME 34717 1.6592.04 42 56 8150 6.9% 267026
Undisputed dires - Cithwrs 8315998 5576698 144133 T05,88 156962 1,42,643.79
84,007.15 5745902 1,483.8% 787,38 157661 1.45.314.05
31 Mavch 2021 Neot due = | year 1to 2 years 2 to } years Maore than 3 years Taotal
Undisputed dues - MSME 124.06 151551 128,55 3588 17 52 1,821,586
Undisputed dues - Others T1,285.72 3371502 4.371.66 1.647.07 2,502.43 1,13,580.00
71,407.78 35,200.63 450025 1,682.95 1.519.95 1,15,401.56
32 Other Dnancial Nabilities
Nosi-curvent portion Current poriien
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 Mavch 2021
Derivative liabiliy {refer note 43(v}) 3,238.00 1.6599.24 - .
Amount due 1o employees - - 8,988 85 J10,045.08
Interest acerved bul pot due on bortowings - - 976 12892
Pavable to factor - - 28283 43,76
Security deposils 3222 1,078.23 4313 5814
Defenved consideration® 597314 - 34754 1,354.09
Capital creditors - 1901 64075 1,381.21
Otllwers - - - G204
10,143.45 287848 14.392.89 14.211.24

* Deferred consideration includes pavable towards scqusition of shares in RICO Lowishics Limited, UK amounting 1o ¥ 5,973 14 Lakhs (31 March 2021; Nil), in T¥S SCS Logistics Management Co.
Lad {Formerly known as TLM Logistics Manogement Co, Ltd. ) amouvmting to Nil (31 March 2020 T 99401 Lakhs} sud m TVS Supply Chain Solutions Australie Holdings Pry. Lt Holdings Py Lid.,
Australia amounting 1o T 347 54 Lakhs (31 March 2021 ¥ 340.08 Lakhs)
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15 [av the year ended 31 March 2022

Provisions (refer pote A7)

Non-current portinn

Current portion

31 March 2022 31 March 24021 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Pravisions for employee benefits
Liability for retirernent benetit abhgations 96252 6id 84 505,44 72780
Liability for compensated absences 470.27 33262 280257 243418
Other provisions
Provision for dilapidarion 2R55. 22 2,601 .56 A8 6T -
Provision for warranties - - 904 1694
Provision for litigations - - S0 45,04

4,293.01 3.599.02 343572 325105
Movement in other provisions Dilapidati War Litigati Tatal
Balance as at 1 April 2020 436.24 19.94 258,53 71471
Provisions made during the year 2.503.0% - 3282 23359
Provisions uhsed during the year (408.81) - {222.31) (631.12)
Foreign exchange 71.04 - - T
Balance a3 at 31 March 2021 1,601,56 19.94 69.04 2.690.54
Provisions made during the year 29546 - 14.26 ElEe
Provisions utilised during the vear - {10.00) (32.20} {42.20}
Uinwinding of discount - - . -
Foreign exchange adj 14.87 - 14.87
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,011.89 3.94 51.10 2,572.93
Dilapidation
This represents the present obligation of the cost likely to be incurred 1o restore the leased assets ai the tmie of handing over to the lessors,
Other non-current liabilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferved rent 24.47 5
24,47 -

Other curren liahilities

Deferred raverue

Statutory dues
Advaness from cuslomers
Orhers
TN
PN AN
(a2 Gt
1%/ &>
([ =
Lot T
,\,i('_‘ *
% 57

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

227292 -
9,526.22 16,521.91
209518 66,74
367421 4.287.13
17,568,53 15.775.78
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36A  Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its subsidiades in varigus geographies make contributions, generally determiined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying
employees in accordance with the local laws and regulations in the respective country which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to
make the specified coniributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards such
defined contribotion plans for the vear agerepated to ¥ 18,908.28 lakhs (31 March 2021: T 17.942 85 lakhs).

Defined benefit plans

Provisions for retitement benefit
cblizations

For details about the related emplovee benefit expenses. see note 10,

Dretails of retirement benefit obligations

Current

31 March 2022
503.44

31 Mairch 2021
72739

The Compary and its subsidiaries in India have a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (the Plan). governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Plan entitles
employees. who have rendered at least five years of continuous service, o gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wapes for every completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months, hased on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee at the time of retirement, death or termination of employment.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, irterest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

A. Funding

The gratmty plans of the Company and certam sebsidianes in India is a funded plan with the Group making periodic contributions to a fund managed by certain fnsurance

companies. The retirement benefit plans of the overseas subsidiaries noted above are unfunded.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (assef) liability

The following tabte shows a reconciliation trom the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit {asset)/ liability and its components:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the vear 320429 3.037.66
Acquired in business combination 207.53 -
Benefits paid {497.39) {283.94)
Current service cost 43224 509,99
Interest cost 97,45 152.36
Past service cost - 27
Actuarial {zains) losses recognized in other comprehensive income

- changes in demographic assumptions (15.36) (27.39)
- changes in financial agsumptions (36.63) 4214
- experience adjusiments 151.58 1173.02)
Exchanpe differences (7¢.01) 37,78
Balance at the end of the year 3,56.54 3.294.2%

Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 1.901.56 1.70%.63
Acquirted in business combination 1214 -
Contributions paid 319.91 29226
Benefits pmd {210.28) {191.853)
[nterest income 9L71 102.42
Actuarial gains / {losses) recognised m other comprehiensive income (23.406) (10,90
Balance at the end of the year 2,091.58 1.901.56
Net defined benefit (asset) / liability 1,472.96 1,392.73

C, Expense recognised in profit or loss

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Current service cost 432.24 509.54
Interest cost 97 .89 15234
Past service cost - 272
Intgrest income (91.71) (142.42)

438.42 562,65
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35A  Employee beaelits {continved)
Defined benefit plans (continued)
D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial pain / {loss) on defined benefit obligation (99.99) 166,27
Actuarial gain / {loss) on plan assets (23.46) 10.90%
{123.45) 149.37

E. Plan assets
Plan assets comprise of the tollowing:
Insurer managed funds

F. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actiariad axvumptiong at the reporting dete were:
Discount rate

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

2,091.58

190156

2,091.58

1,901.56

31 March 2622

31 March 2021

3%-7.55%

2.17%- 8.1%%

Future salary growih 0% - 10% 0% - 10%
Attrition rate 0%4-58% %2-38%
Expected return on plan assets 3%-7.5% 4.13%-6.95%

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reperting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constani. would have aitected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below:

31 March 2422

31 March 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Driscount rate 1% movement) (73.29) (34,98} 38.62
Future salary growth (1% movement) 73.65 3471 (36.92)
Aftrition rate { | % movement} (12.85) {33.2%9} 20165

Alshough the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cashflews expected under the plan, it dees provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the

assumptions shown.

G. Maturiiy Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

31 Murch 2022

31 March 2021

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1,672.38 1,352.21
Between 2 and 3 years 1.390.75 1.185.11
Between 3 and 10 years 220 74,24
Beyond 10 years 49,65 230.16
The weighted average duratien of the defined benefit obligation 713 9.63

36B  Share based payments

The Company has Management [ncentive Plan {MIP) scheme under which share options are granted to employees which has been approved by the shareholders of the
Company. In accordance with the terms of the plan, eligible employees may be granted oplions to purchase equity shares of the company if they are in service on exercise
of the grant. Each employee share option converts inte one equity share of the Company on exercise at the exercise price as per the scheme. The option carry neither aghts
to dividend nor veting rights. Options can be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry.
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36B Share based payments {continned)

Fair value of share options granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during the year is T 51,10 {MIP I} & ¥ 43.80 (MIP 11)* (Previous year. ¥ 518.30 (MIP 1)). Opticns were priced
using a Black Scholes option valuation mode) & Monte Carla simulativn model for MIP [ and I respectively, Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been
adjusied based on management's best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is based en the
histarical share price volatility of guideline companies in developed and developing countries.

* Fair value option of equity shares issued under this grant is post share split with a face value of T 1/~ cach.

Inputs in to the model:

MIF 1 MIP I MIP I MIF I MIP I
Grant date share price * # 96.40 153,15 141.89 141.89 127.70
Grant date 20-Mov-18 14-Feb-20 20-Nov-20 9-Feb-21 08-Feb-22
Exercise price # 9500 95,00 95.00 95.00 95.00
Expected volatility 32.00% 35.90% 52.30% 32.30% 53.40%
Option Jife 2.36 years 1.13 years 1 year 1 vear 1 year
Dividend yield .15% 0.00% ¢.00% 00" 3.00%
Risk free injerest rate 7.28% 5.10% 3.80% 3.80% 4.40%

* Before adjustment for lack of marketability
# After giving effect of share split

MIFII-Pool A& MIPI-Peol A& MIPIL-Pool A &

Poot B Pool B Pool B MIP II
Grant date share price * # 96.40 119,38 119.38 127.70
Grant date 20-Nov-18 16-May-19 0i-Tul-i% 03-Feb.22
Exercise price # 93.00 23 (X 95.00 25,00
Expected volatility 33.10% 36.23% 36.23% 53.25%
Option life 3.61 years 3.13 years 3 years 1.39 years
Dividend yield 0.15% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.50% 6.44% 6.44% 4.35%
* Before adjustment tor lack of marketability
# After giving effect of share spht
Movement in share options during the year
Vear ended Year ended
MIP I 31 March 2022 Weighted average 31 March 2021  Weighted average
Number of exercise price Number of exercise price
Options Options
Opening at the beginning of the year 14,111,923 50,840 13,34,883 450,00
Additions in number of options on account of share split 1.27.07.307 95.00 - -
Granted during the vear 17,07,600 95.00 05,997 95000
Exercised during the year * 26,000 95.00 - -
Forfeited and expired during the year 32,07.380 95.00 18,957 950.00
Balance at the end of the vear 1.25.93.450 95.00 14,11,923 950.00
* The weighted average maket price of equity shares for options exercised during the year is T 127.70 {Previous year: Nil)
Share options vested but not exercised 1,08,85,850 -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 Weighted average 31 March 2021  Weighted average
MIP 11 - . . .
Number of exereise price Number of exercise price
Options Options
Opening ar the beginning of the year 825,129 @30.00 10,23,760 950.00
Additiens in number of options on account of share split 83,26,1561 95.00 - -
Granted during the year * 46,73,070 93,00 - -
Options lapsed * 92,51,290 95.00 - -
Forfeited and expired during the year 1.50,130 9500 98.631 950.00
Balance at the end of the vear 45,22,8%0 95.00 9,25,129 950.00

Share options vested but not exercised

* Under MIP 11 - Poot A & Pocl B, shares vest on varying dates with an option life of 5 years after vesting. During the year ended March 31, 2022 the Company has issued
a medfied MIP 11 scheme with modified vesting conditions and replaced with MIP 11- Pool A & Pool B. The Group has adopted modification accounting under Ind AS

102,

Share options sutstanding at the end of the year - MIP [ - 12,593,450 & MIP 11 - 4,522,890 (31 March 2021 : MIP I - 1,411,923 & MIP I - 925,129)
The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of T 95.00 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.42 years (3]

March 2021: 1.19 years).
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36B  Share based payments {continued}

37

Cash settled grants to emplovees

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group has provided stock-based granis te cerfain employees under the employment agreement, which are linked to the share
price of the Company, (ai which will vest on 3 years from the date of joining or 12 menths after the 1PO event of the Company, whichever is earlier (b) which will vest on
3 years trom the date of grant or 12 months afier an IPC event of the Company, whichever is later. The Group teserves the nght of mode of settlement, which can be either
in equity or in cash and in either case. the settlement will be based on the prevailing fair merket value of the Company when the shares are fully vested or the agreed sum
under the employment agreement, whichever is higher. The remaining estimated contractual life of these grants as at March 31, 2021 was {a} | vear (b} 2,25 years . There
were no forfeiture f exgreise / expiry during the year ended March 31, 2021, Quistanding grants as at March 31. 2021 was 2,23.158. During the year ended March 31, 2022
the Group has cash seftled certian grants in accordance with the employment agreement and the grants of the remaining employees remain unchanged. The Greup has
accounted these stock-based grants based on fhe fair market value of the Company as at the reporting dates.

Capital commitments, contingent liabilities and other matters

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations aperations
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of 1.537.2¢ - 687.12 -
capital advances) and not provided for
Contingent Habilities:
Employee related matters (refer note (i) below) 2,183 59 - 2183359 17.58
Bank guarantees issued 7043 - 144,95 7710
Service tax related matters 1,210.00 - 1,190 33 10,160 87
Sales tax related mattecs 496.63 - 116.55 2,601 07
G5T related matters 11018 - 283.37 -
Claims not acknowledged as debt * 421.60 - 552.74 13.82

Naote:
From time to time, the Group is involved in claims and leyal matters azising in the ordinary course of business, Management is not currently aware of any matters that wil!
have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the Group.

(1) The Company has challenged the demand orders from Provident Fund authorities amounting to € 2,183,59 Lakhs for the periods Apri? 2011 to February 2015 on the
grounds that provident fund on certain allowances need not be included for calculation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the same is not universally paid to ali the
emplayees of the Company.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the emplovees should be identified
for inclusion for the purposes of computation of the Provident Fund contribution. Consequently, the Company has filed a review petition to Regional Provident Fund
Commtissioner to review the demaad order in the light of the Supreme Court decision. The Company has also oblained an interim injunction from Honourable High Court
of Madras pending disposal of the Company’s petition. Based on legal advice obtained, the Company is of the view that no provision is required for the dispute in the
financials as at March 31, 2022

* Claims against TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvi. Limited nof acknowledged as debts (refer note 17):

(i). Mabarashira Industriai Development Corporation ("MIDC ™Y has served a notice of claim dated Novetnber 6, 2006 as development charges of € 94.08 lakhs (“Claim™}
against & hectares and 12 Ares of land belonging to the Company {"Land™). The Company has contested the Claim as the Land does net fall within the purview of MIDC
and the Company has filed a Suit viz. Regular Civil Suit No,26/2007 before the Civil Judge, Junior Division, Khed, at Khed, in Pune against MIDC. The Hon'ble Court by
and Order dated October 17, 2007 has granted a stay against the Claim. Thereafler in the year 2010, the Company has received a letter dated July 6, 2019 from MIDC
increasing the Claim antount te  117.44 lakhs. The Company has filed appropriate reply to the said letter.

(i) A demand of T 368.50 lakhs was raised by the Income Tax Department w/s 143(3) during assessment proceedings of the AY 2014-15 against which Company had
preferred an appeal before CIT{A}Y, Mumbai. After giving effect of CIT(A) order dated February 28,2018, demand was reduced to  327.24 lakhs vide order dated October
24 2018, The said demand was further reduced to ¥ 264.71 Jakhs atter considering rectification of apparent errors. Further, department has adjusted an amaunt of T 21 03
lakhs as interest on the outstanding tax demand from refund due. The Company further paid ¥ 101 lakh under protest afer which demand reduced to 2 163,14 lakhs.
Further, refund of AY 2017-18, AY 2018.19 & 201920 of T 13311 lakhs, T 72.49 lakhs and ¥ 77.34 lakhs respectively, has been determined w/s 143{1) and adjusted u/s
245 of the Income-tax Act by Income Tax Department - CPC. Therefore, net tax payable is Nil. The Company had preferred an appeal before The Income Tax Tribunal
{ITAT). Mumbai which is dismissed by the ITAT. Mumbai. The Company shall be filing an appeal before The Bombay High Court.
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37

Capital commitments, contingent lizbilities and other matters (continued)

Other Matters

(i) The Company’s erstwhile whelly owned subsidiary, Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited (DIESL} (Discontinued eperations) had VAT and Service tax matters
outstanding with authorities at varicus levels in the respective vears (31 March 2021: ¥ 12,761.90 lakhs). Majority of these amounts were covered under the specific and
general indernity under the Share Purchase Agreement dated May 22, 2015 with the erstwhile shareholders {~Original SPA™). During the year ended March 31, 2022 the
Company entered in to Share Purchase Agreement dated September 29, 2021 (“New SPA™) with the Buver for disposal of investments in DIESL for a consideration of 2
100 lakhs. The Company entered in to an Novation agreement with the erstwhile sharcholders and the Buyer for the transfer of indemnities provided in Original SPA, As
per the New SPA, the Company’s maximom indemmity to the Buyer is restricted 1o £3.500 lakhs including any Josses suffered by the Buyer under the “"Original SPA™
which the erstwhile sharehelders fail to indemnify.

{i0) Disputes with minority shaveholders

(a} Arbitration with ersnwhile Chief Executive officer and minority shareholder of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd. (Fermerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain
Solutions Limited)

TVS Supply Chain Solutiens Pte. Ltd. «“TVS GFS™) and the Company were part of the arbitration with Singapore Intemational Arbitrabon Centre {“SIAC™) with a formet
CEG of TVS GFS, James Herbert Mcadam BI (whe was is also a minority sharehwolder in TVS GFS, holding 2,477,523 shares) in relation te amounts payable and benefits
due under the then employment contract and also in relation to shares held by him in TVS GFS. The Company had terminated his services for cause in 2019 and accrued
for appropriate vosts till the date of termination. On September 17. 2021. STAC issued the partial award followed by final award on January 17, 2022, Under the terms of
the award, S{AC held the termination as incorrect as a consequence of which the former CEQ was entitled 1o compensation relating to wrongful termination (including
legal costs) aggregating T 1825.20 lakhs and also directed that minority sharehelder sell the shares held by him in TVS GFS to the Company for a total censideration of ¥
8277.90 lakhs. Pursuant to such final award, out of the shares held by James Herbert Mcadam 111, 1,786,024 have been transferced to TVS Logistics Investment UK
Limited. a nominee and Subsidiary of our Company in February 2022 The balance 691,499 shares have been cancelled in comphiance with the final award,

The Group has recorded the cost of termination and legal costs as exceptional items in the profit and loss account. The Group has de-recognised the non-controlling
interests of negative T 1,626.00 lakhs as at date of partial award. The difference beiween the consideration and the non-controlling interests derecognised. amounting to T
9.904.00 lakhs has been debited to the Other Equity. The Company had apportioned the profit / Xl to the non-controlling interests for the period from April 1, 2021 to
September 17, 2021 (date of partial award} (refer note 48).

(b} TVS Supply Chain Solutions Australia Holdings Pty. Ltd

TVS GFS Greup is part of an angaing litigation with the ersiwhile sharcholders of the Transtar group with respect to amounts payable for the acquisition of the balance
minority sharebelding (45%) computed as per the terms of the share purchase agreement (second completion amonnts). The Company believes that the amounts paid
together with the liability accrued in the books fairly represents the amounts payable 10 the ecstwhile shareholders under the terms of the shareholders’ agreement and no
turther material adjustments to these amounts would be required. The dispute is pending with the Supreme Court of Victoria.

t1ii) TVS Supply Chain Selutions North America Inc
TVS Supply Chain Nocth America Inc. is part of an ongoing litigation with few employees of the Company. The Company believes that the liability acerued in the books
fairly represents the amounts payable, if any, to these employees and believes no further adjustments are congidersd necessary to 1hese financial statements,

Leases

Finance leases as lessor

The reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease at the end of the reporting peried, and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable at the end of
the reporting year are as foliows: {also refer note 154}
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gross invesiment in the [ease 2,226.5¢ 159233
Unearned finance income (399 85) (430.83)
Met iwvestment in the lease 1.826.74 1,161.50

The gross invesiment in the lease and the present value of the minimum lease paymenis receivables under non-vancellable finance leases are as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Giross invesiment in the lease

Recervable within ane year 74023 468.07
Receivablg between one and five years 1,480,386 1.065.39
Receivable after five years - 55.37
Total 2,226,59 1,592.33
Fresent value of minimum lease payments reccivable

Receivable within one year 569.28 302,53
Receivable between one and five years 1,257,496 800.15
Receivable atier five vears - 3282

Total 1,826.74 1.161.50
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39 Business combinations
A.Business combination during the year ended 31 March 2022

i. Acquisition of FIT 3PL Warchousing Pvt. Lid

The Company acquired 69.15% stake in FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited (FIT 3PL) for a consideration of ¥ 13.830.00 lakhs through Share
Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated 13 September 2021. The transaction was accounted under Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations™ as a business
combination with the fair value of FIT 3PL being allocated to identitiable assets and liabilities at fair valve. FIT 3PL is a full-fledged 3PL company
providing end to end logistics services such as warehousing, distribution, in-plant logistics, fulfilment, first mile, long haul, express, last mile,
packaging, and other value-added services . The date of acquisition is 13 October 2021 based on the effective date of transfer of contrel ("Valuation
date™).

Subsequently on 27 December 2021, the company acquired the remaining shareholding of 30.85% held by minority shaceholders for a
consideration of ¥ 6,580.00 lakhs.

A. Consideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition date fair value of each class of consideration transferred;

In lakhs of INR Amoun¢
Cash 13,830.00
Deferred Consideration -
Total consideration for business combination 15,830.00

B. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

I lakits of INR Amount
Property, plant & equipment 431.01
Intangible assets - Software 15.77
Intangible assets - Customer relationship 5.809.00
Right of use assets 3,724 91
Trade receivables 1.843.11
Deferred tax assets {net) 255.68
Other cwrrent & non-current assets 2.314.03
Cash and cash equivalents 990
Borrowings (260.47)
Lease liabilities (3.724.91)
Trade payables (1.563.77)
Deferred tax Liabalities (net) (2,029.90)
Other current & non-current liabilities (505.97)
Less: Non-controlling interests measured at fair value {4,936.00)
Total net identifiable assets acquired 1,382.39
C. Goodwill

In fakhs of INR Amount
Consideration transferred 13,830.00
Fair value of net identifiable assets (1,332.3%)
Goodwill 12,447.61

B, There were no business combinations during the year ended 31 March 2021
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40 Disclosure pursuant to [nd AS 115 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers™:

A, Disaggregated revenue information

Sezment 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Indiz Rest of ihe world Total Ladia Rest of the workd Total
Type of goods or service
Revenne from operations 24368372 6,81,204.87 0.24.978 59 16731870 5,26,040,99 6,93,359.69
Total revenune from contracts with costomers 2,43,683,72 6,81,294.87 9,24,978.59 1,67,318.70 8,26,040.99 6,93,359.69

Revenues from external customers in respect of each category of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenue 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
15Cs 3,74,071.15 3,20,411.59
NS 5.50,907 44 3,72,948.10

9,24.978.59 6,93,359.69

B. Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Goods tramsferred at a peint in time 1,39.477 458 102,343 .01
Services transferred aver time 7.85.301.11 39101668
Total revenue from contracts with 5 9,24,978.59 6,93,359.69
€. Summary of contract halances

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade Receivables 1.44,188.97 1.26.530.91
Confract assets {Refer note (a) below) 34.976.37 29.461.79
Advance from Customers 2,095.18 96674

Naote:

a. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue eamed trom supply chain management services as teceipt of consideration is conditienal on successful completion. Upon

completion and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

b. There are no significant changes in the Contract assets and Contract liabilities during the vears reporied.

D. Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Revenue as per contracted price 9.26.142.51 69363517
Less Trade discounts, volume rebates etc. {1,163.92) (275,48}
Revenue as per statement of profil and loss 9.24.0578 59 693.359.69
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41 Transfer pricing

42

The Company and its subsidiaries each have international and domestic transactions with related parties. The management confirms that it
maintains documents as prescribed by the respective laws and regulations of the various jurisdictions in which the Group operates to prove that the
international and domestic transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid laws and regulations will not have any impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation upte and for the vear ended March 31, 2022.

Related party disclosures (refer note 29A)

A. Enterprise having significant influence  TVS Mobility Private Limited (From 4th February 2022)
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited (Till 3rd February 2022)

B. Subsidiaries of TVS Mobitity Private
Limited (From 4th February 2022}
Sundaram Indusiries Private Limited

B. Subsidiaries of TV Sundram Ivengar & TVS Motor Company Limited
Sons Private Limited (Till 3rd February Sundaram Clayton Limited

2022)
Lucas-TVS Limited

Sundaram Industries Private Limited
Lucas Indian Service Limited

Sundram Fasteners Limited

TVS Electronics Limited

TVS Training and Services Limited

TVS Automobile Solutions Private Limited
TVS Europe Distribution Limited
Universal Components UK Limited

C. Joint Ventures TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited
Linfox TVS Selutions Pty Limited, Australia

D. Associates MontaraVerpacken mit System GmbH,Germany (till 31 March, 2021}
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42 Related party disch es (continued)
E. Joint ventures of A SI Airsprings Private Limited {formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited, JV of
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Peivate Limited)

F. Key management personnel (KMP) Mr. R. Dinesh, Executive Vice Chairman
Mr Ravi Viswanatban, Managing Director
Mr. S Ravichandran, Mon-Executive Director
Mr. €, K.Ranganathan, Independent director
tvir. V. Anantha Nag . [ndependent director (till March 18, 2021}
bir. § Mahalingam, [odependent director
Sri. Gopal Srinivasan, NMan-Executive director
Sri. §.Ram, Nen-Executive dicector {till Seprember 13, 2021)
Ms. Shohhana Ramachandhran, Mon=Executive director
Sri. Suresh Kriskna, Non-Executive director (till November 27, 2020)
Mr. Eavi Prakash Baghavathuala, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. P D Krishna Prasad, Company Secretary
Mz, Ganrl Kumar, Additional Independent Director (we.f. 7th February 2022)
Mr. B. Sriram. Additional Tndependem Direcior (we.€ 7th Febroary 20221

. Private Compavies under common directorship/ Entities controlled by KMP  DRSR Advisory Services LLP

or relatives of KMF of the Company TVS Srichakra Limited
TVS Autemobile Solutions Private Limited
Ki Moability Solutions Pvt Ltd
Sundaram Industries Povate Limited

Cavim Kare Pvi Lid.

Transactions during the year Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income frem logistics services
Lucas-TVS Limited 2730711 183148
Sundaram Clayton Limited 2251 46 111978
Sundaram Industoes Private Limited 40070 281.51
Sundram Fasteners Limited 1.31¢13 994 O
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 175.00 604.61
TVS Indvstrial & Lowgistics Park Private Limited - 56,54
TVS Mator Comipany Limited 2465977 18,547 32
TVS Srichakra Limited 9,903,350 7.275.66
TVE Training And Services Limited - 047
SI Airsprings Private Limited (formerly known as Firestone TVS Pavate Limited) 3321 -
Lucas [ndian Service Limited - 4,93
TVS Mobility Private Limited 0.50 -
TVS Automobile Solutions Privaile Limited 224992 1L117.21
Ki Mobility Sotutions Pvi Lid §9.46 -
Cavin Kare Pvi Ltd. 224 40 -
Universal Components UK Limited - 13,74
Sale of Goods
Sundaram Clayton Limited 861 .99
Other income
Lucas TVS Limited 5.84 -
Reim hursement of expenses from
T ¥ Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 305 6.44
TVS Mobility Private Limited 0.14 -
Professional fees
T W Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 73.60
Purchase of spares, Tuel, others
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 17.84 -
Soodaram Induestries Private Limited 4} 66 49.61
TVS Automobile Selutions Private Limited - 35.82
Suodram Fastenters Limited 9.85 516,42
Lucas Indiar Service Limited 501 -
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 232 30.09
Lucas TVS Limited - 175,60

Freight, packing and forwarding expenses
T V Sundram Iyengac & Sons Private Limited
TYS Electronics Limited

16540 5330
- 047
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42 Related party disclosures (continuved)
Transactions during the year {continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Rent

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 93410 919.44
TV Sundram lyengar & Sens Private Limited 139.77 174,93
TVS Mobility Private Limited 50.5% -
Lucas-TV3 Limited 1.80 1.80

Repairs and maintenance
T ¥ Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited B 852

Expenses incurred by and reimbursed te

T V Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 259 20,48
TVS Mobility Private Limited 0.70

Other expenses

T V Sundrarn Iyengar & Sons Povate Limited 108.00 -
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 17.18 -
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 0.04 -

Purchase of fixed assets

T ¥ Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 11.47 13.99
Sundaram Fasteners Limited - 1i.82
Lueas India Service Limited - 342

Purchase of Leasehold Improvement

TVS Industrial & Loyistics Park Private Limited - 1.35
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. 8 Ravichandran, Non-Executive Director 46,35 192.79
Mr. Ravi Viswanathan, Managing Director 54270 445.62
Mr. R. Dimesh, Executive Vice Chairman 640.00 200.00
Mr. Ravi Prakash Baghavathula, Chief Financial Officer 438.40 347.80
Mr. P D Knshoa Prasad, Company Secretary 5326 41.37
Sitting fees to Independent & Non-Executive Directors

Mr. C. K. Ranganathan 256 225
br. V. Anantha Nageswaran . 3.50
Mr. 5 Mahalingam 425 373
Sri. Gopel Srinivasan 1.00 1.50
Sni. S.Ram 0.50 i.50
Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran 2.50 150
3r1. Suresh Krishna - 150
Ms. Gaun Kumar 1.0 -
Mr. B. Sriram 1.00 -

1. As the future liabilitics of gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts perining to the KMP is not
ascertainable separately and therefore not included above,

2. Tetal employee stock compensation expense for the vears ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 includes a charge of T 327,10 lakhs and ¥ 146320 lakhs, towards
EMP respectively.
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41 Related party disclesures {continued)

Year end balances: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Receivables o
Lucas Tndian Service Limed - 7225
Lucas-TVS Limited - 2194
Sundaram Clayton Limited - 1143
Sundaram [ndustries Private Limited 3729 183,75
Sundram Fasteners Linvited - 116,89
T ¥V Sundrar Tyengar & Soits Povate Limited 787 24.86
TVS Motor Company Limited - 1.467.77
TVS Srichakra Limited 1,8¢1.71 37543
TVS Training And Services Limited - 11.18
SI Airsprings Private Limited {formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited) - 10.53
TVS Automobile Selutions Private Limited 50322 587.14
TV5S Europe Distcibution Limited - 136,68
Ki Mobility Solutians Pvi Ltd 10.76 -
CavinKare Pvi Lid 12763 -

Other receivables - Unhilled revenoe

Lucas TVS Limired . 25.83
Lucas Indian Service Limited . -
Sundaram Clayton Limited - 5.03
Sundaram Fastners Limited - 2.09
Sundaram Industries Limited . -

T ¥ Sundaram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited - 10.94
TVS Motor Company Limited - 246,77
TVS Srichakra Limited 332.10 867.23
Ki Mohility Solutions Pvt Ltd 11.30 -
Security deposits (based on transaction value, not discounted)

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 789 .66 789,66
Advance for Supply of Goods & Services

TVS Tndustrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 411,78 59.00
T V Sundaram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 1006 77.46
Payables

Lueas-TVS Limited - 017
Lucas Indian Service Limited - 1.29
Sundaram Industnies Private Limited 16.50 18.04
Sundram Fasteners Limited - 111.86
T ¥ Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 15.41 33.73
TVS Srichakra Lid - -
TVS Indvstrial & Logistics Park Private Limited 106.39 98.56
TVS Mability Private Linuited 15.16 -
Universal Components UK Limited - 1.89
Payable to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries, wages and boous 1o Non-Executive Director 20%.04 -
Salaries, wages and bonus to Managiog Director 200.00 200,006
Commission te Executive Vice Chairman 200,00 200.00
Salarizs, wages and bonus te Chief Financial Officer 173,39 365.00

Salaries, wapes and bonus to Company Secretary 375 375
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

D. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure o the fofllowing risks atising from financial instruments:
- credit risk;

- liquidity risk: and

- market risk

i, Risk manugement framework
The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The baatrd of
directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and menitoring the Group’s risk management policies.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group's activities. The Group. through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment tn which all emplovees understand their roles and obligations.

ii. Credit risk
Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's receivables from customers; loans and investments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuonsly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debis and impairment that represents its
estimmate of incurred losses in respect of the Group’s trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets are as follows:

Carrving amount
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade receivables 1.31.336.47 1,16,665.50
Investments 20.00 1,375.62
Cash and cash equivalents 99, 382 64 5369624
Other bank balances 1,107.28 371597
Deposits and other receivables 1479435 11.417.24
Cther financial assets 398.44 2,031.88
Total 2.47,039.18 1,88.902.45

Trade and other receivables
The Group’s expesure to credit risk 15 influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, mcluding
the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk azsessment.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reperting period are reviewed by the Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses. The
impairment loss at the reporting dates relates to severat customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Group and are not expected to be able to pay
their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circlunstances.

The Group determines credit risk based on a varicty of factors including but not limited to the age of the receivables, cash flow projections and available
mformation about ¢ustomers from iniernal/external sources. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of trade receivables.

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several
jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
D. Financial risk management {continued)
i, Credit risk (comd.)

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impaitiment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,865.41 7473.49
Add: Addition on account of acquisitions 204.74 -
Add: Provision for the vear 3,730.00 2774.30
Less: Provision withdrawn against bad debis written off (987.17) {311.59)
Add / Less | Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 39.36 129.21
Balance at end of the year 12,852.54 9.865.41

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
The Group holds cash and bank balances of 1,00,489.92 lakhs as a1 31 March 2022 {31 Macch 2021; 57,412.21 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such banks
and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Deposits and other receivables, Investinents and other financial assels
The Group holds deposits and other receivables, mvestments and other financial assets of 15,212.79 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: ¥
14,824.74 lakhs}. The credit worthiness of such parties are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

ifi. Liguddity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are sentled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet it liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's
reputation.

The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of
sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Exprosure to lgwidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of neiting agreemenis:

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 year or less 1-5 years More than §
amount vears

31 March 2022
Non derivative financial liabilities
Current and non-current borrowings
Secured term loans from banks (refer note 2A) 97.513.02 97.513.02 23.965.09 73.547.93 -
Secured cash credit from banks 1.75 1.75 1.75 - -
Secured revolving credit facility 4330816 43308.16 43308.16 - -
Secured loans repayable on demand 1,000.00 1.0G0.0% L,00¢.00 - -
Unsecured bills discounting 500569 5,095.69 5.095.69 - -
Unsecured loans repavable on demand 28,200.00 28.200.00 28.200.00 - -
Redeemabie preference shares 891.60 891.60 891.60 - -
Unsecured other short term loans 368.03 368.03 368.03 - -
Others
Trade payables 1,45,314.05 1.45.314.05 1.43,314.05 - -
Lease liability 1,19.027.64 1.42.117.86 40.566.65 08.118.36 33,432.85
Other financial liahilities 20,536.34 20,536.34 20.536.34 - -

4,61.256.28 4,84,346.50 3.09,247.36 1,41,666.2% 33 432.85

A N
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Caonfractuat cash flows

Carrying Total 1 yearor less 1-5 years More than 3
amount years

31 March 2021
Non derivative financial liabilities
Current and non-curvent borrowings
Secured term loans from banks {refer note 2A) 9924375 9924375 5.160.78 94,082.97 -
Secured term loans from financial institutions 0.90 0.90 0.90 - -
Secuired cash credit from banks 182.88 182.88 182.88 - -
Secured revolving credit facility 2017595 29.175.95 29,175.95 - -
Unsecured bills discounting 854.47 854 47 854 47 - -
Unsecured loants repavable on demand 2398145 23.981.45 23.981.45 - -
Redeemable preference shares 391.60 891.60 891.60 - -
Unsecured other short term loans 461.16 461.16 46116 - -
Others
Trade payables 1.15.401.56 1,15 401.56 1,15401.56 - -
Lease liability 1,18,619.06 1,42,669.32 34,004.42 70.836.67 3782823
Other financial liabilities 17.089.72 17,089.72 17.089.72 - -

4,05,902.50 4,29,.952.76 2,27,204.89 1,64,919.64 37.828.23
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
iv. Marker risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates wall affect the Group's income or the value of it's holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market nisk management is $0 manage and contrel market risk exposures within acceptable parameters and optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Group 1s exposed te currency risk to the extent that there is & mismatch between the currencies in which revenues, payables, receivables. etc. are denominated ina
currency other than the respective functional currency of each of the entities in the Group. The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk in general except in case of
certain pavables and receivables denominated mn foreign currency which are hedged thuough the use of foreign currency swaps and forwards. Refer note 43 (v} for further
details on hedging activitics and derivatives.

31 March 2022

UISD Euro GBP SGD AlD THR Others
Financial assets:
Investments - - . - - - .
Loans 21.420.68 2.053.31 18.666.07 3.144.76 - 91.45 -
Deposits and other receivables 2,654.19 3,084.26 14,092.34 2,332.01 554,27 500.14 577.37
Trade receivables 15,196 80 31,608.04 - 1.0% 9,031.91 2.179.61 6,717.57
Cash and cash equivalents 543729 G549 15 73 1,51 514192 20208 3,187.73
Other bank balances - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 1.68 - - - 671 4242
48,708.96 45,698.44 32,75%.14 5,689.37 14,728.10 3.669.99 10,525.09
Financial liabilities:
Borrosvings 25,507.22 22.567.11 64,732.01 - (566.86) - -
Lease lability - 4.410.03 - - 222876 278176 1.811.64
Trade payables 11,390.29 2601739 326,42 126 05 4,295 82 998,50 4,958.15
Other financial liabilities - 208.75 9112 1,090 81 347.28 39,70 -
36,897.51 §3,203.28 65,149.58 1.216.86 6,305.00 3.819.96 6.769.79
et assets / {liabilities) 11,811.45 (7,504.84) {32,390.41) 4,472.51 8,423.10 {149.97) 3,755.30
31 March 2021
UsD Euro GBP SGD AUD THR Others
Financial assets:
Investments
Loans 23,031.51 (688.91) 3.413.49 3,790.52 - - 1,181.38
Deposits and other receivables 2,492 37 1,336.03 14249 55 1,132.328 77829 15814 557725
Trade receivables 7,804 63 26,008.53 2413 067 G 20057 - 1,734 48
Cash and cash equivalents 2.190.53 6,624,935 - 3433 1,975.10 -
Other bank balances 617.17 2.382.22 + - 425.55 -
Other financial assets - - - - - - 030,63
36,136.23 35,724,22 1768719 4,957.9) 12,379.51 158.14 94234
Financial liabilities:
Berrowings 23462 28 233635 5634020 - - - -
Lease liability 3285 6,944.81 0.18 - 1,38597 - 337145
Trade payables 461183 17,941 .84 39.36 25858 3,409.06 - 4,745.39
Chher financial liabilines 2,519.67 3.350.53 4.798.08 - 356,72 - 908 .65
30,627.25 30,593.53 61,184.42 258.58 515175 - 9,025.49
Net agsets / (liabilities) 5,508.98 5,130.69 {43.497.23) 4,699.32 7.227.76 158.14 398.25
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)
iv. Market risk (continged)

Sensifivity analysis

A reasenably possible strengthening {weakening) of the INR against the respective currencies noted below at 31 March would have atfected the measurement of financial
instromenis denomnated m a foreign currency and aftected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analvsis assumes that ail other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases,

Profit or {loss) Equity, net of tax
Wealening Strengthening Weakening Strengthening

31 March 2022

United States Dellar (1% movement) 118.11 (11211} - -
Eure {1% movement) {75.0%) 75.05 - -
Great Britain Pounds 1% movement) {323.90) 32390 - -
Australian Dollar (1% movenient) 84,23 (34.23) - -
Singapore Dollar (1% movement) 44,73 {44.73) - -
Thailand Bhat {1% movement) (1.50) 1.5¢ - -
Others (1% movement)* 37.55 {37.53) - -
31 March 2021

United States Drellar (1% movement} 5509 (55.09} - -
Eure i 1% movement} 51.31 {31.31} - -
Great Britain Pounds {1% movement) (434.97) 434,97 - -
Australian Dollar { 1% movement) 7228 {72.28) - -
Singapore Dollar {1% moveinent} 4699 (46.99) - -
Thailand Bhat { 1 % movement) 158 {1.58) - -
Others (1% movement)® 3198 (3.98) - -

The above table also includes sensitivity analysis on inter group receivables/ payables which are denominated in a forsign currency. Such inter-group receivables and
pavables, though eliminated on consohidation give nse to currency risk and hence, the same has been disclosed.

*Others mainly include currencies such as Malaysian ringgit, Hong Kong dollar, Indonesian rupiah, South Korean won, New Taiwan dollar, Canadian dotlar and New
Zealand dollar.

The Group has anly two types of variable rate instrument i.e. cash ¢redit facility being used for cash management purposes and certain working capital Jemand loans.

Eaposure to interest rate visk
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabititizs

- Term loans from banks 94,614,324 9892328
« Cash credit from banks 1.75 18238
- Revolving credit facility 43 30816 219,175.95
- Loans repayable on demand 37.650.00 22,430.00

- Bills discounting - .

Fixed rate instruments

Financial gisets

- Deposits with banks 16.783.92 4,24423
Fingncial labilitics

- Term loans from banks 2.898.68 32047
- Term leans from financial institutions - 0.50
= Finance lease obhgations - -

- Loans repayable on dentand 1,550,00 1,551.45
- Bills discounting 509560 854 47
- Redeemable preference shares £91.60 291.60

« Other short term loans 368.03 461.16
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
v, Market risk {confinued)

Interest rate risk fcoatinned)
Fair value sensitivin: analvsis for fixed rate instraments

A reasonably pessible change of 100 basis points in inlerest rates al the reporting date would not have any impact on the reporied profil or loss or equity as these fixed
rate instruments (deposits with banks) are carried at amettised cost, any changes in interest rates are not considered for subsequent measurement.

Cash flow sensitivity analvsis for variable rate instruments
A reasonably pessible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased} equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below, This analysis assumes that all sther variables remain constant.

{Profit) or loss Equity
100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase

31 March 2022

Financiol labifities

- Term loans from banks (946.14) 946, 14 - -
- Casb credit from banks {0.02) 0.02 - -
- Revolving credit facilicy {433.08) 433.08 - -
- Loans repayable on demand {276.50) 276,50 - -
= Bills discounting - - - -
Cash flow sensitivity {net) {1.655.74) 1,655.74 - -

31 March 2021

Financial fiabilities
- Term loans from banks (989.23) 989,23 - -
« {2ash credit from banks (1.83} 1.83 - -
- Revolving credit fagility (291.76) 201,74 - -
- Loans repayable on demand (224.30) 224,30 - -
- Bills discounting - -
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1,507.12) 1,507.12 - -
P/ s ss Q\'T-‘\
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
v. Hedging activities and derivitives

The Group is exposed to certain risks refating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instriuments

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the company had entered into forward contracts with HDFC bank for the loans given by the company to its wholly
owned subsidiary and these are not designated as hedges. The company has recognized a loss of T 651.79 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 and derecognised the
derivative liability in the previous vear on receipt of the loans given (refer note 32).

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cash flow hedges

The Group is exposed to cash flow volatility risks due to the difference between the functional currency of the Group and the borrowing/receivable
currency.

Foreign currency risk : Relating to borrowing

Variability in principal liability on the loan afiributable to movements in forgign currency exchange rate. To hedge changes in the foreign currency
exchange rate while making principal repayments. the Group had entered into Principle only Swap {PoS) during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021, The hedge results in fixed cash flows.

Foreign currency risk : Relating to receivable

During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Group had entered into principle only swap contracts for the loans given by the step down subsidiaires te other
Group entities, to hedge changes in the foretgn currency exchange rates. Foreign owrrency risk relates to the variability in the transaction currency of the
receivable attributable to movements in foreign currency exchange rate. The hedge results in fixed cash flows.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the critical terms of the hedged item are closely aligned with
the hedging instrument trom the inception of the hedge till termination (i.e., notional amount, maturity, payment and reset dates). The Group has assessed
hedge effectiveness and established an economic relationship at the inception of the hedge and across the tenor of the hedging relationship

The Group has established a hedge ratio of L:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the derivative instruments are identical to the hedged
risk components.

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:
- Differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instniment
- The counterparties’ credit risk ditferently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging instrument and hedged item

The Group held the following hedging instruments as at 31 March 2022

1¢0 6 Months 6 to 12 Months More than 12 Total
Months
Relating to borrowing - Principle only Swap
Notional principal amount {Tn TNR Lakhs) 7,991.52 7.991.32 53,033.32 69,015.97
Average Forward Rate {(SGD/GBP} 1.76 1.76 1.76 1.76
Average Forward Rate {(SGD/USD) 1.37 1.37 1.37 137
Average Forward Rate {USD/GBP} 1.26 .26 1.26 .26
Relating to intercompany receivable - Principle only Swap
Notional principal amount {In TNR Lakhs) - - 22.960.66 22.960.66
Average Forward Rate (USD/GBP) - - 1.35 1.35
Average Forward Rate (SGD/AUD) - - .98 0.98
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

The impact of hedging instruments on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022 was as follows

Notional amount Carrying Line item in the Change in fair
amaount statement of  value vsed for
financial position measuring
ineffectiveness
for the year
Principle only swap - Relating to borrowing 69,015.97 (2,636.18)  Other financial {2,636.18)
liabilities
Principle onky swap - Relating to intercompany receivable 22960166 (601.92)  Other financial (601,92}
liabilities
The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income was, as follows:
Total hedging Ineffectiveness  Cost of hedging Amount Line item in the
gain/(loss) recognised in recognised in  reclassified from  statement of
recognised in  profif or loss 0CI OCI to profitor  profit or loss
OCI loss
Year ended 31 March 2022
Principle only swap (2,011.50) - (207.92) (2,011.50% Other

meome/expenses

The impact of hedged item on equity:

Cash flow hedge

reserve
Asat 1 April 2021 -
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from swap arrangements (2.011.50)
Amount re-classified to profit or loss 2,011.50
As at 31 March 2022 -
The Group held the following hedging instruments as at 31 March 2021:
1 to 6 Months & to 12 Months More than 12 Total
Months
Relating to borrowing - Principle only Swap
National principal amount (In INR fakhs) - 2.367.64 44.585.10 4735273
Average Forward Rate (SGD/GBP) - 1.76 1.76 1.76
Average Forward Rate (SGD/USD) - 1.37 1.37 1.37
Average Forward Rate (GBP/USD} - 1.26 1.26 1.26
The impact of hedging instruments on the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2021 was as follows:
Notional amount Carrving Line item in the Change in fair
amount statement of  value used for
financial position measuring
ineffectiveness
for the year
Priniple only swap 34,342.40 61717 Other financial 617.17
assers
Priniple only swap 13.010.33 1.398.08 Other financial 1.398.08

assets/liabilities
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43 Fimancial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement ot profit or loss and other comprehensive income was, as follows:

Total hedging  Ineffectiveness  Cost of hedging Amount Line item in the
zain/(loss) recognised in recognised in  reclassified from  statement of
recognised im  profit or loss ocCl1 OC] to profitor  profit or [oss
oCl loss
Year ended 31 March 2021
Principle only swap 4627 - (776,34 4927 Other expenses

The impact of hedged item on equity:

Cash flow hedge

reserve
As at 01 April 2020 -
Eftective portion of changes in fair value arising from swap arrangements 4927

49.27)

Amount re-classified to profit or loss
Tax eftect
As at 31 March 2021
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44 Additipnal inf; ian as requived under Schedule 1N 19 the Companies Act 2003, of entities lidated a5 subsidiar iates! joint
31 March 1022 Net assets {total assets minus Share in prefit or loss Share in vther comprebensive imcame  Share i taval comprehensive income
total llabilitiesy .
As % of Amoant As % of Amnunt  As %% of consolidated Amount  As % censalidated of Amount
conselidaned congolidated other comprehensive ot comprehensive
nel assels prelil or logs income income
Pareni
TVS Supply Chain Solulions Limived 160.39%  1,20,919.50 SH M (2121.98) -4.57% (98.06) -32.23% {2,220.04)
Domestic Subsidiaries - [pareat's share}
Drive India Enterprise Selotions Limited Q.00% - 0000 - 0.00°5 - 0005 -
TVS SCS Global Frenghr Solutions Lid. (Formerly known as TVS 1272% 9,500, 26 LTI 426366 0.29% 5.5 62.05% 427391
Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited)
FLEXOL Packaging {India} Limiied 2 15995 -0 16% {7.73) 0.43% 213 0.02% 1.42
TVS Aviation Logistics Limited 00 - G00% - 000 - 0.00% -
SPC [nternational (Indial Privare Livited 139% 104548 331% 156.77 0.09%; - 2,28% 156.77
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supphe Chain Solutions Lid. 147 186272 9,504 450,146 0.56%% 11.98 6.71% 46214
White Data Systerns India Pyt Ltd. 4.42% 33T -0.50%% {2392 02 477 ~0.42% 12868}
Fin 3PL Warehouusing Bvt Linnited 3.80% 186754 6.85% 32465 0.18% 3.90 4.7 12855
Foreign Suhsidiaries - (parent's share)
TVS S0 (Siand Linned (Formerly known as TVS Logislics SLAM 053 {390.68) -2,13% (10051) 1.44%, 30.98 -101% 169,83}
Limited)
TVS Logistics Imvestozent USA Inc., USA and its subsidianes S17A4% (13,144.8%) -B703%. (412500 -24,23% {52044} -57.45% (4.645.56}
TVS Lagistics Investaent UK Limned and ts subsidianas 35.0% 2871540 -19.31% (#1545 -35.02% (73100} <24 21% 1,667 54}
TVS Supply Chair Selutions Ple. Lid {Fonnery knava a5 TWE- Agignics -27.62% (20.821.52} 42.56% 101727 -T281% (1,563, 76} & 5B% 433.51
Supply Chain Solutions Liniitad), Singagon: and its subsidiari
Nan-controlling intereses in all subsidiaries 5.29%% 3.991 49 6,96% 3014 -2.05% {43.949) 4.15% 28615
Jont veniure
TYS Induswizl & Leggistics Paok Pt Limiesd 15.27% 10,002 42 -1.01% (4790} O 0% - -0.70% {4700
Linfx T¥S Solulions Pry Limed .00% - 0.00% - 000t - §.00% -
Eliminations -36.561% (72.835.99) S10:432%  (4.944.86) Fo.{4% T3 -60.55% ,170.73)
Az al 31 March 2022 100% 75,301.46 10 4,740.15) 190 (2.147.72) 1% {6.857.85)
31 March 2021 Net assets {total assets minus Share m profit or oss Share in uller comprehensive income  Share in total comprehensive income
total linbikities)
As Vo of Amount As % of Amount A3 % of cawsolidated Amount  As % consolidated of A
canzolidated consolidared wther vomprehensive 101 comprehensive
net assels prafit or loss IS it intome
Parent
TVE Supply Chain Solutons Limired 143.52% 76,392 42 -108.E8% (50377 35265 71.0% =002 {8.066.65)
Davsestic Subsidiaries - (pavent's share)
Drrve India Enterprise Sulutions Limited Q.00 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 2000 -
TVE 8CS Global Freight Solutions Lid, {Formerly known as TVS 10.44% 5,556,35 17.21% 1.286.07 £.50% 1714 17425 1,303.21
Dynamic Global Freight Services Limitady
FLEXOCL Packaging (Indiad Limited A% 158,32 -2 03% {1214% 190% 584 -100% {145.65)
TVS Aviation Logistics Limited 000 - G0 - 0.00% - 0.00% -
SPC Interrational (India) Private Limited 1.67% 88,69 -1.02% {7593} 0,004 B -L04%% 175.00)
TVS Tovota Tsusho Supply Chain Selutions Lid, 2.63% 1,400.58 5.03% 375.99 5.45% (10,99} 5.02% 365.00
White: Dala Systems India Pvi. Ltd. 632% 336444 -4.50% {336.41% 11.09% 2236 -4.32% 314.65)
Foretgn Subsidiaries - (parent's share}
TVS 8CS (Sism]) Lingted ( Formery known as TVS Logistics SLAM -6 {321.01) 2% (16,45} -4,70% (.66} -0.36% (26,10
Limired)
TVE Logisties Investment USA Inc, USA and irs subsidiaries ~15.65% (8,327.25) =192 {2,934.66) 147,114 20650 -36.28% (2538.16)
TVS Logistics Lavestment DR, Limited and s subsidiaries T0.63% 3760437 1.2%%% .77 507.85% 1.225.18 15.158% 1.321.95
TV Supply Chain Solurions Pre. Led. (Formerly kiown as TVS-Asianics -1 98% {22344.29) 24 28%  {1E1492) -646.91% (130321} 4239 (3,118.35)
Supply Chain Salwions Limited?, Sinpapors and ils subsidisries
Nag-controlling interasts in sl subsidiavies EA L 399689 -2, 68% {2001 26} 134, 85% 271ED 0.98% .54
Assotinles
Montara Verpacken mit System GmbH 1.00% - 0.00%5 - 0.00% - 0.00%% -
Joint venture
TVE Industrial & Logistics Park Pvi. Limired 1%.83%% 10,050.32 -0,05% {660 V.00 - -4.00 15.66)
Linfex TVS Solutions Pry Lunted Q.00 - L0000 - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Eliminations S103.89% (53,294 .46} 59.43% 4,441,88 -190.40% (383. 78} 35.80% 4.058.1¢

As at 31 March 2021 LO0% 5322547 =10 17.473.84) 1% 201.56 -100% (727228
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45 Disclosure pursuant fo Ind AS 105 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations™:

A. The group has following disposal group recognised as held for sale

Disposal gronp
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited

B. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company entered in to Share Purchase Agreement dated September 29, 2021 ("New SPA™} with the Buyver for disposal
of investments in DIESL for a consideration of 100 lakhs. The group recorded a loss of $1,545.30 lakhs on disposal of DIESL which is discfosed as exceptional
tten. Refer note 37 (i) & 48 for further details.

C. Financial performance and cash flow information
The results of Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited are presented below:

29 September 2021 31 March 2021
Total Revenues {includes other income) 10218 143.45
Expense 168.38 165.84
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation (66.20) {2.39)
Tax {expenses)income:;
Tax relating to earlier periods - -
Profit/(loss} for the period from a discontinued operation {66.20} {2.39)
Earnings per share:
Basic {0.03} {n.on
Diluted {0.03) (0.0
The net cash flows incorred by Drive India Enterprise Selutions Limited are, as follows:
Net cash intlow/(cutflew) frem operating activities (523.67 (275.28)
Net cash intlow/{outilow) from investing activities 508.34 263 51
Net cash intflowf{outflew) trom financing activities (2.10) -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash generated from discontinued operation (17.43) {11.77)

D. The major classes of assets and liabilitics of Prive India Enterprises Solutions Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Group(s) of assels classified as held for sale:
Right=0f-nze assets - 0.77
Other intangible assets - 20.14
Other financial assets - Non-current - 437.52
Non-current tax assets {net) - 39.50
Other non-current assets - 447 46
Inventories - 157.57
Trade receivables {Non-current & current) - 347754
Loans = current - -
Cash and cash equuvalents - 144.75
Other bank balances - 42003
Deposits & other receivables - current - 11.34
Other financial assets - Current - 388.14
Other current assets - 327.20

- 5.871.96
Liabilities associated with group(s) of assets ¢lassified as held for sale:
Provisions - Non-current - 258
Borrawings - Current - 482 87
Trade payables (Non-current & current) - 3.699.25
Other non-current habilities - 311.39
Other financial liabilities - Current - 19.22
Provisions - current - 1.11
Current tax liabilities (net) - -
Deferred tax liabilities - 6569
Other current Liabilities - 438 82

- 5,030.93
Net Assets - 841,03

- 1.905.36

Reserve of disposal group classified as held for sale




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Motes to the ¢ lidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(AL chimonints cive i Fdicr vupees (3) Lakhs except shure dota v otherwise siuted)

46 List of subsidiaries Ownership interest

Country of
incorporation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Name of direct subsidiaries of the Company
TVS SCS Global Freight Sotutions Ltd (Formerly known as TS Dynamic Global Freigtit Services Limited) [ndia 63.21% G000

Dirive India Enterprises Selatfons Linvited [ndia 0.00% 1000045
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited India 100.00% 88.11%
TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited India L0000 10000
SPC Intermational India Private Limited India 100.00% 100, 00%
TV5 SCS {Siam) Limited {Formerly known as TVS Legistics STAM Limited) Thailand L00.00% 100.00%
TVYS Logisties Investment UK Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Logistics Investrents USA Inc. UsA 100.00% L0 0%
TVS Supply Chain Selhutions Pte. Ltd. (Formetly known as TYS-Asianics Supply Chain Singapore 100.00% 93.50%
Solutions Pre. Limited), Sinpgapore
TV8 Toyota Tsusho Sopply Chain Solutions Limited India &0.00%, 60.00%
White Data Systems India Pvt. Lid India 51.00% 51.00%
Fit 3PL Warehonsing Private Limited India 100.00% 0.0
Name of step-down subsidiaries
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00%% L0 000
Swbsidviries of TVE Supphy Chain Sofuitons Linnited, (K
M5ys Sofrware Sclutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00%% 100.00%%
Multipart Limited, UK United Kingdom 106.00% 100.00%
Peter Themas & Co (Refurbishiny) Limited. UK United Kingdom 1040.00% 106.60%
TVS Logisties Iberia S.L.. Spain Spain 100.00%% 100.00%
TVS Autoserv GiubH, Germany Germany 51.00% 51.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions GonbH. Germany Germany 130.00% 100.00%
Rica Logistics Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 2747%
Subsidiaries of Rice Logistics Limited, UK
Ricochet Spain 5.L, Spain Spain 100.00% 100,002
Subsidiuries of Ricochet Spain S.L, Spain
Eltec TT Services 3.L.U 100.00% 100.00%
Rice Logistique, France France 160.00% 100.00%;
Rice Logistics Limited, Austealia Anstralia 100.00% 100.00%%
Circle Express Limited. LK United Kingdorn 95.00% 95.00%
Tri - Tex: Computer Support Limited, Northern [reland Northem Ireland 100.00% 100.00%
Tri = Tec Support Limited, Treland Tredand 100.00% 100,007
TV5 SCS Rico Italia SRL Traly 100.00% 100.00%
Triage Holdings Linited United Kingdom 100.00% L0000
Subsidiaries of Trivge Holdings Limited
Triage Service Limited United Kingdom 100.00% LO0U00%
OrderLogic Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 10D.00%
SPC [ntemational Limited, UK United Kingdom 101.00% 100.00%
Subsidiuries of SPC Internationad Limited (1K
SPCINT Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00%, 100.00%
SPC International {Engineering) Limited. UK United Kingdom 100.00% 10{.00%
Pitcomyp 171 Liowted, TTK United Kingdom 100 00% 100.00%
SPC EBT Tyustees Linnted, UK Untired Kingdom H0A0% 160.00%
SPC Intemational Tnc., USA USA HOR.00% 160.00%
SPC International s.a.5, France France 0.00% 0.00%
SPC International s.1.0., Slovakia Slovakia 100.00% 100, (s
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc.
TVS America Inc., USA usa 100.00% 100.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Nosth America Inc., USA 1sA 100.00%% 100.00%
Subsidtcies of TVS Suppdy Chain Sofutions Nartly Americe fne., USA
TVS Transportation Solutions LLC, LISA LSA L00.00%% 100.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions De Mexice 3 A de C V., Mexico Mexica 100.00% 100 00%
TVS Packaging Solutions inc. US UsA 100.00% 100,00%
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46 List of subsidiaries {continued} Owaership interest
Conntry of
incorporation 31 harch 2022 31 March 2021
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Selutions Pte. Lid.
T35 SCS International Freight (Spain) SLU {Formerly known 2s Nadal Forwarding 5.L), Spain Spain 100,30% 100, 00%,
Subsidicries of TVS SCS International Freight {Spom} SLE, Spectn
Lineas Regulares XXI, 5.1 Spain 0.00% 59.75%
TVE 5C8 lnternational Pre. Ltd {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics international Pte. Lid) Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
TVE 3CS Singapore Pre. Led {Formmerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pre. Lid} Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Suhstdicirtes of TFS SC8 Singupore Pre. Ltd
TVS 5C5 Logistics Lid China 106.00% 100.00%
TVS 3C5 {Korea) Ltd (Formerly knowi: as Pan Asia Logistics International (Korea) Led} Korea 100.00% 10:0.00%
TVS 5C8 Logistics {Thailand) Limited {Fennerly knowuo as Pan Asia Legistics (Thailand} Lid) Thailand 100.00%; 100.00%
TVS 5C8 Hong Kong Limited {Formedy known as Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics Hong Kong Lid}
Honyg Kong 100.00% 100.00%
Pan Asia Contmver Line Ple Lid, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 0y 100,004,
TVS SCS Deustschland Gmbh (Formerly knewn as Pan Asia Logistics Deutschiand GmbH) Germany 100.00% 100.00%
TV3 SCS Malaysia Sdn Bhd bMalaysia 100.00% 100.00%
TVS SCS Vieinam Company Limited (Fomerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Vietnam Company Lid) Vietnam 95.00% 95.00%
PT Pan Asia Logistics Tndonesia Todenesia 90,00% a0.00%
TVS SC5 Taiwan Limited {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Taiwan Lid) Taiwail 100.00% 106.00%
Pan Asia Freipht-Forwarding & Logistics Tndia Pyt Ltd : India 99.99% 95.99%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions (Thailand) Limited (Formerly known as TVS Asianics), Thailand Thailand 100.00% 100.00%%
Sutbsidiories of TVS Supply Chein Soluvions (Thuifund) Limited
TV35 5C5 Logistics Management Ce. Lid (Fornerly knows as TLM Logistics Management Co., Led) Thailand 100.00% 100 00°%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Australia Holdings Pty Ltd (Formerly kngwn as TVS=Asianics Australia Holdings
Pty Lid} Australia 100,00% 100.00%%
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chen Solnsrons Anstradio Holdimygs Piy Lid
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Australia Holdings Pty. Lid Holdings Pty, Ltd., Anstralia Anstralia 100.06% 100 0%
Swhgidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Svlmtions Anstrafia Holdings Piv. Lid Holdings Poe. Lid., Austratic
TVS SC5 (Austi Pry. Ltd. {Formenly kmown as Transtar International Freight {Anst) Pty Ltd), Australia Australia 1K) e 100.00%
TV3S SCS5 Wew Zealand Limited (Formerly known as Transtar International Freight Limited.

Mew Zealand Mew Zealand THLON Y, 100.00%;
KAHN Nominees Pty Lid, Australia Anstralia 100.00% 100,004
Transtar International Freight Limited. Hong Keng Hong Kong 100.00% 100.60%
TVS SCS Intemational Freight {Sinygapore) Pre. Ltd (Femerly known as Transtar International Freight

(Singapore) Pte. Limited), Singapore Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Transtar Intemational Freight (Shanghai} Limited, China China 100.00% 100, 00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Holdings Limited ( Thailand } { formedy known as

Traostac Interoational Feeight Holdings Linnted) Thailand 100.00% 100 00%:
TVS 5CS Intemational Freight (Thailand) Limited (Formely known as Transtar [ntemational Freight

(Thailand} Limitedy, Thailand Thailand 150.00% H0.00%
Transtar Intemational Freight (Malaysia) 8D Bhd, Malaysia Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%

f 3 \\
\ e\
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the conselidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(ATl amounts are in Indian rapees (3 lokhs except share datg and otherwise stated)

47 Due to micra, small and medinm enterprises

49

50

51

52

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the detinition of micro and small
enterprises, as defmed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts pavatle te such
enterprises has been made in these consolidated financial statements based on information received and available with the Company, to the extent identitied by the
managerment.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at end of the accounting year
Principal 2,698.00 | B21.57
Interest due thereon 42 85 78.17
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)
The amount of payments made to the micro and small suppliers bevend the appointed day during 9.707.96 2,936 81
each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pavment (which have been 50.22 130.87
paid but heyond the appointed day during the year) but withoul adding the interest specified under
MSEMED Act, 2006
The ameount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year 128.59 22993
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such 104.16 227,86
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006
Exceptional Items Note Year ended Year ended
3] March 2022 31 March 2021
Loss on sale of investments 19B(i) 138,94 -
Gain on stake dilution in joint venture 17(i) - 6,490.00
Write off of goodwill on disposal of Mesco business in North America 164 - i1,275.32)
Disposal of discontinued operations 3TI& 45 1,545 46 -
Settlement of arbitration with erstwhile Chief Executive officer and minority shareholder of TVS 37 (i} () 1,82523 -
3.509.63 5,214.4%
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satistaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
Corporate secial responsibility {(applicable for Companies registered in India) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a Amount required to be spent during the year 26,95 11.60
b Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 2695 11.60
¢ Amount spent ducing the vear on:
i} Constructionfacquisition of any asset - -
i} On purposes other than §) above 26.95 447
d Amount of expenditure ingurred 26,95 16,07
e Shortfall at the end of the vear - -
I Total of previous years shortfall - -
g Reason for shortfall - -
h Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VII of the Act 26.95 16.07
i Details of related party transactions - 038

Undischosed income
The Company has no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 1ax assessments
under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1951)

Benami property
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property

53 Crypto currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

54 Disclosure on (unding transactions

There are no funds that have been advanced or loanad er invested {(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
td or in any other person(s) or entities. including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatseever by or en behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

recorde _etriirmﬁgm{\othenvise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any ny
or aryfEha j..s»l-ll-\c;gtlﬁﬁy'\lg Party (“Ultimate Beneficianies™) or provide anv guatante, security or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2322
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55 Ratios Analysis

Ratios Numerator Denominator 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.03 1.06

Debt equity ratio Taoial debt Shareholder’s equity 234 291

Dbt service coverage ratio Eamings for debt service = Net profit Debt service = Interest & lease payments 1.06 {.69
atter taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Principal repayments

Retum on equity Profit / (loss) attributable to Owners of the Sharcholder’s equity -7.10% -14.77%
Company

[nventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 336.41% 312.56%

Trade recetvable turmover rato Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - Average trade receivable 7.46 5.61
sales return

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net credit purchases = Gross credit Average Trade Payables 0.94 0.838
purchases - purchase return

Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - salez retum Working capital = Current assets — 97.53 44 68

Current liabilities
Met profit percentage Net profit Net sales = Total sales - sales refurn -0.51% -1.08%
Ratuern on capital employed Earnings before interest and taxes Capital employed = Tangible net worth + 6.65% -4.55%

ntal debt + deferred tax liability

Reason for change more than 25% - 31st March 2022
Debt service coverage ratio - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of higher earnings,
Return on equity - The ratio has improved in the current vear on account of better ¢amings.

Trade receivable turnaver ratio - The ratio has improved in the current vear on account of higher collections and factoring initiatives.

Net capital turnover ratio - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of higher collections and factoring initiatives.
Net profit percentage - The ratio has improved in the curtent year as the losses have reduced.
Return on capital employed - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of higher camings.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian rupees () lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

56 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of these consolidated financial statements.

57 Struck off companies
The Group does not have any material transactions with companies struck off.

58 Prior year comparatives
To conform to this period’s classification. certain previous vear figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022
(4 amonnts are i fndian rupees (T) lakhs except sharve dota and othenvwise stated)

Note Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12A 14,353.60 14,560.73
Capital work-in-progress 12B 293.83 407.27
Goodwill 13A 5,287.50 5,287.90
Other intangible assets 13B 491.83 534.55
Right-of-use assets 13C 26,314.00 23,650.77
Financial assets
Investments 14 $3,844.34 42,296.40
Trade receivables 20 604.15 632.46
Other bank balances 22 - -
Depaosits and other receivables 16 7,326.67 7,880.61
Other financial assets 17 - 605,44
Deferred tax assets (net) 11 7,421.21 6,399.97
Non-current tax assets (net) 5,375.29 5,959.97
Cther non~current assets i3 208.71 249.26
Total non-current assets 1,31,611.583 1,08,465.33
Current assets
Inventories 19 263.04 176.03
Financial assets
[nvestments 14 - 1,355.62
Trade receivables 20 24,504.34 28,819.34
Cash and cash equivalents 21 28,964.60 10,531.95
Oither bank balances 22 280.56 270.01
Loans 15 19,116.78 3,818.88
Deposits and other receivables 16 20,728.59 18,168.51
Other financial assets 17 53.76 21.37
Other current asséts 23 21,636.63 19,096.75
Total current assets 1,15,558.30 §2,258.46
Total assets 2,47,169.83 1,90,723.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 24A 3,629.57 3,176.2)
Other equity 24B 1,17,290.52 13,216.76
Total equity 1,20,920.09 76,392.97
Liabilities
Non-current lizbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 25 1,094.38 208.26
Lease liabilicy 13C 18,432.24 18,625.35
Other financial liabilities 27 2,645.57 3,981.11
Provisions 28 55745 203.04
Total non-corrent liabilities 22,729.64 23,017.76




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Al amonnts are in Indient rupees (3} lakhs except share dota and othenvise stated)

Note As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current liabilities
Financial [iabilities

Borrowings 25 39,171.59 30.084.22
Lease liability 13C 10,681.04 7,157.54
Trade payables 26
Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 2,362.05 1,496.54
Dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 34,189.21 37,036.55
Other financial liabilities 27 10,567.13 10,769.26
Pravisions 28 1,269.46 1,223.86
Other current liabilities 29 5,279.02 3,545.09
Total current liabilities 1,03,520.10 91,313.06
Total liabilifies 1,26,249.74 1,14,330.82
Total equity and labilities 2.47,169.83 1,90,723.79

The notes from 1 to 48 forn an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(4l cmounts are in Indian rupees (3} lakhs except share data and atherwise stated)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 5 1,47,180.40 1,24,196.49
Other income o 8,922.30 10,252.85
Total income 1,56,102,70 1,34,449.34
Expenses
Furchase of stock-in-trade 8.56 10.58
Employee benefits expense 7 44,290.61 39,.827.59
Finance costs 8 5,068.18 5,910.07
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 13,644.98 11,548.22
Other expenses 10 95,350.21 36,097.01
Total expenses 1,58,368.54 1,43,393.47
Loss before exceptional items and tax (2,265.84) (8,944.13)
Exceptional items 43 (824.66) -
Loss before tax (3,090.50) (8.944.13)
Income tax expense I
Adjustments of tax relating to prior years - 243
Deferred tax (expensef (credit)) {908.50) {808.79)
Income tax expense (968.56) (806.36)
Loss for the year {2,121.94) {8,137.77
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclussified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (Iosses) on defined benefit plans {150.73) 109.25
Income tax relating to these items 52.67 (38.1%)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or {93.06) TL.67
loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (98.06) FLOT
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,220.00) (8.066.70)
Earnings per share (INR) 24E

Basic {0.62) {2.47)

Diluted (0.62) (247)

The notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 March 2022
(4 amiounis are in fndion rapees (3} fokhs except share data and otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income under the effective interest method on;
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits camried at amortised cost
Investments in debentures carried at amortised cost
Loan to subsidiaries and joint ventures
Amortisation of financial guarantee liability

Dividend income from subsidiaries

Exceptional itemn (gain )loss

Share based payments

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Gain on termination of lease contract

Interest income under income tax refund

Unrealised foreign exchange ditferences

Bad debts written off

Provision for doubiful debits

Provision for doubtful security deposits

{Gain)/Loss on sale of propetty, plant and equipment, net

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and

Change in operating assets and liabilities

{Increase) / decrease in inventories

{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

{Increase) / decrease in other cwrent and non-current, financial and non-financial assets
Increase / {decrease) in trade payables

Increase / {decrease) in other current and non-current, financial and non-financial liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid. net of refunds
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Investment in bank deposits having an original maturity of more than three months
Payments for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries

Sale of Investments/{Investments) in body cotporate

Loans {(given)received to/from subsidiaries

Interest received

Dividend income from subsidiaries

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

(3,090.50) (8,944.13)
{663.84) (235.53)
{377.31) (288.15)

- (36.11)
(273.74) (562.09)

(1,518.33) {1,652.61)

(216.00) {108.00)
38.94 .
747.53 1.680.40
5.068.18 5.910.07

13,644.98 11,548.22
(387.06) {480.34)
(210.53) (305.24)

303.22 (2478.29)
23.86 82.96
2,988.7] 971.68
- 25.00
304.81 82,37
16,382.92 5,210.21
(87.01) {45,52)
1,320.73 9,051 .43

(2,179.22) (12,023.39)

(1.668.90) 4.860.12
(480.93) $933.38

347.27 157.17
13,634.86 17,144.01
584.68 610.55
14,219.54 17,754.56
(10.55) {20.61)

(3,425.1%) (5,480.50)

284.91 165.13
(21,547.95) (1,080.90
1,455.63 (20.60)
{15,501.00) 42,260.61
874,37 834,25
216.00 108.00
(37,651.74) 36,765.98




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone statement of cash flows for the period ended 31 March 2022
(A amounis are in Indian rupees (T} lakhs except share daia and athenvise stared)

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 45,686.64 -
Proceeds from/{repayment) of short-tenn borrowings, net 7.396.16 (33.25431)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2.578.20 4329
Repayment of long-term bomrowings {0.90) (5,593.84)
Interest paid {2,114.83) (3,609.86)
Paymeni of lease liabilities (11,680.42) (9.586.51)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities 41,864.85 (52,001.73)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,432.65 151831
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the financial year 10,531.95 8013.14
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year (refer note 21} 28.964.60 10.531.95

The notes from 1 to 48 forn an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
MNotes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian ripees () lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited) {"the Company'} was incorporated on 16 November
2004 and is in the business of providing supply chain solution services. The Company has been providing the entire basket of supply chain
management services including aftermarket warchouse, in-plant warchouse, global supply chain management services, domestic supply chain
management services, material handling services and services telating to installation and commissioning of telecom towers including managed
services for telecom networks and associated supply chain management of the logistics activities tor telecom service providers and OEMs. On
February 12, 2022, the Company filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus in connection with [nitial Public Offer with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India.

2 Basis of preparation

A Statement of compliance and going concern assessment
These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) to comply with the
requirernents prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, {the “Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 as amended from time to time and presentation 1equirements of Division [[ of Schedule [11 to the Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS comphant
Schedule TIT), as applicable to the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were anthorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 16th May 2022
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.
B Functional and presentation currency
These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.
C  Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
Items Measurement hasis
Certain  financial assets and liabilittes (including Fair value

derivative instruments}
Net defined benefit {asset) / liabilicy Fair valve of plan assets less present value of defined benefit abligations

D Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may difter from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying asswnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Current and non-current classification are in line with the requirements of Schedule [[1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the mwost significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets — useful lives
Property, plant and equipinent represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected usetul life and the expected residval value at the end of its life. The

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for made receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customers that have similar loss patterns {i.e., by geography, customer type, rating etc.)

Assets and obligations rclating to employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit gratity plan and other post-employment benefits and the prezent value of the gratuity obligation are detennined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.

Lease classification, termination and renewal option of feases
Ind AS LE6 requires lessees to detennine the lease tarm as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate
the kease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that bave a significant risk of resufting in 5 material adjustment in the year ended 31
tarch 2022 is included in the following notes:

- Nate 3 (N) (3} & 11 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable prefit against which tax losses carried forward can be
used

- Note 30 (Note A-G) — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions
Note 37 — Financial mstruments - Fair values and risk management
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTLONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{AN antowmns are in Indiarn vapees (T) lokhs except share data and othenvise stated)

L]

Basis of preparation (continwed)
Measur t of fair I

A number of the Company’s accounting pohicies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If thied party information, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support
the conclusion that these valuation meet the requiremenis of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised inte different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level L quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 1hat are observable for the asset or liability, gither directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices).

- Level 3:inputs tor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unchservable inputs).

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an
asset or a liability fal) into ditferent levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in ils enticety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is signiticant to the enlire measurement.

The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has oecurred.

Further information about the assumptions made ir measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 37 — Finaticial instruments - Fair values and risk managemerit

Impact relating to the global heakth pandemic from COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in significant volatility in financial markets and a decrease in global and [ndia’s economic activities in 2020 and early 2021,
Consequent lockdowns and varying restrictions imposed by the Central and various State Governments had led to dissuptions and dislacations of individuals and
businesses. However, with the gradual lifting of the lockdown restrictions during the year, the operations of the Company have returned to normal levels of activity
and in the opinion of the Company, the impact of COVID 19 on its financial metrices are no longer significantly uncertain. The Company has evaluated the impact of
COVID-19 on the business and operations of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and is of the view that it does not have any material impact on the financial results of
the Company on the basis of the facts and events upba the date of approval of these financial statements.

However, in view of the dynamic nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor fiture events / developments that may result in an adverse effect or
the business and operations of the Company.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Naotes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(41 amonnts are in fndic rupees {2) fakhis except share data and otherwise srared)

3 Significant accounting polices
A Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange raies at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if
the average mite approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Mon-mongtary
assets and liabilittes that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cosl in a foreign currency are tramslated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

B Finsncial instroments

i. Recognition and Initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised
when the Company becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial lability is initially measured at fair valve plus, for an item not at fair value threugh profit and loss {FYTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii, Classification and subsequent

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

— amorhised cost;

— FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent fo their inftial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amottised cost if it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Sub ¢ ent and pains and losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, includirg any interest or dividend income,

Financial assets at FYTPL are recopnised in the statement of profit and loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
Financiaf assets at amortised cost reduced by impairment losses. [nerest income, toreign exchange gains and losses and jmpairment are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial habilities are classified as measured at amortised cost ot FYTPL. A financial liabifity is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- rading, or it is a
derivative or it i5 designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are tneasured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in slatement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

#li. Derecognition

Fimancial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to reczive the
contractual cash fows in 2 ransaction in which subsiantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor re1ains snbstantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial agsel.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, bul retains ¢ither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transterred assets, the transferred asseis are not derecognised,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{AIF cmonnsts are in Indian rupees (T} lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting polices {continued)

B Financlal instruments {(continued)
iii. Derecognition (continued)
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cangelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial bability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. [n this case, a
new financial liability based on the modified lerms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying armount of the financial Jability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Oifsetting
Financial assets and financial Habilities ate offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and il intends either to seitle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultzneously.

C  Business combinations

i. Business combinations (other than commen control business combinations)

In accordance with [nd AS 103, the Company accounts tor these business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Company. The
consideration transferred tor the business combination is generally measured at fair value as at the date the contrel is acquired (acquisition date), as are the net
identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually tor impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OC1 and accumulated in equily
as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain
is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve, Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships with the acquiree. Such amounts are generally recognised
in profit ar loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair valve at the date of acquisition. 1 an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured subsequently and setilement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured at
fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

D Property, plant and eguipment

i- Recognition and measwrement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainment
logses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, if any and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly anributable cost of bringing the itlem te its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant partz of an item of propeny, plant and equipment have different vsefvl lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of

property, plant and equipment,
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recoznised in profit or loss,

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expendilure is capilalised only if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Compeny.

iii. Depretiation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of useful life {in
years)

Buildings 0-60

Plant and equipment 03-10

Furniture and fixtures 01-10

Vehicles 08-10

Office equipment h]

Computer equipment 03-06

Leasehold improvements *

* Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset or the lease penod whichever is lewer.

Depreciation method, usefiol fives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and
consequent advice, the management believes that ils estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to vse these
assets and are different from those prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for vse (disposed of).

*
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone fi inl stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AR amoinis are in Indian rupees (T} lokhs except share dava and othervise stared)

3 Significant accounting polices {continued)
E Goadwill and other intangibles

i, Goadwill

Goodwill is recagnised and is measured as the excess of the sum of the considerarion teansferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair valug of the Company's previously held equity shares in the acquiree, over the et of the consideration date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed,

ii. Other Intangible assets

Other intangible assets including these acquired by the Company in a business combination are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently
measured at cost less acenmulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

il. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
recognised in statement of profit and 10ss as and when incurred.

iv. Amortisation

CGroodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values aver their estimated useful lives using the sivaight-line methed,
and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets for the current and comparative pericds are as follows;

Asset Management estimate of useful life (in
vears)

Brand Q35

Customer relationship a7

Computer software 03-10

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

F [I[nvemntories
fnventories consist of stores and spare parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out
formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary covrse of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The comparison of
cost and net realisable value is made on an item by item basis,

G Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial asseis measured at amortised cost;
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit - impmred’ when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated tuture cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Ewidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observalle data:

- significant tinancial ditticulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default;

- the reshcturing of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not cansider otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will eater bankroptey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances using simplified approach, at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measored
as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of detault occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has nol increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Lass allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that resuit from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial fnstrument. [2-month
expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the nsirument is less than 12 months). [n afl cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credil losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expecled credit losses, the
Company considers reasonable and supportable intformation that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
infonmation and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessiment and in¢huding forward- looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset o be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Meastivement of expected credit {osses

Expected credit losses are a probability=weighted estimare of credit Josses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the ditterence
between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTEONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amonmts ave in Indian rupees (8} lakhs except share dara and otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting polices {continued)

G Impairment {continued)
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amoriised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {gither partially or in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of incorne that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
tecovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's non-tinancial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is any indication of
impaitment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount js estimated. Goedwill 1s tested for impatrment annually.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cask inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the
smallest group of assets that penerates cash inflows that are Jargely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs ot groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinalion.

The re¢overable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of (ts value in vse and its fair value less costs to sell, Value in use iz based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific o the CGU {or the asset),

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment ot a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the
{'GUs 10 which the corporale asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asse1 or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable ameunl. Tmpairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. [mpairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 1o the CGL, and
then to reduce the carying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro tata basis.

An impairmenl loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews ar each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent thai the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, it no impairment loss had been recopnised.

For disclosures relating to Goodwill impairment, refer to Note 16A of the Consnlidated Financial Statements of the Company.,

H Employvee benefits & Share based payment arrangements
i. Short-term employee benefits
Short-terin employse benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised tor the
amount expected o be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of equity-seltled share-based payment awards granted 10 employees is generally recognised as an employee benefit expense, with a
comesponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the
estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are gxpected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised
as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment
awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of 1he share-based payment is measured to reflect such cenditions and there is no true-np for differences
between expected and actual outcomes,

jii. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separale enlity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme,
Employees State Insurance Scheme and an superannuation fund to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). Obligations for coniributions k defined ¢ontribution plans are
recognised as an emplovee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or 2 reduction in future payments is available.

iv. Defined benefit plans

A detined benefit plan is & post-employment benefil plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
caleulated separately for ¢ach plan by estimating the amount of future benefil that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projecied wnit credit method, When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited fo the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan {‘the asset ceiling’). [n order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given te any minimum
tunding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the etfiect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised in OCL The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on (he net defined benefil Liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benetit liability, teking inte account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 1o past service {"past service cost’ or ‘past service
gain’} or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement ot a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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3 Significant accounting potices (continued)
v, Other long-term employee benefits
The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benetits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of futare benetit that employees have
eamed in cetura for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determing ifs present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valumion using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

[ Provisions (other than for employee bemefits)
A provision is recognised if, as a resnlt of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, Provisions are detenmined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the
best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the present obligation at the balance sheel date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operaling losses are not provided
far.

i Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the unaveidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expecled cost of 1erminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Betore such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

J  Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liability is disciosed for all;
- possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence wili be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-decurrence of one or more uwncertain future
events nat wholly within the control of the Company (o)
- present obligations arising from pasi events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requited to setile the obligation
or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannet be made.

In respect of contingent assets for which inflow of economic benefits are probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at
the end of the year, and, where practicable, an estimate of their (inancial effect.

K Revenue
i Rendering of services
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Company’s performance of its contractual obligations and on
satisfying all the following conditions:

{1) Partics o the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perforn their cespentive obligations;

{2) Such contract has specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in conngction with the transfer of goods or rendering of services {(hereinafter the
“Transter™).

¢3) Such contract contains specitic payment terms in relation to the Transfer;

{41 Such contract has a commercial nature, namely, 1t will change the risk, time distribution or amount of the Cempany's future cash flow.

Revenue is recopnised when no significant uncenainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of all
indirect taxes and net of refums and discounts.

Performance Obligations:

a} Supply chain management

The Company’s supply chain management segment generates revenue from services to its customers such as providing freight and other transportation services,
warchousing, packaging, kitting, reverse logistics and inventory management contracts ranging from a few months to 2 few years. Certain accessorial services may be
provided to customers under their transportation contracts, such as unloading aod other incidental services. The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over
time as customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the Company’s services. The contracts contsin a single performnance obligation, as the distinct
services provided remain substantially the same over time and possess the same pattern of transfer. The transaction price is hased on the consideration specitied in the
contract with the customer and contains fixed and variable consideration. Tn general, the fixed component of a contract represents amounls for facility and equipment
costs incurred to satisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the contract.

In the case of transponation services, performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits 2 shipment note for the rransport of
gaods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satisfied over the period as the shipments move from origin to destination and revenue is
recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance obligations are short-term, with transit days less than one
week. Generally, customers are billed either vpon shipment of the freight or on a monthly basis, and remit payment according to approved payment terms. The

b) Telecommunication:

Telecommunication contract revenue arises from construction/ erection of towers for some of the Company’s customers in the Telecommunications segment. These
towers are ¢onstructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with customers by outsourcing the activities to sub-contractors.

Transaction price includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, ¢laims and incentive payments, 10 the extent that il is probable
that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. IF the outcome of a contracl can be estimaled reliably, contract revenue is recognised in profit or Joss over
the period in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by reference 1o surveys of work performed (output method).
Otherwise, contract revenue is recognised only 1o the extent of contract costs incurred that ave likely to be recoverable.

Coniracl ¢osts are recognised as expenses as incurred unless they creale an asset related to fulure contract activily. An expected loss un a contract is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Motes te the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amotines are in fndian rupees () Iakhs excepr share data and otherwise stated}

3 Significant accounting polices {continued)

K Revenue {continued}
¢) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of traded goods including elecommunication goods is recognised when the control of the same is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
ofthe goods and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration 1o which it is entitled for the exchanged goods.
Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but oot billed. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, afier deduclion of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods and services
tax, ete. Accumulated experience s used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a
signiftcant reversal will not occur,

Variable consideration:

Generally, the Company’s contracts contain provisions for adjustments to pricing based on achieving agreed-upon performance metrics, changes in volumes, services
and market conditions. Revenue relating to these pricing adjustments is estimated and included in the consideration if it is probable that a significant revenue reversal
will not occur in the tuture. The estimate of variable consideration is determined either by the expected value or most likely amount method and Factors in current, past
and forecasted experience with the customer. Custorners are billed based on terms specified in the revenue contract and remit payment zccording to approved payment
terms

Contract balances:

a) Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration m exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by wansferring goods or services
10 a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised tor the earmed consideration that is conditional.

b) Contract iiabilities:

A conlract liability is the obligation to iransfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) trom the customer. It a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services 10 the customer, a conlract liability is recognised when the
payment is made ot the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract,

L Leases
Company as bessee
The Company assesses al contract inception whether a confract is, o1 contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measutement approach for all leases, except for short-term kases and
leases of Jow-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

{l) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any cemeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on 2 siraight-ling basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asser iransfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation iz caleulated
using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-nse assets are subject to impairement.

(i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured al the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) iess any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments thal depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected o be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cerlain ©
be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to ferminate. Variable
lease payments thal do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) ip the period in which the event
ar condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Tr calculating the present value ot lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicin
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduvced for the
lzase payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments} or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the vaderlying asset.

{iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Lease payments on shori-term leases and Jeases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on actual basis over the lease term.

{iv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under business combinations

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments as at the acquisition date as if the acquired lease were a new lease as at
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3 Significant accounting polices {continued)

L Leases (continued)
{v} Key matters nvolving significant judgement
{a) Determining the lease term of contracts with termination options — Contpany as lessee
As per Ind AS 116, termination options are (0 be considered in determining the non-rancellable period, The period covered by the termination option is included if the
lessee is not reasonably certain o exercise the option. Lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with any optional periods that the lessee is
reasonably certain 1o use. The non-cancellable period of a lease is any period during which the lessee cannot terminate the contract. Consequently, any non-cancellable
period in effect sefs a minimum lease term. This is usually referred as “lock-in™ period in the lease contract. Generally, the lease contracts ave cancellable once the
“lock=in"" period is over, and, in mest cases, the tecmination option is mutually available with minimum notice period requirements under the contract,

In general, since Company has made significant mvestments in each of the warchause in the form of leasehold improvements, racking equipment eic. and the
termination would lead to additional expenses {losses) for dismantling and would lead to business disruption, the management in general has concluded that there is
¢conomic disincentive for the Company to discontinue / ferminate any arrangement. Accordingly, applying Para B34 of Ind AS 116, except for specific cases, the
Company concludes that non-cancellable period generally includes the lease period covered by the option to terminate.

() Petermining the lease term of contracts with rewewal options — Company as lessee

As per [nd AS 116, the period covered by extension option is included ifthe lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option.

As reasonahle certainty is a high threshold, the Company believes in most leases where the lease term is greater than 3 vears assuming reasonable certainty on lease
commencement date may not be appropriale and must be evalvated on a case to case basis, considering factors such as investment in the property, renewal lease rates,
specific modifications to property to meel customer requirements, importance of the location and impact on overall business disruption etc.

M Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right te receive payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recopnised vsing the effective interest method.
The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estirated fulure cash paymenis or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to;

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asse(; or

- the amortised cost of the financial Liability.

In calcalating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset {when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cosl of the liability. However, for financial assets thai have become credit-impaired subsequent to nitial recognilion, interest income is caleulated by
applying the effeclive interest rare to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis,

N Inceme tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in siatement of protit and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or 1o an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
i. Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. Tt is measnred using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recopnised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset
and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred fax

Deferred 1ax s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tinancial reporting purposes and the
comesponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is alse recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferved tax is not
recognised for:

- lemporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the tune of the transaction;

- temporary differences related 10 investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arangements to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable tutere; and
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3 Significant accounting polices (continued)
N Imcome tax (continued)
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

Tax treatment of an item is considered as uncertain when there is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the fax treatment of that item or not.

If there is uncertainty over tax treaiment of an item:

1. An entity should determine an approach or method that predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. Based on the approach, the entity shall determine whether to
consider each uncertain tax ireatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treaiments.

2. It shall assess whether it is probable that the raxation authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment, assuming that the authority has

full right to examine the treatment and has full knowledge of all related information.

3. [ i1 is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax reatment, there will be no impact on the amount of taxable profits/lesses, tax bases, unused tax
losses/credits and tax rates. In viceversa case, the entity shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment on amount of related aforesaid items
by using either the moest likely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred @x assets -
unrecognised or recognised are teviewed af each teporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related 1ax benzfit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferced tax ceflects the 1ax consequences that would follow trom the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, te recover ar
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o oftset current tax liakilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend 1o settle current tax liabililies and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
Tiabilities will be realised simultaneously.

O Borrowing cost
Borrowing cosis are interest and other costs {including exchange differences relating 1o foreign currency borrowings 1o the extent that they are reparded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incorred in conngction with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asse1 which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incorred.

P Cash aod cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaleat comprise of cash on hand and a1 banks including short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an imsignificant risk of changes in value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a mamwrity period of more than three
months are classitied as other bank balances.

Q  Cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effecis of transactions of a noo cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or fudure cash receipts oc payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Group are segregated.

R Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with, When the
grant relafes to an expense item, it is recognised as income on 4 systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended o compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in egual amounts ever the expected useful life of the related asset.

§  Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided te the chief operating decision maker. The Key managerial personnel
comprising the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Direcior assess the financial performance and position of the Group, and make strategic decisians and have
been together identified as being the chief operating decision maker ({CODM').

T Earnings per share
Basic earning pet equity share are computed by dividing the net protit attributable 1o the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit atiributable 10 the equily holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also weighted average number of equity shares thal could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

LU Exceptional items
Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary aclivities, however are of such significance and nature that separate disclosure
enables the user of the tinancial statements to understand the impact in a more meaningful manner,
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Significant accounting polices (continued)
Ch in #e ing policies and disclosures

1

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessi

MCA issued an amendment o Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a
reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1
April 2021,

These amendments had no impact on the tinancial statements of the Company.

(i} Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and [nd AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting etfects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly
risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients;
- A practical expedient to require coniractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly cequired by the reform. to be treated as changes to a floating interest
rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

- Provide 1emporary relief 1o entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk
component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group, The Group insends to nse the practical expedients in fare periods if they become
applicable.

{ili) Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issned by ICAT

The Framework is not a Standard and it does aot override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not farm part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-
setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the siandard-setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as 1o
develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, and o assist all parties to understand
and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following stendards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote to the
definition of an equity instrument in [nd AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of linbility is not revised on
account of revision of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MC A has notitied the Amendments to [ad AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under [nd AS wvide notification dated June 1§, 2021, applicable for annual
periods beginning on or afier April 1, 2021, Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on er afier 1 April
2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

{iv) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that 1o quality for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Therefore, the acquirer does not recognise those costs as part of applying the

acquisilion method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its post-combination financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendmenis had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(v} Amendment to Ind AS 185, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount™ is amended such that the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 10 sell and its value in use™ are replaced with
“higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of dispesal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in [nd AS 105, Ind AS 16 and [nd AS 28,

These amendments had no impact on the financial staiements of the Cormpany.
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Operating segment

In accordance with [nd AS 108 "Operating Segments”, segiment information has been given in the consolidated financial statcments of TVS Supply Chain
Solutions Limited and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone financial statements.

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Bale of services
Income from supply chain management services
income from telecomn services

Other operating revenne
Scrap sales

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest method on:
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits
Investments in debentures
Loans to subsidiaries
Amortisation of financial guarantes liability
Income from finance lease
Interest income on income tax refund
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Exchange difference gain net
Gain on termination of lease
Business development and management services
(iher non operating income

Employee benefits expense

Salanes, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 30)
Share based payment costs**

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 30)

Expenses related to compensated absences
Staff welfare expenses

**Net of ¥ 312.95 lakhs (31 March 2021 $223.91 lakhs) in respect of share options issued to the employees of the Company's subsidiaries.

Finance costs

Interest expenses
Interest on lease liabilities
Other borrowing costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9.3% 991
1,33,295.03 1,11,317.87
13,815.72 1251125
1,47,110.75 1,23,829.12
60.29 357.46
60,29 157.46
1.47.180.40 1.24.196.49
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

454 38 41.68
7mn 288.15
- 36,01
27374 562,09
[,518.33 1,652.61
209456 193.85
210.53 305.24
216.00 168.00
- 2478.29
387.06 430.34
3,423.57 2,890.05
1,858.92 1,216.44
3.922.30 10.252.85
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
36,635.30 32,295.87
3,082.86 2,606.10
747.53 1.680.40
315.23 408.92
435.77 267.03
3,073.92 2,569.27
44.290.61 39.827.59
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

227593 328176
2,682.59 2,524.06

109.66 104.25
5.068.18 £.010.07




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTHONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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9

10

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation ot property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of right-of-use assels
Amortisation of intangible assets

QOther expenses

Freight charges
Sub-contracting costs®
Staft transportation charges
Material handling charges
Casual labour charges
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Rates and taxes
[nsurance
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinrery

Buildings

Orthers
Advertisement and business promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Communication costs
Printing and stationery
Factoring charges
Bank charges
Legal and professional fees
Security expenses
Payment to auditors {refer note below}
Exchange ditferences, net

Bad debits and advance written off (net of adjustment against provision for deubtful debts T 145.64 (31 March

2021: T 104.8¢))
Provision for doubtful debts/advances
Provision for doubtful security deposits

Loss on sale of property plant ind equipment, net
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 39)

Loss on financial mstruments measured at fair value through Profit & Loss

Miscellaneous expenses

* Represents cost of sub-contracting in respect of services relating to installation and commissioning of telecon towers.

Note:
Details of payment to auditors

As auditor

Augdit of standalone financial statements
Audit of consolidated financial statements
Audit of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes ¥

Tax audit
Cenification fees

Services in connection with proposed initial public offer

Orther matters

Reclassitied to prepaid expenses (refer note below}

Net total

#* audit fee of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes includes £ 2.3 lakhs relating to earlier vears

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
326475 2,984.0%
10,139.18 8,244.0%
241.05 320.04
13.644.98 11.548.22
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
4427317 40,359.60
9,184.95 10,.411.41
1,826.86 1,435.20
1,525.92 971.85
20,£35.69 15,034.90
1,047.91 1,324.29
BO5.55 657.01
1,756.47 £,606.84
47035 457.22
3B81.85 268.41
111.13 61.85
506.11 303.37
1.638.76 1,488.98
151.21 112.61
613.10 32071
422.01 377.94
976.43 49R.57
223.66 193.85
46.20 160.33
231218 1.801.34
2,670.81 2,373.68
143,90 186.85
303.22 -
23.86 82.96
2.988.71 o71.68
- 25.00
304.81 82.37
- 8.95
- §91.79
412.39 1,806.45
95.356.21 86.097.01
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

51.00 3895
66.40 47.90
184.54 69.00
200 2.00
7.50 14.00
248.00
- 15.00
559.44 186.85
415.54 -
143.90 186.85

Note: Excludes remuneration for services in connection with proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the Company, which is included in other current

assets under the head prepaid expenses.
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11 Income tax expinse

A, Amounts recognised iu profit or loss

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Current tax (a)

Tax relating tc eaclier years - 143
- 243
Deferred tax (h)
Attributable to ctigmation and reversal of remporary differences {968.56) (308,79
(968.56) (803,79
Tax expense (at+h) _(968.56) (806.36)
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Tax (expense) / Tax (expense) /
Belore tax bemefit Met of tax Before tax beaefit Met of tax
Remensurement of defined benefit liability / (asset) (150.73) 52.67 (95.06) 109,25 {3813} 71.07
(150,73} 52.67 198.06) 109.25 (38.18) 7107
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax {3.090.50) {8,944.13)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 34.04% {1,079.96) 34.94% (3,125.44)
Effects of :
Penmanent disallowances -3% 106.51 1% 117.29
Income not subject to rax [ ~ -3 23902
Currem year loss on which DTA was not recognised 2% 48.55 -11% 1,007 .85
Changzs in estimate related 1o prics years 0% . -li% 968.76
Clers 1% {43.60} 1 {4.94)
Effective tax rate 3% (968.56) 9% (B4M6.36)
D, Recogmised deferred tax assets aud liabilities
a. Deferred tax assets and liabidities ave antrit le to the following ©

Deferred tax asseds {net)

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

Deferred tax asset

Employee benefits L5141t 2.108.23
Provision against financial asseis 3,096.14 2,106.86
Tax incentives - 1oz
Carried torward tax losses 95.55 9535
Depreciation and amortisation 1,533.39 1,002.87
Right of use asset and lease liability 1,177.02 1,084.44
Net Deferred tax asset T A2 6, 3HLOT

E. Unrecognised deferved tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recopmised in respact of the following ¥ems, because it is not probable that fisture taxable profit will be available apainst which the company can use the

benefits therefrom:

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Untrecognised

Uvorecogpised tax

Gross amonot tax effect Gross amoant effect
Tax losses 13,906,99 4 85960 3,608.10 1,260.82
Unabzerbed depreciation 342,67 294.46 131.29 4588
F. Tax losses cacvied forward
31 March 2022 Expiry date * | 31 March 2021 Expiry dace *
Expiry within 3- 10 years 410.18 | 2023-2029 41018 | 2028220
Expiry within 5-10 years 4,176.92 | 2029-2030 4,176.92 | 2020-2030
Expiry within 5-10 years 9.319.88 | 2030-2031 -
Never expir 242,67 131.29
14.749.66 4.718.3%

* Expiry date mentioned i= based on assessment year.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLLTIONS LIMITED
MNotes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian rupees (T) lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

b. Movement in deferred tax assets

Balance as at 1 Recognised in  Recognised in  Bal asat Recognised in  Recognisedin  Balance as at
April 2020 Profit & Loss OCT 31 March 2021 Profit & Loss OC1 31 March 2022
Employee benefits 1,458.10 639,31 (38.18) 2,100.23 (647.79 32.67 1.514.11
Provision against financial assets 2,31646 (209.60) - 2,106.86 989.28 - 3,096.14
Tax incentives 3068 {2.04) - 1.02 (1.02) -
Carried forward tax losses 95.55 - - 95,55 - - 935,35
Depreciation and amortisation 751.15 251.72 - 1,002.87 §35.51 - 1,538.39
Right of use asset and lease Liability 1,005.04 79.40 - 1,084.44 91.38 - 1,177.02
Net Deferred tax asset 5.629.36 308.79 (38.18) 6,399.97 968.56 52,67 7,421.21
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts are in Indian ripees (8} lakhs except share dore and otherwise stared)

12B Capital work-in-progress
8 Ageing of capital work-in-progress

As at 31 March 2022 <1 year 1 to 2 years 210 3 years > 3 years Total
Projects in progress 293.83 - - - 293.83
293.83 - - - 293.83

As at 31 March 2021 <1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years > 3 years Total
Projects in progress 377.02 30.25 - - 407.27
377.02 30.25 - - 407.27




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standafone financial statements for the year ended 3! March 2022
(At amonms are wn Indion rupees (T} lakhs except share data and otherwise siated)

13A Goodwill

13B

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Goodyill Total

Gross carrying amount
Balance at | April 2020 5,287.90 5,287.90
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 5,287.90 5,287.90
Balance at 1 April 2021 5,287.90 5,287.90
Drisposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 5,287.90 5,287.90
Accumulated impairment loss
Balance at 1 April 2020 - -
Iinpairment for the year - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 - -
Balance at | April 2021 - -
Impairment for the period - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 - -
Carrying amounts (net)
As at 31 March 2021 5,287.90 5,287.90
As at 31 March 2022 5,287.90 5,287.50
Other intangible assets
Reconciliation of carrying amount

Customer Brand Computer Total

relationship software

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 April 2020 609.35 676.63 1,773.75 3,059.73
Additions - - 105.78 105.78
Disposals/retirernent - - {0.43) (0.43)
Balance at 31 March 2021 609.35 676.63 1,879.10 3.165.08
Balance at 1 April 2021 609.35 676.63 1,879.10 3,165.08
Additions - - 198.33 198.33
Balance at 31 March 2022 609,35 676.63 2,077.43 3,363.41
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
Balance at 1 April 2020 242.07 G12.80 145587 2,310.74
Amortisation for the year 87.05 63.83 169.16 320.04
Disposals/retirement - - {0.25) (0.25)
Balance at 31 March 2021 329.12 §76.63 1,624.78 2,630.53
Balance at 1 April 2021 329.12 676.63 1,624.78 2,630.53
Amortisation for the period 87.05 - 154.00 241.05
Disposals/retirement - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 416.17 676.63 1,778.78 2,871.58
Carryving amounts (net)
As at 31 March 2021 280.23 - 254.32 534.55
As at 31 March 2022 193.13 - 298.65 491.83




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts gre in Indian rupees () lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

13C Right of use assets
a  The lease of buildings primarily consists of warechouses and office premises taken on [ease for more than [2 months.

b  Set out helow are the carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised and the movements during the period

Building Furniture and Total
fixtures

Net carrying amount
Balance at 1 April 2020 25,131.15 10.71 25,141.86
Additions 9,903.67 - 9.903.67
Reversals (fess) {3,144.29) {6.38) (3,150.67)
Amortisation (fess) (8,239.76) {4.33) (8,244,09)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 23,650.77 - 23,650.77
Balance at 1 April 2021 23.650.77 - 23,650.77
Additions 16,068.67 - 16,068.67
Reversals (less) (3,266.26) - (3.266.26)
Amartisation (fess) {10,139,18) - (10,139.18)
Balance at 31 March 2022 26,314.00 - 26,314.00

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movement during the period

31 March 2022

31 March 2011

Balance at the beginning of the year 25,782.89 2701115
Additions 15,981.55 9,465.20
Accretion of interest 2,682.59 2,524.06
Payments (11,680.42) {9,586.51)
Reversals (3,653.33) {3.631.01
Balance at the end of the year 29,113.28 25,782.89
Current 10,681.04 7.157.54
Non - Current 18,432.24 18.625.35
Cash outflows for leases £1.680.42 9,586.51
The following are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amortisation expenses of right of use assets 10,139.18 8,244.00
Tnterest expenses on lease liabilities 2,682.59 2,524.06
Gain on termination of lease 387.06 480.34
Expenses relating to short term leases 1,756.47 1,606.84
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 14,965.30 12,855.33

Y
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Notes to the dalone i fal st for the year ended 31 March 2022
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14 Investments
A Nom-current investments 31 March 2022 Al March 2021

1I tid &

in equity instr

Investments in subsidiaries

TY$S 508 Global Freight Soluions Linited {Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Globa) Freight Services Limited) £,045.39 1.264.14
1,142,495 (31 March 2021 : 1,080,000% equity shaces of T 18 cach fully paid up

TV 505 (Sizun} Limired {Fonnerly known as TVS Logistios SIAM Limited), Thailand 188.45 13845
100,000 {31 Warch 2021 : 100,000} ordinary shares of LK} Baht each fully paid up

TYS America Inc. 9004 90.04
490 (31 March 2021 : 490} shares of oo par value

TVE Logistics Investment UK Limited 5,066.44 5.066.44
G,195 698 (31 March 2021 : 6,195,698} ordinary shares of | GBP each fully paid up

TVS Logistics Investments US4 Inc. 3,666.60 3566.60
61,510 {31 March 2021 : 61.510) shares of no par value

FLEXOL Packaging (India) Linited L0977 1.553.08
770416 (31 March 2021 ; 884,222} equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

SPC international {India} Private Linnited 56149 561.49
S1,000 {31 March 2021 : 31,0000 equity shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid up

TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited 1.0p 1.00
19,000 {31 Morch 2021 - 10,000} equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pie. Ld. {Fonnerly known as TV $-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Lunited), Singapors 18,260.34 14.260.36
34,849,324 {31 March 2021 : 34,849 .324) equity shares of SGD | each fully paid up

TVS Tovol Tsushe Supply Chain Selutions Limited 120.00 120.00
1.200.000 (31 March 2021 : 1.200.000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully pad wp

White Diata Systems India Pvt Litd 4,219.84 421934

2107310 (31 March 202) - 21,07 810) equily shares of ® 10 each fully poid up

Ei IPL Wareheusing Pvi Ltd 20,440.00 -

200,000 (31 March 2021 : Nil) equity shares of T 100 each fully paid up

62,539.38 40,991.44

[ovestmenis in joint veniures
TVS Indusirial & Logistics Parks Private Limited * 1.375.00 §375.00
5.500,000 {31 March 2021 : 5,500.000) equiry shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

1.375.00 1L,375.00

Untquoted investment in preference shares carvled at amortised cost
Cargowings Lopistics Limited 2,500.00 2,500.00
25.000.000 (31 March 2021 : 25,000,000} redeemable preference shares {"RPS*) of T 10 2ach fully paid up

2.500.00 2,500.00
Unquoted investment in body corporate at fair value
Tanil nadu Apex Skill Develop Centra for Logisti 20,00 20.00
200,000 (31 March 2021 : 2,00,000 ) cquity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

20.00 20.00
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14
A

lda

Investments {(cantinued}
WNio-current investments (eontinued)

Provision for decline in fair value of investments
u ted in in equity instr ! preference shares

TVS America Tne. 190043 {90.04)
Cargowings Logistics Linited 12,500.00) (2,500.00)
(2,50000) {2,59004)
Total non-rurrent investments 63.844.34 42,296.40
Apprepate amound of unquoled investinents 66,434.38 44,886.44
Apgregate amound of inpairment in the valoe of invesinents 2,500.04 2,590.04
* During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company's invesunent in TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvi, Limited diluted from 50% to 31.2% on of primary in by CDC Group
PLC in the foon of Compulsorily Convertible Pref: Shares and Compulscrily Convertible Deb In the lidated finanwial of the Company, this d i disposal has been
pecounted far in accordance with Ind AS 28 and the consequent gain of T 6,490 lakhs has been disclosed m the lidated £ ial a8 an ptional item (refer note |7 of the
Tidated [i Aol ot of the pany),
Current investments 3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unquoted investment in debentures carried at anwrtised cost
Prasannz Purple Mobility Schnicns Privace Limited
Nil {11 March 2021: 25,400) Series [ NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Won-Convertible Debentures of T - 25397
1400 each
Prasanna Purple Mobility Selutions Private Limited
Nil {31 March 2021~ 30,690) Senes [ NCD, 0. 1% Unsecired Non-Convertible Debenhures of € - 301.65
1000 each
Prazannia Purpls Mobility Sohetions Private Linfled
Nil (31 March 2021: 80.000) Oprionally Convertible Debenhues of T 1000 ¢ach £00.00
Tatal curvent investments - 1.333.62
Apgregate of unquoted i = 1,335.62

Apgrepate amount of inpairment in the value of inveshnents - -

Note:
During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Company has sold the entire debenture instruments to Drive India Enterprise Sclutions Lanited for a consideration of 2 1,822.10 lakhs and derecognised
the investment in debentwes along with the interest accrued (refer note 21 The Company incurred a net loss of € 138.94 Jakhs for the vear ended 31 March 2022,

Assets held for sale® 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
In in equity ingtr iy

Drive India Emterprise Solutions Linited 402143
2210000 (21 March 2021 : 2 210,000} equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Less: Provigicn for decline in fair value of investments {4,021 43}

Unguoted investment In preference shaves carried at amortised cost

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Linited - 2,200.52
1.084,000 (31 March 2021, 1,084,000) 0.0001% cumulsiive, redeemable. non-convertible, participatmy preference shares of ¥ 10 each

Less: Provision for decline in fair value of investmenis . {2,200.52}
* Lipto the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company classified its i t in Dirive [ndia Enterprise Sclutions Liniled 5s assets held for sale and measured the same i accordance with Ind AS

105 “Non Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Qperations” at lower of its carrying amourit and fair value less cost 10 sell. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company entered i
te Share Purchase Apreement dated Seprember 29, 2021 {“Mew SPA™ with the Buyer for disposal of investments in IMESL for a consideration of T 100 lakhs (refer note 431,
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15

16

17

Loans

Louwns to related parttes
Unsecured, considered good (refer note 34)

Loang to others
Linsecured, considered doubtful
Provision for doubifial loans to others

Details of loan given to promaeter, direstor, key managerial person or related pariies that are repayable on demand :

Name of the borrower {(Wholly Owned Subsidiaries)
TVS Logistics nvesioent UK Limited, UK

TVS 8CS (Siam) Lunited {Formerly known as TVS Logistics S1AM Limited), Thailand

Deposits and other receivables

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered goad

U & P

oo b s d

for P

Security deposit with related parties
Unsecured, considered good

Other receivables
Advances i emplovees
Fuiance kase reveivables (cefer note 124 & 31}
Receivable from subsidiaries (rafer note 343
Receivable from others

Considered doublful

: for doubtful receivabl

Other financlal assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered pood

Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Interest accrued on invesbnents

Others

For olher finangial asses secured against borrowings, see note 25,

31 Murch 2022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1911478 331888
19,116.78 381888

1,004 .63 L004.63
(1,004.63) (1,004.631
19.116.78 31318.88

3 March 2021

OQutstanding loan % Outstanding loan %%
18,666.07 8% 1,381.86 89%
450.71 2% 437.02 11%
19.116.78 £00% 34818.88 100%
Non-current Curremt
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.902.07 2,575.90 1,233.94 903.74
- - 113.02 12192
- - (113.02; (121.92)
2.902.07 2,575.70 1,233.94 903.74
521,57 464.%3 - -
521.57 464.83 - -
- - 810,31 1,533.30
1,257 .46 854.97 569,28 302.53
2,645.57 398111 18.115.06 15,428.94
- - 180.74 180.74
- - {180.72) {130.74)
390303 4,840.08 1%.494.65 17,264.77
7.326.67 7.880.61 20.728.59 18.168.5¢
Non-current Current
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2012 31 March 2021
- 13.91 10435
. - 272 1.02
- 605,44 . .
- - 37.13 -
- 544 5376 2137
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20

Other non-¢urrent asses

Capital advances

Lnsecured vonsidered good
Unsecured considercd doubtfut
Provizion for pnsecured dowbifil

ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

Advance for supply of goods and services

Unzecured considered pood

Others
Prepaid expenses

Inventories

Stores and spares

Of the above, goods In transit

For inventories secured against borrowings, see nole 25,

Trade recelvables

Gross Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Credil impaired

Loss Allowance

Credit impaired

Net Trade Receivables
Mom-corrent
Current

Ageing of trade receivable from the due date of payment;

Nor-Curvent
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Undisputed. external
Disputed, extemal

3 March 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Undispwed, extemnal
Disputed, external

Current
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Undisputed, external
Dizputed, extermal

Trade Receivables - credit inpaired
Undisputed, external
Drisputed, external

31 March 2421

Unsecured, considered good
Undisputed. external
Disputed, exteral

Trade Receivables - credil unpaired
Undispused, external
Disputed, external

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
137.15 94.63
0.14 406
(0.14) (4.06)
137.15 94.68
15500 140,00
155.00 140.00
6.56 14.58
6.56 1458
208.71 249.26

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

263.04 17603
163.04 176.03
322 1520

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

2511549 H.451.80

7,893.5% 4,904 .82
(7,893,53) {4,904.52)

25,118.49 29.451.80

604,15 63246

24,514.34 28.819.34

The Company's exposure to credit and curtency risks, and loss allowances telated ta trade receivables are disclosed in note 37.

Mot due < & months & months to 1 year 1to 2 years 240 Iyears  More than 3 years Total

604.15 - - - - - 04.15
60418 - = - L 504,15
Mot due < 6 months & months o L year 1to 2 years 2todyears  Morethan 3 years Total

63246 - - - - 632,46
632.46 - - - - 632,46
Not due < i months & months to 1 vear 1 to 2 years 2to3 years More than 3 years Total

11,087.21 10,878.62 1,733.58 - - 814.93 24.514.34

1108721 10,875.62 1.733.58 - - 814.93 2451434

401.54 1,290.17 1.158.64 205586 2417.05 732326

570.27 5727

401.54 1,290.17 1.158.64 205585 2417.05 57027 789353
11.488.74 12.168.79 2.892.23 2.055.86 2.417,05 1.385.20 32.407.87
Not due < & maoaths 6 months te 1 year 1o 2 years 1to 3 years  More than } years Total

12,551.26 14,600.62 852.52 - . 81494 2881934

12,551.26 14,600.62 852.52 - §14.94 25,819.34

16740 17038 66778 2,114.80 598.77 6.32 4,334.55

12.09 558.18 570.27

16740 77938 66778 2,114.90 610.86 564.50 4,904.82
12.T18.66 15 380.00 1.520.30 111449 61&6 137044 33.724.16
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The Campany has transferred centain receivables under non: o where sul ial risk and Is related to these receivables are transferred to the buyer and the same is de-
recoymised from the balance sheet.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Mavch 2021
Carrying aimount of transferred receivables 11,331.70 3.303.60
Carrying amount of exp ined by the Comg - -

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
During the year, the Company has entered into a recourse factoring and the Company has net transferved substantially al! risks and rewards, hence these assels bave not been de-recoynised in ils

enbirety,
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Carrying amownt of transferred assets ineasured at ainortised cost 2,999,908 -
Carrving mnount of associated liabilities (Parl of borrowings) 2,9909.08 -
Fair value of assels 259998 -
Fair valoe of sssociated liabilities 299508 -
Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2022 H Mareh 2021
Cash on hand 20.2% 10.6%
Balance with banks
On current accounts 16,812,280 1041145
Deposits with original inaturity of less than three months 12,138.51 10821
218.964.60 10.£31.98
Other bank balances 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deposits with original maturity of inore than 3 months 230.56 27001
Margin money deposiled with banks - -
280.56 270.01
Current 330,56 270.01
Non-Current - -
Other current asgets 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advance related (o supply of goods and services to parties other than retated parties
Unsecured considered pood 143223 327660
| dc idered doobiful 1,577.77 1,710.60
Provision for doubtful advances (L3717 (1. 710.60)
343223 3,276.60
Advance for supply of goods and services to related parties
Unsecured, consideced pood £31.34 13646
£31.84 136.46
Unbilled revenns 12,557.26 12,702 .45
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 2,568.61 269.55
Balances with gavernment authorities 254181 2,706.81
(nhers 4.88 4.82
E115.30 1,981.24
21.636.63 19.096.75

For ather current assets secured against borrowings, see note 25.
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244 Share tapital

Authorised ghare capiial 31 March 2022 31 March 2421
SHEO00,000 cquiry shares of ¥ 1 each (31 March 2421: 34,300,000 equity shares of 2 10 each) 54%0.00 345000
1200000 (31 March 2021: 1.200,000) preterence shares of € 10 each # 12000 12000
1,100,000 (31 March 2021: 1.100,600) preference shares of 100 sach - 1,300.00
Tssued

Eguiny shure

135,104,018 equity shares of € | 2ach at par (31 March 2021 13810401 of € 10 each ot par} 138104 [IEIRIC]
30,665,000 equity shares of T 1 each ata premium of 2 15.57 {3 March 2621 5,066,800 of T 10 each at a premium of T 133,72 par share) 5065.6% S06.68
32,231 940 equiry shares of 3 1 each at a premiom of 2 1250 {31 March 2021: 3,233,194 of T 19 cach al a premium of £ 185.00 pur share) 32232 32131
2,758,000 equity shares of T | each at @ premium of T 6,50 {31 March 2021 275 800 of 2 10 each at a premium of ¥ 65.00 per share) 2758 1758
44,568 1640 equily shares of T 1 each a1 2 premium of € 42.49 {31 March 2021: 4.456 X16 of € 19 cach al a premivm of £ 924.92 por share) H5.68 44568
17,086,070 equily sharez of 2 1 each o1a pramium of £ 6350 (31 March 2021: 1,798,607 of ¥ 10 each a1 a premium of T 685,00 per share) 179.86 179.8i
31,635,150 equily shares of 2 1 each 21 a premium of € 44.00 (31 March 2021 : 3,163,515 ef £ 10 each a1 a preminm of ¥ 940.00 per sharey 11635 31635
UEQO00 equity shares of € 1 each al a preiivm of € Y400 (31 March 2021 1 Y5000 o ® 10 each ol a premivm 012 540,00 per share) .50 u.5n
12,089,310 cquiry shates 02 | cach at a preminm of 2 143.75 {31 March 2023 : Nil} 120.8% .
143,680 equity shares of £ 1 each at a premiom of T 94000 (31 Macch 2021 : Nil)1 Refer note 248 ) 1.44 -
$56,300 equity shares of 2 | gach (31 Margh 2021 = Nil} ( Refer note 248 } 5.56

31,086.790 (31 Murch 2021 : Nil) equily shares of T1 each at a premiom of ¥ 14393 per share * 31087

14,33.820 (31 March 2027 ; Mil) equity sheres of 2 each a1 a premivm of T 127.00 per share 14.34

26,00 (31 March 2021 : Nil) equity shares of £1 each at a premium of ¥ 94,00 per share 0.26

Todal issued capital 1,642.37 318901
Called, Subscribed and Pald wp

Eguity shaves

362,637,230 equity shares of 2 1 each (31 March 2021: 31,730,133 equity shares of £ 10 2ach) 1.626.37 3170
Add: Amount paid up on 1,600,000 equity shares of € | cach forfeited 21 ® 0.2 each (31 March 2021: 160,008} equity ilo .20

shares of % 10 cach forfeited a1 ¥ 2 cach
162057 31762

#5351 (33 March 2021; 15,2510 0.0001% cumulative, redeemable, nen-convertible, panticipating prefarence shares have been classified s a fnancial lability (see note 25}

HNode - The Boand of Direvtors of e Company in its ing held on I ber 15, 2021 and sharetolders in the Extraordinary General Mecting held on January 31, 2022 approved the sub-
division of shares from T 10 per share 40 T 1 per share. Shares ink i d in the fi ial i adjusted for the share splic. The number of shares used for the caleolation of

eomings per share, ond the earnings per share in Note 24E (including that in e comparstive perods), have been adiusted for p o Paragraph 64 of Ind AS 33 - “Eamings Per Share'
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003,

5. Reconclliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at end of the reporting period

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Nas ¥ in lakhs Noa T im Inkhs
Equity shares
Al the beginning of the year J02,30,133 3173 3L12.30,133 31758
Additional shares pursuami o shars split durmg the year 28,557,197 - - -
Shares issucd during the year { refer note helow} 4,53.35.500 453.36 - -
Ouistending at the end of the year 362637230 I6lod? 3.17.30,133 3,173.0

The: Company has [ssued squity shargs o' 31,086,790 st a face vahee of € 1 each to Exor Special Opponunilizs Mastar Fund for a premiom of € 143.75 per share.

b. Terms/rights atiached to rquity shares
The Company has one cless of equity shares having lece value of 2 1 per share. Each helder of equity shares is niitled to one vare per share. The Company declarss and pays dividend in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirgctors is subject 10 the approval of the shareholders in the ing Annial General Meeting,

¢. Terms/rkzhis attached to preference shares

The preference shares shall be cumulative, redesmsable, non-conveniible, panicipali i sharey {‘pref: shares’), The preference shares shall carry @ preferential cght 1o dividends
over the Equity Shares. The preference shares shall carry a ﬁxed rate ot puferentlal dividend a1 the rate of .0001% per annum. ln addition to the fixed rate of dividend, the preference
shur¢holders shall. at their diseretion, be enlitled 1o additional p it dividend and carcy a preferentiol right to dividends over the equity shares . The preference shares shall be redeemed,

from time 1o time as may be required by the pref hareholders mt face valuc plus the rdemption preminm peyabde thercon no dater than: 24 yearz from the date of allement ar longer period
as may be prascribed by faw.

The holder of preference shores have a righ 1o vole only on resolutions ptaced before the company which direetly affect the rights anached 1o prefereone sharey and, any resohtion for the winding
up of the pany or for the repay or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and voling right on a poll shal) be ity propoction 1¢ dhe share in the paid-up preference share <apital of

the peny. On winding up or repay of capilel, the preference shareholders shali carry a preferential right of rep
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24A Share capital {continued)
d. Details of shiaceholders holding more than 5% shares of 4 class of shares in the company

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares o holding Nuomber of shaves o holding

Equity shares of T 1 each (March 2021: T 10 each), fully paid np

T ¥ Sumdram lyengar & Sons Private Limited * - - 107,271,343 33.81%
TYS Mobility Private Linied * 10,72,73,430 29.58% - -

T 5 Rajam Rubbers Private Limited 6,56, 13 57 13.09% . -
CDPO Private Equity Asia Pte Lid - - 1,21,36.892 38.25%
Chnega Te Holdings Pre Lid, Singapore - - 13,55,847 5.00%
Exor $pecial Opporiunities Master Fund 42569160 11.74% - -
DRSR Logistics Setvices Private Limited 3,75,02,140 10.34% 3750214 11.82%
hahogany Singapore Company Pte, Ltd 1,83,30.310 5.20% - -

* The members of ihe TVS Family had entered inte 3 Memorandum of Family Arrangement (“"MFA™) dated 10 December 2020 in order to align and synehronize the ownership! conlrol over
various panies! busi with the of the as was being done by the respeciive braiches/ sub-branches of the TVS Family., In the context of the above. a

Compasite Scheme of Amalg ion and At (“Scheme") under sections 230 to 233 of the Companies Acl, 2013 was filed with Hon"ble National Company Law Tribuaal, Chenren Bench
(“NCLT"} and an order was pronounced on Gth Decemnber 2021 sanctioning the Schemne by the MCLT.

B

Consequent to the same, ard with effect from 4 February 2022, the TSE Mobility and Supply Chain Solutions Business Undertaking of T ¥ Sundram Tyangar and Sons Private Linnted ("TV38")
including 10,72,73,430 equity shares representitg 22. 70% equity shares of TS Supply Chain Soluions Linited was, as a resull of the demerger from TVSS, transferred to and vested opon TVS
Mobility Private Lintited { formetly knowa s T.S.Rajam Distribation Services Private Limited). Consequent to the above, TVS Mobility has becone the Peomoter of the Company.

XL ITR lative, red bk convertible, participating preference shares of £ 10
each, fully paid up
Tata International Luniled 1.677 50.01% 7,677 50.01%
Tata Industries Limited 1674 49.99% 7674 49.99%
0.0001%% Neno- Eative, participating, pulsorily convertible preference shares of T 100
each, fully paid up (Series A}
Mahegany Singapore Cownpany Fie, Lid . - 10,23,350 100.00%
{001 % Non- lative, Non-Participating, Compubsorily Cenvertible Preference Shares of
T 10 gach, Tully paid up
David Robbins 39998 33.33% 35,998 21.05%
M3 Krishnan . 0.00% 5,992 5.26%
Sueliw Pty Lid 0.00% 12,004 6.32%
R Dinesh - 0.00% 2,99 1.58%
Sanjive Shanna 40,002 3333% 40,002 21.05%
Tarun Kliama - 0.00% 43,006 23.69%
Andrew Jones 40,002 33.331% 40,002 21.05%
&, Details of sharehobding of promot
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of % holding % Change During  Number of shares %4 holding % Change During
— shares thevear the year

TV Sundran lyengar & Sons Private Limited - - -100% 1,07,27,343 34% -
TVS Mability Private Limited ¢ 19,72,73.430 30% 100% -

24B  Other Equity
Securities preminm
Securilies premiwn is used 1o record the premium received on izsue of shares, [t is ulilised in accordance with the provisions for the Companies Act, 2013,
Capital reserve
During, privr years, the Company had teissued the shares forfeited. The profit oa reissue of such forfeited shares has been transferred to capital reserve,
Capiital retemption reserve

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Campany had red d pref: ¢ shares issued 10 Tata Lnternational Limited and Tata Tndvsiries Lunited, our of profits of the Company. A sum
equivalent to the nominal amount of the shares red 1 had been ferred 10 capital redeplion reserve in dance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Share options

The pany has Manag it ive Plan {MIP} scheme under which share options are pramed to emplovees which has been approved by the shareholders of the pany. In accord with
the tenns of the plan, eligible employees may be pranted options to purchase equity shares of the Company if they are in service on exercise of the prant. Each employee share option converts into
ome equity share of the company on exercise ai the exercise price as per e scheme, The option cary neither rights to dividend nor voting rights. Options can be exercised at any time fron the date
of vesting to the date of their expiry.
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24D

Other Equity {continued)

Compulsorily tonvertible preference shares

On June ¥, 2003 and August 22, 2018, the Comnpany has alloted 13,340 and 25,600 Non- Camulative, Mon-Pasticipating. Comy y U¢ Pret Shares ("CCPE™) of 2 10 each
respectively, at a premiwn of 2 940 each 10 ientified p on a preferential basis for a ideration of ¥ 126.73 Iakhs and T 243.77 lakhs respectively. CCPS camy a dividend of 0.001% per
antwm and the dividend rights are non- cumulative, On Movember 20, 2018, the Company has issuad bonus shares of 1510060 10 the sharcholders of CCPS in the ratio of 1:3.57 and the securities
premiwm account was utilised 1o the extent of T 15,10 lakhs for the i5sus of said honus shares. The preference shares 1o be convened mto equal oumber of equity shares ranking pari-passu with the
existing equity shares, afier the end of four years from the date of issue or earlier at the option of the Board. In the event of liguidation of the Company before conversion of praference shares, the
holders of preference shares will have pricrity over equity shares in the repayment of capital. During the year ended 31st March, 2022 the Company has converted 69,998 preterence shares mto
equity shares of 69 998 ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shares. These shares have been sub-divided into T 1 cach i the extraordinary general meeting held on January 31, 2022

i Febryary 7, 2020, the Company has allotted 10,23,350 Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {“CCFS™ of T 10 each, at a premium of T 1610.07 each to Mahogany Smpapore
Company Pie. Lid {“CCPS Holder ") on a preferential basis, lor a ideration of approx. T 175 Crove, Each CCPS camies a mininmn preferential dividend rate of 0.00031% and in addition to and
atter pay of such p il dividend, the CCPS Holder would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any dividends paid 10 the bolders of shares of any other class {including equity shares) or
secies on & pro rata, amf-conveﬂcd hasis. Each CCPS would be converted inta fully paid-up equity shares ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shares. in the ratio of 1:1 {subject to such
as o plated in the subscription agreement deted January 22, 2020 executed by and mnongsi inter alia the Company and the CCPS Holder {"S54™ %), on the carlier of {i) expiry of a
period of |3 (eighteen) wonths froin the closing date (as defined under the 554) (Fabrary 7, 2020%; and (i#) the date when a prospective sharcholder {as defined under the 854} (including such
prospective sharsholder's atfiliabes) acquires equity shares or equily securities convertible inlo equity shares representing, i the agprepate, an least 7% {Seven percent) of the then share capital of the
Company (on a fully diluted basis) (in one or more transactions). During the year ended 3151 March 2022, the Conpany has converted the entire 10,23,350 CCPS into 12,083,931 equiry shares of
L0 cach at a premiun of T 1 437.56 per share. These shares have been sub-divided into T 1 each in the extraprdinery general meeting held on Tanuary 31. 2022,

M

Other items of OCI

Reneasurements of defined benefit liabllity (asset) 31 March 2022 31 March 2011
Opening balance 94.53 1346
Remessurements of defined benefit Liability (asset) (net of taxes} {95.06) T1.07
Closing balance 13.53) 94.53
¢ of defined benefit Habillty (asset)

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) comprises acuarial gaing and losses and return o plan assels {excluding interest income).

Capital management
The Company's policy 18 td namtain 4 stronyg capital base sa as to naintain invesior and creditor confidence and 10 sustain future develop ot the

The Company moailars capital using a ratio of "debt’ o ‘equity”. For this purpase, debt is defined as total debt, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases.
Equity comprises all components of equity.
The Company’s debt to equity ratio is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings 1,004.38 208.20
Current bocrowings and current maturitics of non-current borrowings 3.171.59 30,0842
Debt 40,265.97 30,292.43
Total equicy 1.20,920.01 F6,392.97

Debt to equity ratio 0,33 &40
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24E Earnmings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

teulstion are as

The calcwlations of profit anribucable to equity shareholders and weighted age nunber of equity shares outsianding. for purposes of basic and dilwed
follows:
{iy Profit (loss) attributuble to equity shareholders 31 March Hi22

Profit {loss} for the year, antributable to the equity holders

{iiy  Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average nwnber of equity shares

Add - Nwinber of shares relating to compulsonily convertible preference sharea

Weighted average nuwnber of equity shares used in the caleulation of basic samings per share
Adjushnents for dilutive effect

- Munber of shares relating to Management Incentive Plin

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the caleulation of dilwed ings per share

25 Borrowings

{a) Non—turrent borrowings

Secured teom loans from banks
Secured lerm koans from financial institutions

Total non-currens borrowings

b

-—

Current borrowings

Loans repayable on demand
Secured
Unsecured

Bills discounting
Unsecured

Redeemnable preference shares (unsecured)

Current pertion of non-current borrowings
Secured tenm loans foom banks

Total ¢current borrowlngs

Infonnation aboul Company’s exposure to interest tate and liquidity risks is included in note 37.

ings per share

31 March 2021

12,120.54} 8,137.77)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
33,94,29,140 ILTHOLA30
13.00.020 1,21.33.500
34.06,29.160 32.94,34,530
28,006,508 71,2092
34.34,35,668 33,65,55,752

3t March 2022

31 March 2021

109438 207.36
: 090

L0438 28826

1,000.00 .

30,380.00 2,225.04
5095.69 85447
§91.60 891.60
37.367.29 meTi
1,804.30 13,01
1,504.30 1311
3907059 30.084.22
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25 Borrowings {vontinued)
A Terms pnd repayment schedule
Tenns and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

Carrying t 25 At
In lakhs of INR Currency  Nomioal Interest  Year of maturity 31 March 2022 M March 2021
rate
Secured Term loan from banks
IDFC First Bank Lumiled GEr 1.40% 2023 2476.43 -
HDFC Bank Limited INR 7.60 - 9.0% 2023 422.25 32047
2.898.63 32047
Secured term Joan from Financigl instingtions
Other fancial insticulions INR - - - 0.90
- 0.90
Bill discoanting 7 Favtoring - Unseenured *
IDFC First Bank Linited INR i3 505 - 2,999.98
[BS Bank Limited (paying apent) R 5.62% - T73.46 440,35
TREDS-Invoiceinart NR G500 - 132225 41412
5.095.69 35447
Secured laans repaypable on desmand *
DB3 Bank Limited NR 5.40% - 1,000.00 -
100440 -
I ! loans repayable on {*
Related party - Dirive India Enterprise Solutions Lionited MR 7.00%5-0.00% - - 1,545.04
E.elated party - White Data Svstems India Pve Lid INR 1.05% - 1,180.00 1.150.00
Related party - TVS SC% Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly knowa [1d):3 - 100,00 155000
a5 TVS Dynamic Global Frejpht Services Limited) 1.25%
Standard Chartered Bank Limited INR. T11%-8.20% - - 5,400.00
[DFC First Bank Limited MR 4.75% - 1,550.00 1,550.00
EHDFC Bank Limnited INR 6.00% - 16,590.90 10,650.00
DBS Bank Limited INR 6.40% - 4,600.00 -
Axis Bank Limited INR 6.25% - 506000 6,380.00
3038000 28.215.04
Red, hile prefe  shares ]
Unsecured INR 0.0001% - §91.60 §91.60
49160 $91.50
40.265.97 30.292.48
* These are repayable on demand or payable within a period of 12 months,
B Secured loans
Secured term loan from banks
Tetm loans from HOFC Bank Limited are secured by hypothecation of vehickes acquired ow of the loan.
Secured loans repayalle on demand from banks
1. Warking capitsl loan from DBS Bank was secomed upto Rs. 10 crore against the debtors of the company.
C  Redeemuble Preference Shares
The Company has cumulative, redeemable, non-convertible, panticipating preterence shares. These prefersnce shares have been classified as a liability. For rights, preferences and restrictions

atached to preference shares attached 1o these preference shares refer note 24,

B Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Certain tems of plant and wachinery have been obtained on finance lease basis. The legal vitle 10 these items vests with their lessor. The 1062l future mininum kase paymenis at the balance sheet

date, element of interest included in such payments, and present value of these mini lease pay are as toll

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening borrowing, 30,292.4% 69,097.85
Cash flows 9,997.67 (38,805 36)
Changes in fair values (23.57) -
Closing borrowing 40,265.98 3),292.48

Note: For changes in liabilities arising from lease liabilites, refer nake 15¢(c)

F  Willul Defaulter
The Company is not declared as wilful delaulter by any bank of financial instinttion or gther lender,

G Utilisation of borrowings
a) The Company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was laken a1 he balance sheel date.
b} The quarterly returna/statements of current assets fited by the Company with banks in relation 10 secured borowings wherever applicable, are in agreeinent with the books of acoounts.
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26 Trafe payables
“Trade payables 10 related parties {refer note 34)

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises irefer note 33)
Other trade payables

Ageing of trade payables from the due dare of paymeni;

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

31 March 2022

Undispited dues - MSME
Undisputed dues - Others

31 March 2021

Undisputed dues - MSME
Undisputed dues - Others

369.37 1,707.42

2,362.05 1.496.54

3351984 35,329.13

36.551.26 38.533.00
Mot dus <1 year 1 to 2 vears 2to 3 years More than 3 years Total
1240 1,551.28 31.27 60.21 6.89 236205
14.206.90 13,520.55 87573 321.25 266.79 34,189.23
14.919.50 207 LES U5 M1 381.46 273.68 36.551.27
Mot due = | year 1 to 2 vears 2103 years More than 3 years Total
964,12 44162 {28.82) 44,80 24.82 1,496.54
12,039.70 20,391.94 1.904.73 607.30 2,002.83 37.0M6.55
13.005.82 20.883.56 1.875.91 652.09 2117.70 38.533.09

27 Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Non-curcent portion

Current portion

Payable to factor

Capital creditors

Amount due to employees
Financial guaraniee Lability
Duegs to subsidiaries

Others

3 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 Macch 2022 31 March 2021
. . 9276 63.76

- - 282.33 643.76

. . 507.98 199.01

- - 7,161.76 7§39.65

2,643 57 398LII 1,317.00 1,587.30

- - 1,204.50 433.43

. . 0.30 0.30

2645.57 398111 10.567.13 10.769.26

28 Provisions

Now-turrent portlon

Current portien

Provisions for emplavee benefits
Liability for gratuity
Liahility for compensated absences

2

-

Ciher ¢urrent Habilities

Stamuntory dues others
Advance from cuslomers
Oxher curvent liabilities

31 Maveh 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
319,28 - 435,35 536.21
238.17 203.04 B34.11 687.63
557.45 203.04 1,269.46 1.223.86

31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021

3.516.87 2944.1%
1,754.42 576.22
§.33 24.68

5279.62 3.545.09
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30 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes coneributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualitying employees towards Provident Fund (PF)
and employees' state msurance (ESI) scheme which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified
contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to
Provident Fund and ESI for the year aggregated to T 3.082.86 lakhs {31 March 2021: ¥ 2.606.10 lakhs).

Defined benefit plans Non-current Current
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 Marceh 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for gratuity 319.28 - 435.35 536.21

For details about the related employee benefit expenses, sez note 7

The Company has a defined benefit gramity plan in India (the Plan), governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Plan entitles an employee. who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed vear of service or part thereof in excess of six
months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee at the time of retirement, death or termination of employment.

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.
A. Funding

The gratuity plan of the Company is a partially funded plan with the Company making periodic contributions to a fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation
{LIC).

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) Liability and its components:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 238488 2,189.48
Benefits paid (179.73) (182,59
Current service cost 320.78 377.69
Interest cost 71.37 11743
Actuarial {gains} losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- changes in financial assumptions {30.18) 42.04
- experience adjustments 156.99 {159.18)
Balance at the end of the year 272411 2,384.88

Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,848.66 1,677.94
Contributions paid into the plan 247.55 27500
Benefits paid (179.73) (182.59)
Interest income 76.92 86.20
Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income {23.92) (7.89)
Balance at the end of the year 1,969.48 1,848.66
Net defined benefit (asset) / liability 754.63 536.22

C. Expense recognised in profit or loss

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost 320.78 377.69
Interest cost 71.37 11743
Interest income {76.92) {86.20)

315,23 408.92
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30 Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on defined benefit obligation 126.81 (117.13)
Actuarial gain/ {loss) on plan assets 23.92 7.89
150.73 {109.25)
E. Plan asseis
Plan assets comprise of the following: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[nsurer managed funds 1,969.48 1,548.66
1,96%.48 1,848.66
F. Defined benefit obligation
i. Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Frincipal actuarial assumptions at the reporiing date were:
Discount rate 5.00% 4.13%
Future salary growth 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 58.00% 58.00%
Expected retum on plan assets 5.00% 4.13%

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible chamges at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Inerease Deerease Increase Decrease
Dhscount rate { 1% movement) (34.44) 35.60 {30.22} 31.24
Future salary growth (1% movement) 33.90 (33.43) 2975 (29.33)
Attrition rate { 1% movement) (3.30) 8.58 {7.32) 7.57

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of
the assumptions shown.

G. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period} 1,561.95 1,340.94
Between 2 and 5 years 1,327.62 1,137.23
Between 5 and 10 years 63.33 55.63

1.06 0.95

Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments 2,953.96 2,534.75

The average duration of the defined benetit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 1.72 years (31 March 2021: 1.72 years).

Share besed payvments

The company has Management Incentive Plan (MIF) scheme under which share options are granted to employees which has been approved by the shareholders
of the company. In accordance with the ierms of the plan, eligible employess may be granted options to purchase equity shares of the company if they are in
service on exercise of the grant. Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the company on exercise at the exercise price as per the scheme.
The option carry neither rights to dividend nor voting rights. Options can be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry.
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30 Employee benefits (continued)

Share based payments {continued)

Fair value of share options granted during the year

The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during the financial year is T 50.10 (MIP I) & T 43.80 (MIP 11)* (Previous year: T 618,80 (MIP
1)). Options were priced using a Black Scholes option valuation model & Monte Carlo simulation model for MIP I and 1l respectively. Where relevant, the
expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estimaie for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility of guideline copanies in developed and developing countries.

* Fair value option of equity shares isswed under this grant is post share split with a face value of T 1/- cach
[nputs in to the model:

MIPH-PorlA MIPII-PoolA MIPIL-Pool A

MIPL MIPT MIFI MIP I & Pool B & Pool B & Pool B

Cirant date share price * # 06.40 153.15 141.89 141.89 96.40 119.38 11%.38

Grant date 20-Nov-18 14-Feb-20  20-Nov-20 09-Feb-21 20-Nov-18 16-May-19 Gi-Jul-19

Exercise price # 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Expected volatility 32.00% 35.90% 52.30% $2.30% 33.10% 36.23% 36.23%

CQption life 2.36 years 1.13 years | year | year 3.61 years 3.13 years 3 years

Dividend vield 0.15% 0.00% 00% 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.00%

Risk free interest rate 7.28% 5.10% 3.80% 3.80% 7.50% 6.44% 6.44%

MIP I MIF 1L

Grant date share price * # 127.70 127.70

Grant date 08-Feb-22  08-Feb-22

Exercise price # 95.00 9500

Expected volarility 53.40% 53.25%

Option life 1year  1.39 years

[rividend yield 0.00% 0.00%

Risk free interest rate 4.40% 4.35%
* Before adjustiment of lack of marketability
# After giving effect of share split

Movements in share options during the year

Year ended 31 o Period ended 31 .
MIP1 MagchZ022 a"e::;:g::::cise bk ave:;Lgr::fcise
Number of . Number of .
Qptions price Options price

Opening at the beginning of the year 14,11.923 950,00 13,34,883 950.00
Additions in number of options on account of share split 1,27,07,307 95.00 - 950.00
Granted during the year 17.07.600 95,00 95,997 950.00
Exercised during the year * 26,000 95.00 - -
Forfeited and expired during the year 3207380 95.00 18,957 950.00
Balance at the end of the year 1,25,93,450 9500 14,11,923 950.00
* The weighted average market price of equity shares for options exercised during the year is  127.70 (Previous year: Nil)

Share options vested but not exercised 1,08,85,850 -

v
Year ended 31 Period ended 31
MIP II MaRek 2022 ave::;cg:::fcise March 2021 aveleg:xt:gcise
Number of . Number of .
Options price Options price

Qpening at the beginning of the year 925129 950.00 10,23,760 Q30,00
Additions in number of options on account of share split 83,26.161 95,00 - -
Granted during the year * 46,73,070 95.00 - -
Options bipsed * 92,51,290 - - -
Ferfeited and expired during the vear 1,50,180 - 08,631 930.00
Balance at the end of the year 45,22,890 95.00 9,25,129 950,04

Share options vested but not exercised - -

* Under MIP II - Pool A & Pool B, shares vest on varying dates with an option life of 5 years after vesting. During the year ended March 31, 2022 the
Company has issued a modfied MIP I schems with modified vesting conditions and replaced with MIP [1 - Pool A & Pool B. The Group has adopted
modification accounting under Ind AS 102

Share options outstanding at the end of ¢the period - MIP 1-12,593,450 MIPII - 4,522,80)
The share options outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted averape exercise price of ¥ 95.00 and a weighted average remaining contractual 0.42 years
{31 March 2021: 1.19 years)
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31 Leases

A Finance leases as lessor

The Company's leasing arrangement represents the certain forklifts and other assets given to customers which have been classified under Ind AS 116
on Leases as Finance lease. The lease term covers the substantial period of the assets and all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. The Company records disposal of the property concerned and recognizes the finance income as part of Other income.

The reconciliation between the gross invesiment in the lease at the end of the reporting period, and the present value of mimimum lease payments

receivable at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gross investment 2,226.59 1,592.33
Unearned finance income {392.86) (430.83)
Net investment 1,826.73 1,161.5¢

Finance leases are receivable as follows:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Gross investment

Receivable within one year 746.23 468.07
Receivable between one and five years 1,480,236 1,068.89
Receivable after five years - 55.37
Total 2,226.59 1,592.33
Present value of minimum lease payments

Receivable within one vear 569.28 302.53
Receivable between one and tive years 1,257.46 806.15
Receivable after five years - 52.82
Total 1,826.74 1,161.50

32 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Estimnated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of 1,537.26 686.16

capital advances) and not provided for

Contingent Habilities:
Employee related matters® 2,183.59 2,183.59
Comorale guarantee 1,56,382.87 1,58,729.74
Bank guarantees issued 70,43 7243
Service tax related matters 1,154.31 1,190.33
Sales tax related matters 459,60 114.58
GST related matters 110.18 285.37
Claims not acknowledged as debt 421.60 552.74

From timg to time, the Company is involved in claims and legal matters adsing in the ordimary course of business. Management is not cursently aware
of anv matters that will have a matertal adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the Company.

* The Company has challenged the demand orders from PF authorities amounting to Rs 2,183.59 Lakhs for the periods April 2011 to February 2015
on the grounds that provident fund on certain allowances need not be included for calculation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the same is not
universally paid to all the employees of the Company,

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principtes based on which allowances paid to the employees
should be identified for inclusion for the purposes of computation of the Provident Fund contribution. Consequently, the Company has filed a review
petition to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner to review the demand order in the light of the Supreme Court decision. The Company has also
obtained an interim injunction from Honourable High Court of Madras pending disposal of the Company’s petition. Based on legal advice obtained,
the Company is of the view that no provision is required for the dispute in the financials as at March 31, 2022.
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33  Due to micre, small and medium enterprises
The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro
and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the
amounts payable 10 such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in these standalone financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company, to the extent identified by the management,

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

The amounts remaining wnpaid to micre and small suppliers as at end of the accounting

year
Principal 2,362.05 1.496,54
[nterest due thereon 3743 63.70

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

The amount of payments made to the micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed 0.062.13 2911.86
day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 4732 831.86
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified wnder MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 114.61 180.74

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, G0.1%8 178.67
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act,

2006
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34 Related party disclosures (refer note 244A)

A. Enterprise having significant influence T¥VS Mobility Private Limited (From 4th February 2022)
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited (Till 3rd February 2022)

B. Subsidiaries TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global

Freight Services Limited)

TVS $CS (Siam) Limited {Formerly known as TVS Logistics SIAM Limited), Thatland
TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited

TVS Logistics [nvestments USA Inc., USA

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited (Subsidiary till 29th September 2021}
FLEXOL Packaging {India} Limited

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Led (Formerly known as TVS- Asianics Supply Chain
Solutions Pte. Limited), Singapore

TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited

SPC International India Private Limited, India

White Data Systems India Private Limited, India

TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Fit 3PL Warehousing Private Limited (Subsidiary from [3th October 2021)

C. Step down subsidiaries TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK
M3ys Software Solutions Limited, UK
Multipart Limited, UK
TVS Logistics Iberia §.L., Spain
TVS Autoserv GmbH, Germany
TVS Supply Chain Solutions GmbH, Germany
Peter Thomas & Co (Refurbishing) Limited, UK
Rico Logistics Limited, UK
Ricachet Sprain, Spain
Subsidiaries of Ricochet Spain S.L. Spain
Eltec [T Services 5.L.U
Rico Logistique, France
Rico Logistics Limited, Australia
Cirele Express Limited, UK
Tri - Tec Computer Support Limited, Northern [reland
Tri - Tec Support Limited, [reland
TVS 8CS Rico ltalia SRL
Triage Holdings Limited
Subsidiaries of Triage Holdings Linited
Triage Service Limited
OrderLogic Limited
SPC Intemational Limited, UK
Subsidiaries of SPC International Limited, UK
SPCINT Limited, UK
SPC International (Engineering) Limited, UK
Pitcomp 171 Linited, UK
SPC EBT Trustees Limited, UK
SPC International Inc., LUSA
SPC International s.a.s, France
SPC International s.x.0., Slovakia
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc.
TVS Amenica Inc., USA
TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Tnc.,, USA
{formerly known as Wainwright Industries Inc. USA)
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Inc., US4
TVS Transportation Solutions LLC, USA
TVS Supply Chain Solutions De Mexico 8.4 de C.V., Mexico
TVS Packaging Solutions lnc., USA
Subsidiaries of TVS Supplv Chain Solutions Pte. Lid (Formerly known as TVS-Asignics
Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited. Singapore)
TVS SCS International Freight (Spain) SLU {Formerly known as Nadal Forwarding S.L),
Spain
Subsidiaries of TVS SCS Internatiangl Freight (Spain} SLU
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34 Related party disclosures {continued)

C. Step down subsidiaries (continued)
TVS SCS International Pte. Lid (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logisties imtemational Pte.

Led)
TVS SCS Singapore Pte. Lid (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pte. Lid)
TVS Supply Chain Soletions {Thaitand} Limited (Formerly known as TVS Asianics,
Thailand)
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Solutions {Thailand) Limited
TVS 8C8 Logistics Management Co. Lid {Fonmerly known as TLM Logistics
Management Co., Ltd)
Subsidiaries of TVS 8C3 Singapore Pte. Ltd (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics
Singapore Pre. Lid)
TVS SCS Logistics Lid
TVS $CS (Korea) Ltd {Fonnerly known as Pan Asia Logistics International (Korea)
Lody
TVS SCS Logistics (Thailand) Limtited { Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics
{Thailand) Ltd)
TVS 8CS Hong Kong Limited {Formerly know as Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding &
Logistics Hong Kong Etd)
Pan Asia Container Line Pte Ltd, Hong Kong
TVS SCS Deustschland Gmbh {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Devtschland
GmbH)
TVS SCS Malaysia Sdn Bhd
TVS SCS Vietnam Company Limited (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Vietnam
Company Ltd)
PT Pan Asia Logistics Indonesia
TVS SCS Taiwan Limited (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Taiwan Lid)
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics India Pvt Lid
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Avstralia Holdings Pty Lid {Formerly knows as TVS-
Astanics Australia Holdings Py Ltd)
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Sofutions Austratia Holdings Pty Lid
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Auvsiralia Holdings Pty. Lid Holdings Pty. Lid., Australia
Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Sclutions Australia Holdings Foy. Lid Holdings Pty. Lud.
TVS 3CS {Aust) Pty. Lid{Formerly known as Transtar International Freight {Aust}
Pty Ltd, Avstralia)
TVS SCS New Zealand Limited{Formerly known as Transtar International Freight
Limited, New Zealand)
Kahn Nominees Pty Lid, Australia
Transtar [nternational Freight Limited, Hong Kong
TVS SCS [ntemationat Freight {Singapore) Pte. Ltd {Formerly known as Transtar
Intemational Freight (Singapore) Pte. Limited, Singapote)
Transtar [nternational Freight {Shanghai) Limited, China
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Holdings Limited (Thailand)
{formerly known as Transtar International Freight Holdings Limited)
TVS SCS International Freight (Thailand) Limited{Formerly known as Transtar
[nternational Freight Limited, Thailand}
Teanstar Infernational Freight (Malaysia) SD Bhd, Malaysia

D. Subsidiaries of TVS Mobility Private Limited {From 4th Sundaram Industries Private Limited

February 2022)
D. Subsidiaries of T V Sundram [yengar & Sons Private TVS Motor Company Limited
Limited {Till 3rd February 2022) Sundaram Clayton Limited

Lucas-TVS Limited

Sundaram [ndustries Private Limited

Lucas Indian Service Limited

TVE Antomebile Solutions Private Limited

TVS Training and Services Limited

TVS Electronics Limited

Sundram Fasteners Limited

TVS Industrial & Logistics Parks Private Limited

Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Limited, Australiz

MontaraVerpacken mit System GmbH,Genmany {till 31 March, 2021)

E. Joint Ventures

F. Associates
e
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34 Redated party disclosures (continued)
G. Key management personnel (KMP)

hr. K. Dinesh, Executive Vice Chairman

Mr. Ravi Viswanathan, Managing Director

Mr. S. Ravichandran, Non-Executive Directer

Mr, C. K.Ranganathan, independent director

Mr. V. Anantha Nageswaran, [ndependent director (till March 18, 2021)
Mr. § Mahalingam, Independent direcior

Sri. Gopal Srinivasan, Non-Executive director

Sri. 3.Ram, Non-Executive director (till September 13, 2021}

bis. Shobhana Ramachandhran, Non-Executive director

Sri. Suresh Krishna, Non-Executive director {till November 27, 2020)

Mr. Ravi Prakash Baghavathula, Chief Financiat Qfficer

Mr. P [t Krishna Prasad, Company Secretary

Ms. Gawuri Kumar, Additional Independent Director (w.e.t. 7th February 2022)
Mr. B. Sriram, Additional Independent Director {w.e.f. 7th February 2022)

Dinram Logistics Services LLP

DRSR Advisory Services LLP

TVS Automobile Solutions Private Limited
TVS Srichakra Limited

Ki Mobility Solutions Pvt Ltd

Sundaran Industries Private Limited
Cavin Kare Pvt Lud.

H. Private Companies under common directorship/ Entities
controlled by KMF or relatives of KMP of the Company

Transactions during the year

Tncome from logistics services

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Lucas-TVS Limited 1,032.54 1.081.74
Sundaram [ndustries Private Limited 10325 9422
TVS Motor Company Limited 7.226.61 R,530.09
Sundatam Clayton Limited 10515 06.42
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 167.26 394,67
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited 5.60 13.30
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited 1.98 1.25
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited 12.60 35.38
TVS 8CS5 Global Freight Solutions Limited {Formerly known as TVS Dynanic Global Freight Services Limited) 202 7.47
Sundram Fasteners Limited 133.33 118.09
TVES Training And Services Limited - 947
TVS Srichakra Limited 6,173.79 5,980.86
Lucas Indian Service Limited - 4.93
TVS Automobile Solutions Private Limited 2,249.92 1,075.37
Ki Mobility Solotions Pvi Ltd 89.46 -
Cavin Kare Pvt Ltd, 22440

FIT 3PL Warchousing Private Limited 28.98

Sale of Goods

FLEXOL Packaging {India} Lid 7.50 -
Sundaram Clayton Limited 8.61 9.99
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Sobations Limited 443.66

Other income

TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 62.82 51.52
TVS Toyota Tausho Supply Chain Solutions Limited 148.01 12076
TVS Supply Chain Solwtions North America Inc.,USA 370.58 363.43
TVS Logistics [nvestment UK Limited 34.04 917.84
Rico Logistics Limited, UK 2,352.83 1,751.39
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK 1,701.13 1,334.34
TVS Logistics lberia S.L., Spain - R
Drive [ndia Enterprise Solutions Limited - 0.08
Lucas TVS Limited 5.84 -
FLEXOL Packaging (lndia) Led 10.46 -
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd (Fonmerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, 1,142.14 §93.86
Singapore}

White Data Systems India Private Linited 2399 12.31
FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited 1.35 -
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Dividend income

TVS 5C8 Global Freight Solutions Limited (Fonmerly known ag TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Lunited) 216.00 108.00
Interest income
TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc., USA - 40.24
TVS SCS (Siam) Limited (Fornnerly known as TVS Logistics SIAM Limited), Thailand 33.83 35.51
TVS Logisties [nvestment UK Limited 239.91 467.58
TVS Supply Chain Solutiens Pte, Ltd (Formerly known as TV S-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, - 16,43
Expenses incurred on hehalf of
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited - 193
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited - -
TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited 95.11 39.86
TVS Supply Chain Sclutions Limited, UK 103.48 152.17
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pie. Ltd {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, 203,58 153.61
Singapore)}
TVS Supply Chain Sclutions North America Inc. USA 103.97 134.12
Rico Logistics Limited, UK 151.24 190,42
White Data Systems India Private Limited 15551 24195
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Ltd - 1.93
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited - 1.93
TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited - 2.00
Interest expense
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited 54.22 114.62
TVS SCS Global Freight Sclutions Limited {Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited} 87.04 49.88
White Data Systems India Private Limited 102.58 3419
e
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for ¢he year ended 31 March 2022
Al amounns are i fodian yvupees (2} lakhs except shave data and otherwvise stated)

34 Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions during the year (continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Purchase of spares, fuel, others

T ¥V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 17.84 -

Sundaram Industries Private Limited 60.66 49.41

Lucas Indian Service Limited 561 -

FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited 53.85

Sundrarn Fasteners Limited 9.85 -

TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited {Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 10.15 22,18

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS [nfrastructure Pyvt Lid) 222 30.09

Freight, packing and forwarding expenses

FLEXOL Packaging {India) Limited %0.03 107.03

T V Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 167 .40 53.30

TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 166.31 216.66

TVS Electronics Limited - 047

White Data Systems India Private Limited 16.07 357.89

TVS Motor Company Limited - -

Rent

TVS Induwstrial & Logistics Park Limited {Formerty known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Lid)} 934,10 Q19.44

TV Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limvited 133.77 17293

Lucas-TVS Limited L.80 1.80

TVS Mobility Private Limited 50.59 -

FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited 20.56 -

Repairs and maintenance

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Lid) - g852

Expenses incurred by and reimbursed to

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, 1,020.25 -

Singapore}

T V Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 2.99 2048

TVS Mobility Private Limited 0.70 -

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited - 59.83

Other expenses

T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 108.00

Sundaram Industries Private Limmited 0.04 -

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited {Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Ltd) 17.18

White Data Systemns India Private Limited 98.16 10.26

Sale of Fixed Asset

TVS Toyota Tsushe Supply Chain Solutions Limited 13.93 6435
Purchase of fixed assets

FLEXQOL Packaging (India) Limited - 167.85
TVS SC8 Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) - 6.10
T ¥V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 11.47 18.99
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited - @.54
Sundaram Fasteners Liwmited - 11.82
Lucas India Service Limited - 342
White Data Systems India Private Limited 033 -
Purchase of Leasehold Improvement

TVS Indusirial & Logistics Park Limited {Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvi Ltd) - 1.35
Investment in equity shaves

FLEXOL Packaging (India) Limited 356.69 616.77
TVS SC8§ Global Freight Solutions Limited { Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 78125 46414

FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited 2041000 -




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(A amounts are in Indicn rupees (T) lakhs except share data and othenvrise stated)

34 Related party disclosures (continuwed)
Transactions during the year (continued) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Loans and advances
Given during the year

TVS Logistics lnvestment UK Limited 15,501.00 -
Repayments veceived during the year

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited - 33,961.78
TVS Logistics Investiments USA Inc., USA - 5,498.11
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Limited, - 980,10
Singapore)

Repayments made during the year

White Data Systems India Private Limited 920.0¢

TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Eimited {Formerly known as TVS Dynawic Global Freight Services Limited} Q50.00 -
Token during the year

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited - 152.15
White Data Systems India Private Limited $30.00 £,150.00
TVS SCS Global Freight Sotutions Limited (Fonmerly known as TVS Dvaamic Global Freight Services Limited) 400,00 1,550.00
Remuneration to Key Managerial Persennel

Mr. §. Ravichandran, Non-Executive Director 406.35 19279
Mr. Ravi Viswanathan, Managing Director 54230 449,62
Mr. R. Dinesh, Executive Vice Chairman 640.00 200.00
Mr. Ravi Prakash Baghavathula, Chief Financial Officer 438.40 347.80
Mr. P D Krishna Prasad, Company Secretary 53.29 41.37
Sitting fees to Independent & Non-Executive Directors

Mr, C. K Ranganathan 2.50 2,25
Mr. V. Anantha Nageswaran - 3.50
Mr, 8 Mahalingam 4.25 375
8ri. Gopal Srinivasan 1.0G [.50
Sn. §.Ram 0.50 1.50
Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhean 2.50 1.50
Sn. Suresh Krishina - 1.50
Ms. Gauri Komar 1.00 -
Mr. B. Sriram 1.00 -

1. As the future labilities of gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as 2 whole, the amounts pertaining to the KMP is
not ascertainable separately and therefore not included above.

2. Total employee stock compensation expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 includes a charge of ¥ 327.10 lakhs and T 1403.20 lakhs,
towards KMP respectively. ’
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Aff amounts are in Indicn rupees (T} lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

34 Related party disclosures (continued)

Period end balances:
Loans to related parties

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited, UK 18,666.08 3,381.86
TVS SCS (Siam) Limited (Formerly known as TVS Logistics SEAM Limited), Thailand 45071 437.02
Receivables

Lucas-TVS Limited - 7225
Sundaram Clayton Limited - 1120
Sundaram Industries Private Limited %08 24.95
TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited {Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 46,41 3640
TVS Logistics Investment UK Limeted 6,497.41 534161
TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc., USA 63.01 61.10
TVS Motor Company Limited - 1.467.77
TVS Supply Chain Selutions North America, Inc,, USA 1,755.41 1,384.07
FLEXOL Packaging {(India} Limited 36.97 15.66
TV Supply Chain Solutions Pée. Lid. (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited), 1,132.38
Singapore 2,407.22

TVS SCS (Siam) Limited (Formerly known as TVS Logistics SIAM Limited}, Thailand 188.14 158.14
TVS Toyata Tsusho Supply Chain Selutions Limited 107.21 156.88
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK 908.06 1,708.49
Rico Logistics Limited, UK 3,562.14 267217
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 7.87 18.89
TVS Logistics Iberia $.L., Spain - -
Sundram Fasteners Limited - 19.11
TVS Srichakra Limited 57123 172.71
TVS Training And Services Limited - 11.18
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited - L167.42
Lucas Indian Service Limited - 1.28
White Data Systems India Private Limited 6.74 214.65
TVS Packaging Sclutions Private Limited 347 2.36
TVS Automobile Solutions Private Limited 503.22 580.99
Ki Mobility Sclutions Pvt Ltd 10.76

CavinKare Pvt Ltd 127.63

FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited 19.58

Other receivables - Unbilled revenue

Lucas TVS Litnited - 2583
Sundaram Clayton Limited - 5.03
Sundaram Fastners Limited - 2.09
T V Sundaram Eyengar & Sons Private Limited - 10.94
TVE Motor Company Limited - 246.77
TVS Srichakra Limited 332,10 867.23
FLEXOL Packaging (India) Ltd - 0.66
Ki Mobility Solutions Pyt Ltd 11.30 -
FIT 3PL Warchousing Private Limited 9.57 -

Security deposits
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formetly known as TVS Infrastructure Pve Lid) 789.66 789.66




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounis are in Indiar rypees (3) lakhs except shave data and othenvise stated)

34 Related party disclosures (continued)

Year end balances {continued):
Other receivables - Advance for Supply of Goods & Services

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

TVS lndustrial & Logistics Park Limited {Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 411.78 59.00
T ¥ Sundaraim [yengar & Sons Private Limited 120.06 7746
Unsecured borrowing repayment on demand from related parey

Drrive India Enterprise Solutions Limited - 1.545.04
White Data Systems India Private Limited 1,180.00 1,150.00
TVS 5C8 Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 1,000.00 1,550.00
Payables

T ¥ Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Linited 1541 3373
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 16,50 18.04
Lucas [ndian Service Limited - 1.29
FLEXOL Packaging ([ndia) Limited 44.70 84.38
TVS 5CS Global Freight Selutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Limited) 14023 38.41
TVS Industriai & Logistics Park Limited (Fonmerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) 106.39 98.56
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd. {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited), 1,690.81 54.56
Singapore

Luecas-TVS Limited - 0.17
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Litnited - 279.26
Sundram Fasteners Limited - 3.86
TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Rico Logistics Limited, UK - 9%.59
White Data Systems [ndia Private Limited 25.96 1,314.46
TVS Logistics Iberia 5.L., Spain iy -
TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited 91.12 92.40
TVS Mobility Private Limited 15.16 -
FIT 3PL Warehousing Private Limited 2236 -
Guarantees

TVS Logistics [nvestment UK Limited 94,685,119 96,103.83
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd. (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited), 61,697.68 62,6251
Singapore

Payable to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries, wages and bonus to Non-Executive Director 20004 -
Salaries, wages and bonus Managing Director 200.00 200.00
Comimission to Executive Vice Chainmnan 200.00 200.00
Salaries, wages and bonus to Chief Financial Officer 173.59 36300
Salanes, wages and bonus to Company Secretary 375 375
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022
A amounts are in Indian rupees (3} lakhs except share data and otherwise stared)

37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk;

- liquidity risk: and

- market risk

i. Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management feamework, The board
of directors along with the senior management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies,

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managentent policies and systems are reviewed regularly fo reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’'s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a diseiplined and constructive
centro enviromment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

it. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a custemer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers; loans and investments,

The carrying amounts of financiaf assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and contimuously monitaring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit tenns in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its
estimate of incurred losses in respect of the Company’s trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other tinancial assets.

The maximum exposore to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

Carrying amount
31 March 2622 31 March 2021

Trade receivables 25,1158.49 29,451.80
Investments 20.00 1,375.62
Cash and cash equivalents 28,964.60 10,531.95
Other bank balances 280.56 270,01
Loans 19,116.78 1.818.88
Deposits and other receivables 2803526 26,049.12
Other financial assets 53.7¢6 626.81
Total 1,01,609.43 72,124.19

Trade and other receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, alse has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each repating period are reviewed by the Company to detennine incurred and expected credit losses. The
impairment loss at the reporting dates relates to several customers that have defavlied on their payments to the Company and are not expected to be able to
pay their cutstanding balances, mainly due fo economic circumstances.

The Company determines credit risk based on a variety of factors inchuding but not limited to the age of the receivables, cash flow projections and available
information about customers from internaliexternal sources. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of trade receivables,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(AN amovnts are in Indian rupees (T} lokhs except share data and otherwise siated)

37 Financizl instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management (continued)
it Credit visk fcomrd.)

The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired as at the reporting date was:

As at 31 March 2022

Gross carrying Weighted-  Loss allowance
amount average loss rate
Not due & Past due 1-90 days 17,059.60 4.1% (697.62)
Past due @1-1280 days 379394 22.8% (364.77)
Past due 181-365 days 5,568.69 27.3% (1.522.40)
Past due for more than 365 days £,589.78 T3.0%% (4,808.75)
Total 33,012.01 {(7,893.53)
As at 31 March 2021
Gross carrying Weighted-  Loss allowance
amount average loss rate
Not due & Past due 1-90 days 26,566.54 2.6% (704.45)
Past due 91-180 days 1.458.32 13.1% {190.75)
Past due 181-365 days [.562.37 44.9% (700.34)
Past due for more than 365 days 4,769.39 69.5% {3.312.78)
Tatal 34,356.62 (4,904.82)

Movements in the allowance for impaivment in respect of trode receivables

The movement in the allowance for impaitment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 4904.82 393314
Add : Provision for the vear 2.988.71 o71.68
] nd of t ar 7.893.53 4.904,82

Cash and cash equivalents and other bawk balonces
The Company holds cash and bank balances of T 29,245.16 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: T 103,801.96 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such
banks and financial institutions are evaluaied by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Deposits and other receivables

The Company has Peposits and other receivables of € 28,055.26 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 {31 March 2021: ¥ 26,049.12 lakhs) it consists of deposit
given in relation te leasehold premises occupied by the Company for carrving out its eperations and receivable from subsidiaries. The Company does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties.

Loans, fmvestments and Other financiaf assets

The Company has loans, investments and other financial assets of ¥ 44,309.03 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: ¥ 35,273.11}. The credit
wouthiness of such parties are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and are provided wherever necessary and the remaining balances are
considered to be good.

fii. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Cempany’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
o meet its liabilities when they are due, under both nonmal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Company’s repuitation.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amonnts ave in Indign vupees (T) lakhs except shave data and otherwise stated)

37 Financial instroments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued}
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments and exclade the impact of netting agrecments:

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 year or less 1-5 years More than 5
amount VeRrs
31 March 2022
Non derivative financial liabilities
Curvent and non-current borrowings
Secured tenm loan from banks 2.898.68 2,898.68 1,204.30 1,094 .38
Unsecured loans repayable on demand 30,380.00 30.380.00 30,380.00 - -
Secured loans repayable 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,006.00 - -
on demand
Unsecured Bills discounting 5,095.649 5,095.69 509569 - -
Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60 891.60 - -
Others
Trade payables 36,551.20 36.351.26 36,551.26 - -
Other financial liabilities 1321270 13,212.70 10,567.13 2,645.57 -
90,029.93 90,029.93 $6,289.97 3,739.96 -
Contractual cash flows
Taotal Total 1 year or less 1-5 years More than 5
VeRrs
31 March 2021
Non derivative financial liabilities
Curvent and non-ctirvent borrawings
Secured termo loan from banks 32047 32047 113.11 207.36 -
.SECI..eriEi tenm loans from financial 0.90 0.00 0.90 } }
mnsthiiuions
Unsecured loans repayable on demand 28.225.04 2822504 28,22504 - -
Unsecured Bilis discounting 85447 854.47 854.47 - -
Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60 $91.60 - -
Others
Trade payables 38,533.09 38,533.09 38,533.09 - -
Cther financial liabilities 14,750.38 14,750,385 10,769.27 3.981.11 -
83,575.96 83,575.96 79,387.4% 4,188.47 -
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounis are in Indion rupees (T} lakhs except share data and otherwise stated)

37 Financial instruments - Fair values 2nd risk management {continued}

iv. Market risk (continued)

Curvency risk {continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the T against the respective currencies noted below at 31 March would have affected the

measurement of financial instnunents denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or {loss) Equity, net of tax
Weakening  Strengthening Weakening  Strengthening

31 March 2022

United States Dollar { 1% movement) 2377 {23.77) - -
Great Britain Pound (1% movement) 27004 {270.64) - -
Singapore Dolltar (1% movement) 1241 {1241} - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement) 1.88 {1.88) - -
31 March 2021

United States Dollar (1% movement) 18.51 (18.51}) - -
Great Britain Pound (1% movement) 131.36 {131.36) - B
Singapore Dollar (1% movement} 11.32 {11.32) - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement} 1.58 {1.58) - -

Interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Variable instruments

Financial Liabilities

- Loans repayable on demand - 5,400.00
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

- Loans 19,116.78 3,818.88
- Deposits with banks 12,412.07 379.82
Financial Liabifities

- Term loans from banks 2,808.68 32047
- Term loans from financial institutions - 0.90
- Loans repayable on demand 31,380.00 2282504
- Vendor bill discounting 5.095.69 854,47
- Redeemable preference shares 891.60 891.60

Fair valuwe sensitivity analvsis for fixed-rate instrimentis

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest cates at the reporting date would not bave any impact on the reported profit or loss ot
equity as these fixed rate instruments {loans given, investments made and borrowings) are carried at amortised cost, any changes in interest rates are not
considered for subsequent measurement.

Cash flow sensitivity analvsis for variable rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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39
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41

42

43

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Corporate social responsibility (applicable for Companies registered in India) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a Amount required to be spent during the period - 7.92
b Amount approved by the board to be spent during the period - 7.92

¢ Amount spent during the year on:

iy Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

i1} On purposes other than i) above - 8.95
d Amaount of expenditure incurred - 8.95
e Shortfall at the end of the year - -
f Total of previous years shortfall - -
Activities specified in

h Nature of CSR activitics Schedule VII of the Act

Undisclosed income

The Company has no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey ot any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961)

Benami property )
The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for helding any
Benami property.

Crypto corrency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

Exceptional [tems Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Arbitration cost (785.72) -
Loss on sale of investments 14B (138.94) -
Consideration from disposal of assets held for sale 14A 100,00 -

{824.66} -

44 Disclosure on funding transactions

Thete are no funds that have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds} by the Company 1o or in any other person(s) or entities. including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the tike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There are no funds that have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identifted in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
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45 Ratlos Analysis

Ratios

Current ratio
Debt- Equity Ratio

Debt Service Coverape ratio
Retarn on Equity ratio

Inventory Turnover ratic

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio

Met Capital Turnover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital Employed

Numerator

Current Assets

Total Dbt

Earnings for debt service = Net profit
affer faxes + Non-cash operating
expenses+interest

Net Profits after taxes — Preference
Dividend

Cost of poods sold

Net credit sales = Gross credit sales -
sales return

Net eredit purchases = Gross credit
purchases - purchase return

Net sales = Total sales - sales retum

Met Profit

Earnings before interest and taxes

Denominabor

Current Liabiliries
Shareholder’s Equity

Debt service = [nterest & Leaze Payments
+ Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's Equity

Average [nventory

Average Trade Receivable

Average Trade Payables

Waorking capital = Current assets —
Current liabilities
Mer sales = Total sales - sales return

Capital Employed = Tangible Met Warth
+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

* As at March 31, 2021, current liabilities exceed current asseis. Accordingly this ratio carnot be caloulated,

Reason for change more than 25% - 31st March 2022
Debt service coverage ratio - The ratio has itnproved in the current year on account of higher eamings,
Return on equity - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of better eamings.

Trade receivable tumover ratio - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of higher collections and factoring initiatives.

Met profit percentage - The ratio has improved in the current year as the losses have reduced.
Feturn on capital employed - The ratio has improved in the current year on account of higher earnings.

,’3?’/ fs,.\\
o Y=
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e o))

31 March 2022

111.63%
33 M

8218%

-2.15%

4,26%
539.42%

0.02%

1222.61%
-1.44%

0.08%

31 March 2021

90.08%
.65%

33.65%

-10.24%

6.46%
359.81%

0.03%

Na*
£6.55%

-5.21%
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(A8 amounts are in Indion rupees (¥) lokhs except share data and otherwise siated)

46 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred atter the reporting period till the date of this standalone financial statements.

47

Struck off companies
The Company does not have any material transactions with companies struck off.

Prior year comparatives

To conform te this peried’s classification, certain previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary.
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Eighteenth Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 318 March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Amount INR in crores)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revised Revised
i i i

Revenues from operations (including 1561.03 1344.49 8209.04 6860.60
other income)
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing (30.91) (89.44) T 114.02)
operations ' ’ ' 14
Profit/ (Loss) after tax from continuing

) (21.22) (81.38) (46.48) (72.30)
operations
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (0.92) (2.44)
from discontinued operations ’ ’
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (092) (2.44)
from discontinued operations ' '
PrOﬂU(LOSS} for the year {21-22) (81.38} {47.40) (?4.?4)
Other comprehensive income, net of (0.98) ¥ (21.47) 2.02
tax ’ . ' '
Total comprehensive income (22.20) (80.6?) (63.87) (72 72}

SECTION 1: ECONOMIC OUTLOOK
1.1 GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The world economy showed recovery in calendar year (CY) 2021 despite impacts from Delta variant
of Novel Coronavirus in Q2. According to International Monetary Fund (IMF) the growth for the year
stood at 5.9%. For CY 2022 the IMF has forecasted a moderate growth of 4.4%. The growth forecast
for 2022 has been subdued by the renewed infection surge of Covid19 in various parts of the world,
the Russia-Ukraine war and the continued effects of supply chain slowdown.




The continuing global recovery which was driven by increased consumer spending and uptick in
investments, now faces some challenges as the pandemic enters its third year with infections surging
in different parts of the world. The rapid spread of the new variant has led to restrictions and labour
shortages. The recent surge in China has led to disruptions in freight forwarding as key ports are
under lockdown. In addition, the Ukraine- Russia war has led to elevated fuel and food prices adding
to already rising inflation and supply chain pressures. Moreover, there is record debt which is
restricting the ability of some countries to respond to disruptions. However, since the new variant is
less infectious, the IMF predicts that the effects will only affect Q1 of CY 2022.

The Ukraine-Russia war is leading to high inflation in energy and food prices as Ukraine is critical
supplier for wheat and sunflower oil, while Russia exports over 35 critical minerals which are used in
the production of cars. As a result of the Ukraine confiict and ongoing chip shortage, the European
Automobile Manufacturers' Association (ACEA) now forecasts that passenger car registrations in the
EU will grow at a much lower rate of 7.9% in the year to reach 10.5 million units which is 20% below
pre-covid levels. European governments also may confront fiscal pressures from additional spending
on energy security and defence budgets. The war is another reminder that resilience of supply chains
should be at the forefront.

1.2 GLOBAL LOGISTICS OUTLOOK

In Q1 of FY22 the pandemic had accelerated the regionalization of supply chains and the war has
accelerated this movement for FY23.The Russia-Ukraine war is severely disrupting shipping and air
freight and logistics firms are suspending services resulting in skyrocketing air freight rates. However
despite the capacity issues, the demand for domestic and international transportation has been
strong in CY 2021 and will carry on in CY 2022, With severe Covid cases declining, the demand for
3PL services has become more stable. Even with the rise of new variants, very few countries are
expected to opt for full economic lockdowns. In order to mitigate the current challenges, the strategy
for resilient supply chains has been nearshoring or reshoring and to transition production to cheaper
Asian countries outside of China. Another trend that is seen across the US is increase in M&A activity
between supply chain and technology firms as supply chain firms are now building and relying on
higher order of technologically predictive methods to combat frequent disruptions.

In an effort to combat disruptions, large shipping liners are building up their capability and expanding
into air and land freight and inching towards in —house end-to-end supply chain ownership. The
mismatch between container capacity and demand has led to leveraging of blockchain technology
for supply chain management. This helps organizations improve visibility into their inventory levels
and is done by providing timely updates on when products are shipped or delivered to customers.
This transparency enables companies to deliver real-time notifications about when products will be
available again after being sold out. With the rapid growth in e-commerce sector, new opportunities
are arising for the expansion of last mile delivery networks as well as the end to end logistics
platforms and fulfiiment services for consumer connectivity.

As per Armstrong report, over the next three years, through 2023, it is estimated that the global 3PL
market will experience a CAGR of approximately 12%.

The IMF's estimates for GDP are positive for 2021-2023 reflecting a 7.1% CAGR in global logistics
costs (in turn 11.9% in 3PL market growth) versus the 2.8% CAGR in costs seen over the last 10
years.

1.3 INDIAN ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The Indian economy saw positive growth during CY 2021 at 9% with a strong e recovery in
manufacturing, and continued expansion in the agriculture sector and IMF forecast a consistent 9%
for CY 2022. After a quick tryst with Omicron, the caseload declined quickly maintaining normal
economic activity and a boost in some sectors such as the automotive sector which has shown
positive double-digit growth in all auto segments. The EV sector has grown 218% over FY 2021
bolstered by the sales of two or three wheelers. Manufacturing consisted of 14.5% of the GDP and



is expected to grow strongly in the coming year and reaching 20% by 2025 as per Redseer Report.
This is supported by the "Make in India” campaign which is designed to establish India as a
Manufacturing Hub. The GOI has also announced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for
13 sectors with an outlay of 2750 Billion INR. The outlay for auto sector is at 264 billion. With the
China Plus-One Policy still in place for large multinational companies, India has become a very
attractive destination for setting up manufacturing hub. According to Global Manufacturing Index
2020, India overtook the United States to rank second in the list of most attractive manufacturing
globally.

As per Redseer Report, the Indian economy has been on a sustained recovery path. India's real
GDP growth rate is projected at approximately 8.5% per annum during 2021-2025, which is the
highest growth rate among the larger economies —resulting in India becoming a US$4.1 trillion
economy by 2025. As per ‘Centre for Economics and Business Research’, India is projected to
become the third largest economy in the world by 2030.

1.4 INDIAN LOGISTICS INDUSTRY SCENARIO

Recognising logistics as the backbone for economic growth and post covid recovery, Government of
India has done highest ever allocation for Ministry of Road Transport and Highways (“MoRTH") of
approximately US$15.5 billion for the Fiscal 2021-Fiscal 2022. Additionally, the National Logistics
Policy aims to create a single E-logistics window and focus on employment creation, skill
development and establish competitive MSMEs thereby making the logistics sector seamlessly
integrated. The Dedicated Freight Corridor Plan is aimed to create two cross-country freight corridors
with the aim of port to port linkage.

The logistics industry is witnessing a shift with increased demand for real time visibility and data
backed information of products from all sources starting from production to the end consumer. This
shift has also given rise to need for integrated supply chain partners instead of traditional mono-
service partners. The need to create an efficient and seamless ecosystem of connected touchpoints
is leading to technological business transformations. Ecommerce growth is now also fuelled by Tier
2 cities in the country testing provider capabilities against poor infrastructure, ability to maintain
standard delivery times and transportation capabilities.

Commitment to sustainability is also in the forefront with supply chain providers investing heavily in
overhauling their existing transportation fleet with Electric Vehicles. The growth in the EV sector has
been largely aided by ecommerce giants opting for EV three wheelers for last mile delivery.

SECTION 2: PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Your Company continues to take various initiatives to improve its growth, operating margin, and
profitability in the coming year, with focus on transformational initiatives and technological
developments.

Your Company recorded multiple significant milestones — TVS Supply Chain Solutions recorded its
highest revenue ever in FY22 which is +33.4% versus Prior Year and EBITDA at 7% with an
impressive growth of 47.1% versus FY21. Your Company has also successfully filed DRHP with
SEBI for public listing and is gearing up for RHP in the coming months.

2.1 Operations:

Your Company continued to strengthen its offerings in the end-to-end supply chain services. The
Company has two segments consisting of Integrated Supply Chain Solutions (ISCS) and Network
Solutions (consisting of Global Freight Forwarding Solutions and Time Critical Last Mile Solutions).
Both segments of ISCS and Network Solutions contributed to growth where ISCS has grown by
+16.3% over FY21 with +28.6% EBITDA growth and the Network Solutions segment has grown by
+48.1% over FY21 with +35.4% EBITDA growth. The Company has achieved growth through a
balanced mix of pricing and volume increase.



Despite the challenges presented by the pandemic, your Company has continued to grow in all
geographical segments, with business in India growing by +46.5% versus FY21 and in Rest of the
World (ROW) by +29.0% versus FY21.

A global initiative on Process Excellence was kicked off a through audit and review starting with SCS
India where Process Assessments of 77 locations were completed in Q3 to assess compliance to
TVS SCS India Process Documents (SOPs and Work Instructions, etc). This process has led to
significant positive jump in Process Compliance scores across all divisions and helped the Company
receive Quality Certifications of 1SO 9001, ISO 45001 and ISO 14001. This initiative will continue
through the next year encompassing every aspect of your Company.

2.2 Recognition:

The India business Won Tata Motor's Best Safety Performer Award for Q3 for TML Pantnagar
project. Significant awards from Reliance for Best Contractor Award for Safety Performance, Best
business partner award for C2 Complex and Best business partner.

SCS EU was awarded the “Thought Leadership Award 2021 from the RLC Foundation for helping
transition military personnel into the commercial environment, and in sharing supply chain /
integrated logistics best practice. Also awarded the Silver medal in the Defence Relationship
Management (DRM) Employer Recognition Scheme Awards 2021 demonstrating our commitment
to being a forces friendly employer

2.3 Business development and Encirclement:

Despite the Delta and Omicron wave in FY22, your Company performed exceedingly well on new
business development, adding 152 new client accounts adding significantly to the growth. The new
accounts are from various sectors such as Chemicals, Utilities, Automotive, and Consumer Products
etc.

2.4 Technology Led Business Transformation:

Structural shifts in the industry have been making supply chains increasingly complex, for customers
which has necessitated an increasing demand for technology backed supply chain services to ensure
high service levels.

Your Company also embarked on a new transformation project committed to creating a technology
backbone for the Company and enhancing our service portfolio through the following initiatives:

Improving Real Time Visibility: The Company has accelerated the implementation of Visibility, our
in-house Warehouse Management System, to replace he legacy TRACE Warehouse Management
System. This system provides complete inventory visibility, mobile enabled scanning for quick turn
around and seamless integration with the client systems. The system also has the ability to
consolidate and optimise based on the customer’s requirements coupled with easy implementation.
The system is being further enhanced with predictive analytics and Al based decision making for
faster operational processing. The system has gone live pan India.

Efficiency Oriented Operational Processes: Your Company is committed to technological
advancements to establish itself as tech-led supply chain provider. Shipamax , an Al powered data
entry software tool, was rolled out with the aim of creating efficiency and serving customers better,
Shipamax is, a data entry automation software which helps in automating Accounts Payable invoicing
and Commercial Invoicing. It uses Artificial Intelligence which is Anti-Template Technology to extract
data from a document via OCR and then apply machine learning technology to register what each
text mean and then accurately mapping it to a clean data schema, which is then fed into Cargo wise
One. This is a significant advancement that improves productivity by removing manual data entry
and improves data accuracy through automation. Shipamax was rolled out in Singapore and is ready
for roll out to other geographies.



Enhancing asset utilization through technelogy: LCL Consol App is another technological
advancement that your Company has undertaken. This application enables decision making on the
closing of a container based on profitability, volume and welight parameters. The aim is to improve
Gross Margin and Container utilization and to move away from the Manual processes to an
Automated, Digital and App based processes.The app communicates in real time with the Sales
Team and Ops Team within TVSSCS GFS Organization providing Real-Time Cargo Visibility as well
as matching suitable container type - with available cargo thereby helping in converting regular LCL
shipment into Consal shipment.

Increasing Supply Chain Efficiency through Technology: Your Company is undertaking
significant technological changes for overhead cost containment as well as seamless integration of
services. The customer and vendor master data onboarding process for entire SCS GFS has been
migrated to Centre of Excellence.

Enhancing Automation by using Artificial Intelligence: In partnership with the KamerAi, Rico
Logistics has implemented its first automated sortation and despatching machine in its Madrid
Facility. This warehouse automation system uses a mix of technologies, conveyor systems, carrier
interfaces and cameras using Al to pravide a bespoke solution for the Spare Parts Logistics Sector,
The Automation project, weighs, measures, sorts but also creates automated shipping labels based
on various shipping rules based on weight, size, and delivery location. The system also manages
returns sortation which evaluates the Return type (Good, Defective, Warranty) the Part Number and
then sorts to the relevant Global Returns destination based on these criteria. The System has
increased productivity significantly and reduced the labour requirement for the facility by over 10%,
whilst improving customer SLA. Due to the success of the project this technology solution is being
deployed in additional 3 locations in FY23.

Additionally, the Company implemented vision technology in two warehouses for a large two wheeler
auto company wherein sortation was prone to human errors. The warehouse picking and packing
system was enhanced and automated through the implementation of vision technology which uses
cameras to sort parts through label scanning and match them to packaging of the correct shape and
size though label scanning. Additionally, a second warehouse has implemented vision technology
for attendance where the attendance for permanent as well as contractual employees is done via
facial recognition.

2.5 Acquisitions:

During the year under review, your Company has acquired 100% stake in FIT 3PL in the last quarter
and has begun integration with SCS India. The acquisition has increased warehousing footprint by 2
Mn Sq Ft with additional 70 warehouses. Additionally, it has strengthened our position in the office
automation customer segment.

SECTION 3: FINANCE:
3.1 Financial Performance

Your Company did exceedingly well with Revenue growing by +33.4% over FY21. Moreover, the
Company has displayed consistent growth in H2 and H1.

INR Crores
Revenue

9249.8

6933.6 ¥
pofe

FY21 Fy22



Revenue H1 and H2

INR Crores

e 5020.6

4229.2

H1 FY22 H2 FY22

The growth in revenue has been supported by improvement in margins with 47.1% EBITDA growth
over FY21.

E BITDA INR Crores
> 6517
443
FY21 FY22

There was 100bps improvement in EBITDA margins YoY and 54bps improvement in EBITDA margins
in H2 Vs H1.

EBITDA

INR Crores
352.89

298.8

H1 FY22 H2 FY22



The PBT from operations (before exceptional items) was profit of ¥ 46.1 Crores, mainly due to
improved operating performance by all regions and growing by +139.6% over FY21.

p BT INR Crores
46.1
— A
-
Fy22

-116.5

3.2 Financing Initiatives:

In FY 22, your Company reduced its net working capital as a percentage of revenue to 5.0% from
7.1% in the previous year despite a 33% increase in the revenue. This was achieved through
implementing broad-based non-recourse factoring of customer receivables programme across the
globe.

During the year, the Company successfully migrated its loan benchmark rate from GBP LIBOR to
new benchmark rate “SONIA” at cost effective terms and in an operationally efficient manner,

Your Company has set aside enough funds to cover long term loan repayments till March 2023.
SECTION 4: MISCELLANEOUS UPDATES:

a) Towards a sustained financing initiative in India, your Company continues to expand A-TREDS
line of credit (a RBI driven initiative for MSME vendors) which eases liquidity issues for this
category of vendors and improves sales margin for the Company

b) As a Cyber security strategy, a comprehensive Cyber Security Insurance was designed and
implemented for India, Rest of Asian and US entities which together with prevalent policies in
UK makes the entire organisation adequately covered for this liability.

SECTION 5: HUMAN RESOURCE

The number of employees in your Company increased by a count of 319 during the year and reached
atotal of 18077 employees across the globe. You Company has implemented a global unified Human
Resource Management System which has gone live in India with modules such as Core, Leave,
Attendance, ESS, Recruitment & Onboarding and R&R being operational. Train the Trainer (TTT)
and End User training are in progress with 1500+ employees trained so far.

A new program has also been launched by SCS India for graduate training program to enhance
operational strength and build managerial bandwidth with a Graduate Engineer Trainee (GET)
program. The plan is to on-board over a 100 new engineers and train them through On the Job and
additional skill development to take on supervisory and managerial roles over the next 2 years.
Online aptitude assessments have been completed and 40 candidates have been shortlisted.
Interviews by functional heads are in progress.

SECTION 6: ESG AND CSR

Your Company aspire to become Carbon Neutral through reduction measures and responsible off-
setting. The commitment to ESG will be through investment in technology and better working
practices to reduce the carbon footprint of operations. The Company will be releasing an ESG policy
which will act as guideline for adopting sustainable practices.



The Company has already taken steps to move in the direction of carbon neutrality through various
initiatives in the UK through replacement of Company vehicles with Hybrid or Plug-in Hybrid models
which commenced in Sep 2020. Installation of Solar Photo Voltaic systems and zero waste in landfills
through partnership with Suez Waste in 2020 to manage waste collections from all UK sites. SCS
India and SCS NA have received ISO 14001 certification and the Company is working to receive this
accreditation globally.

SCS India took multiple CSR initiatives including a donation of 2Cr to the Tamil Nadu government in
the Chief Minister’s Public Relief Fund for covid relief. TVS SCS led companies made a total
contribution of around Rs. 6 Cr., in the form of 400 Oxygen Concentrators and set-up two Oxygen
Plants, one at the Rajaji Government Hospital Trauma Care Madurai and the other at Government
Medical College, Tirunelveli.

Additionally, in the campaign and commitment to move towards sustainability, SCS India also
conducted a tree plantation drive at a government school in Chennai, Tamil Nadu wherein 1750 trees
were planted.

During the year, the Company participated in many tree plantation drives in collaboration with NGO-
Mastermind Foundation planting over 1500 trees.




Project Entry (Women Empowerment Program): TVS SCS India has collaborated with Ashwini
Seetha Foundation (NGO) which identifies pool of underprivileged women, trains them and
subsequently eligible candidates are employed at TVS SCS'’s Projects. So far over the last 6-7 years
about 1171 women have been trained and employed.

The Company partnered with Plan International and FG Sondhi Charitable Trust to provide education
assistance for 26 Children during FY22.

SCS GFS Spain contributed to Pare Manel Foundation which works towards alleviating children from
poverty and social re-integration of vulnerable and at-risk groups.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, and to build up reserves and considering the
business plans of the Company, no Dividend was declared for the current financial year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves during the financial year.

PROSPECTS

Your Company had taken various steps to strengthen the business development team. These
measures are expected to enable the Company to achieve higher turnover and profits in the years
to come.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No material changes and commitments have occurred affecting the financial position of the Company
after March 31, 2022 till the date of this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company and of all subsidiary and joint venture companies are enclosed.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

A separate statement containing the salient features of the audited financial statements of all the
subsidiary and joint venture companies is attached to this Report.

The Company will make available the Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies and
the related detailed information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining
the same. The Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies will also be kept open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and that of subsidiary companies concerned.
The Consclidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial results of
its subsidiary companies.

The details of investments made in various subsidiaries are provided as part of the Financial
Statements for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the following changes have occurred in the issued, called, subscribed and paid-up
equity share capital of the Company:

a) The authorised share capital was increased from Rs. 47 crores fo Rs. 60 crores

b) 31,08,679 Equity shares having a face value of Rs.10/- each at a price of Rs,1447.56/- each,
(including a premium of Rs. 1437.56/- per equity share) allotted to Exor Special Opportunities
Master Fund, UK on private placement/preferential basis.

¢) 10,23,350 compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up held by
Mahogany Singapore Company Pte. Ltd were converted into 12,08,931 equity shares of Rs.10/-
each.



d) 14,33,820 Equity shares having a face value of Rs.1/- each at a price of Rs.1280/- each
(including a premium of Rs. 11279/- per equity share) allotted to Vittorio M Favati on private
placement/preferential basis.

e) 26,000 equity shares of Rs. 1/-each were allotted upon exercise of options granted under the
Management Incentive Plan |

f) The authorised share capital was subdivided into 58.80 crores equity shares of Rs. 1/- each and
12 Lakhs preference shares of Rs. 10/- each.

CHANGE IN CONTROL OF OUR COMPANY

In order to align and synchronise the management of the respective companies under the TVS family
managing it, the members of the TVS family entered into a memorandum of family arrangement
dated December 10, 2020 to deliberate on the manner in which the family arrangement would be
implemented ("MFA”). Pursuant to the MFA, it was agreed to implement the family arrangement
through a composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement under Section 230 — 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“TVS Sons Scheme”). The TVS Sons Scheme was approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Chennai on December 6, 2021, with effect from the appointed date of
February 4, 2022. Pursuant to the TVS Sons Scheme, certain business and activities in relation to
sales and distribution of vehicles, equipment and automotive components and parts, along with
certain strategic investments, including investment in our Company (“Demerged Undertaking”),
were transferred to TVS Moability Private Limited. As a result, 107,273,430 Equity Shares held by
T. V. Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited were transferred to TVS Mobility Private Limited on
February 4, 2022, pursuant to which TVS Mobility Private Limited along with its wholly owned
subsidiaries, T. S. Rajam Rubbers Private Limited and Dhinrama Mobility Solutions Private Limited
acquired control of our Company from T. V. Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER

Your Company has filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with Securities Exchange Board of India
on February 12, 2022 for an overall issue size of Rs. 5000 crores which includes a fresh issue of
equity shares upto Rs. 2000 crores.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, consequent upon sale of shareholding by the existing investor viz; CDPQ Private
Equity Asia Pte. Ltd, Singapore (CDPQ), Ms. Anita George, Ms. Lim Meng Ann and Mr. Benoit
Raillard, the nominee directors CDPQ have resigned with effect from September 9, 2021. The Board
wishes to record its appreciation for the contribution made by them during their tenure as Directors.

Consequent upon the issuance of equity shares to Exor Special Opportunities Master Fund, UK
("Exor”), based on the nomination from Exor and as recommended by the Nomination Committee,
Sri Ashish Kaushik was co-opted to the Board as additional director with effect from September 9,
2021. At the Extra- ordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 15t November
2021, Sri Ashish Kaushik was appointed as Director of the Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board, the
members of your Company at their Extra- ordinary General Meeting held on 25" March 2022, have
appointed Sri R Dinesh as Executive Vice- Chairman and Sri Ravi Viswanathan as Managing
Director for a period of five years from February 07.2022.

Sri Gopal Srinivasan has resigned as Director of your Company with effect from February 04.2022
due to personal reasons. Sri. Gopal Srinivasan was a Director of your Company since inception. The
Board wishes to record its sincere appreciation for the guidance and support extended by Sri Gopal
Srinivasan during his tenure as Director,

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board,
the members of your Company at their Extra- ordinary General Meeting held on 25" March 2022,
have appointed Ms. Gauri Kumar and Sri. Balasubramanyam Sriram as Independent Directors on
the Board of your Company, for a period of five years, with effect from February 7, 2022.



Sri C K Ranganathan has resigned as Independent Director on the Board of your Company with
effect from May 16, 2022. The Board wishes to record its sincere appreciation for the guidance and
support extended by Sri C K Ranganathan during his tenure as Director.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board,
appointed Sri Tarun Khanna as an Independent Director for a period of five years from May 16,
2022, subject to approval of the shareholders.

Ms. Shobhana Ramachandhran and Sri. Bobby Pauly, Directors are liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

Your Directors recommend the appointment and re-appointment of above Directors.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Members at their 14" Annual General Meeting appointed M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP,
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the 14"
Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 19" Annual General Meeting.
M/s. S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP have confirmed their eligibility for appointment under Section
139 read with Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year, M/s. KPMG (Registered), was appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company to
conduct the Internal Audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the year, the Board of Directors of your Company met four times.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return is annexed to this Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of
the Company had appointed Mr. K Venugopalan, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report
is attached to this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of Sri. S Mahalingam, Chairman, Sri. Balasubramanyam Sriram and
Sri. Ravi Viswanathan as members. During the year under review, the Board has accepted all the
recommendations of the Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In accordance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a Vigil
Mechanism and has a Whistle Blower Policy for the employees to report genuine concerns in such
manner as prescribed.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Sri. § Mahalingam, Chairman,
Sri. Tarun Khanna and Sri. S Ravichandran as Members in terms of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Company has framed a palicy on the director's appointment and remuneration
including criteria for determining qualifications, Independence of a director and other matters
provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of Ms. Gauri Kumar, Chairperson,
Ms. Shobhana Ramachandran and Sri. S. Ravichandran, Members. The Company has adopted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rule, 2014 and the Report on CSR
Activities as required thereunder is attached to this Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of Ms. Gauri Kumar,
Chairperson, Sri Ravi Viswanathan and Sri S Ravichandran, Members on February 07, 2022 to
consider and resolve the grievances/complaints of security holders of the Company.

DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Acceptance of Rules, 2014. No amount on deposits
was outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, investments and guarantees covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
are given in the Notes to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered by the Company during the financial year were during the
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. The details of the transactions with related
parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Sri. C K Ranganathan and Sri. S Mahalingam were re-appointed as Independent Directors on the
Board of your Company, for a period of five years, with effect from June 29, 2018 and August
30,2018, respectively.

Ms. Gauri Kumar and Sri. Balasubramanyam Sriram were appointed as Independent Directors on
the Board of your Company, for a period of five years, with effect from February 7, 2022.

Sri C K Ranganathan has resigned as Independent Director on the Board of your Company with
effect from May 16, 2022.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board,
Sri Tarun Khanna was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of five years from May 16,
2022, subject to approval of the shareholders.

The Company has received the declarations of Independence from them pursuant to Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

EVALUATION OF BOARD /BOARD COMMITTEES

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as evaluation of the working of
the Committees of the Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A statement containing the information as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
attached to this Report.



INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has well defined and adequate internal financial controls and procedures
commensurate with its size & nature of its operations. This is further strengthened by the internal
audit done concurrently and periodical reporting to the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Periodic risk assessment of business risk environment is carried to identify significant risks to the
achievement of business objectives of the Company. Key risks are reported and evaluated at
appropriate forums and levels within the Company.

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee consists of Sri. Balasubramanyam
Sriram, Chairman, Sri R Dinesh and Sri Ravi Viswanathan, Members on February 07,.2022 to frame,
implement and monitor the Risk Management plan for the Company.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There has been no order passed by any Regulators or Court or Tribunal impacting the going concern
status and future operations of the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the maintenance of cost records is not applicable
to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that there are no material departures.

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates that have been made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2022 and of the loss of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

(f) proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption.

The details of the foreign exchange earnings and outgo are:
{INR in crores)

Foreign exchange earnings - 41.49

Foreign exchange outgo - 10.23

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN

During the year under review, the Company has granted 63,80 670 stock options to the employees
under the Management Incentive Plan. The disclosures in compliance with Rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 are set out in Annexure and forms part of
this Report.



THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND RDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of the
captioned Act and Rules made thereunder. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to
redress complaints regarding sexual harassment. The Company has not received any complaint
during the year under review.
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